
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
DECEMBER 18, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

December 18, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Richard Peacock – First United 
Methodist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Proposed Rezoning (File Number: Z 723) – Proposed Taco Bell Restaurant, West 
Side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – O-1 to B-2 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health 
Care Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to O-
1 or R-1B to B-1 2 

C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond 3 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1  No Postponed Items 4 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Rough Mow 
Various Municipal Sites ........................................................................................ 5 

E-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts 5 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 5 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 6 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Review; Board of Zoning Appeals; Election Commission; and Municipal 
Building Authority 6 

F-2 Potential Acquisition of 4265 Rochester Road 8 

F-3 Downtown Development Authority and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit 
Elimination Plans 8 

F-4 Amendment #2 – Environmental Work Sanctuary Lake Golf Course – NTH 
Consultants 8 

F-5 Approval of Kitchen Lease – Emerald Food Services, LLC 9 



 

 

F-6 Future Land Use Plan Amendment – Rochester Road Overlay District – Both 
Sides of Rochester Road North of Long Lake Road and South of South Boulevard, 
Sections 2, 3, 11 and 12 9 

F-7 Troy Daze Festival 10 

F-8 TCF Bank Reimbursement Agreement – Brownfield Plan #4 12 

F-9 Proposed Contract for T-Mobile Cell Tower at Fire Station #6 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 13 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 13 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Article 
35.00.00 Planned United Developments (PUD’s)............................................... 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1 A Proposed Resolution Proclaiming and Celebrating that the Tree Adorning Troy 
City Hall Lawn be Known as “The Troy Christmas Tree” – Referred by Mayor Pro 
Tem Cristina Broomfield and Council Member Wade Fleming 13 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

I-1   No Council Comments 14 

REPORTS: 14 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 14 

a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 6, 2006 ............................ 14 
b) Traffic Committee/Final – September 20, 2006 .................................................. 14 
c) Troy Youth Council/Final – September 27, 2006 ................................................ 14 
d) Historic District Commission/Final – October 17, 2006....................................... 14 
e) Traffic Committee/Final – October 18, 2006....................................................... 14 
f) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 1, 2006..... 14 
g) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – November 1, 2006..... 14 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 1, 2006............................... 14 
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 2, 2006 ................... 14 



 

 

j) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 7, 2006 ............................. 14 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 7, 2006 ........................ 14 
l) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 8, 2006 .. 14 
m) Planning Commission/Draft – November 14, 2006............................................. 14 
n) Planning Commission/Final – November 14, 2006............................................. 14 
o) Library Advisory Board/Draft – November 16, 2006 ........................................... 14 
p) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 21, 2006 ........................................ 14 
q) Planning Commission Special /Study/Draft – November 28, 2006 ..................... 14 
r) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 28, 2006 ...................... 14 
s) Troy Youth Council/Draft – November 29, 2006................................................. 14 
t) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 6, 2006............................... 14 
u) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 7, 2006 ................... 14 

J-2 Department Reports: 14 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November, 2006.... 14 
b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2006 ............................. 14 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 14 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 14 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Letter from the Michigan Association of Public Employee Retirement Systems 
(MAPERS) to John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & 
Administration, Advising of his Successful Completion of the Advanced Fiduciary 
Examination 14 

J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding City of Troy v. George 
Roberts 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 15 

K-1  Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report 15 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 15 

CLOSED SESSION: 15 

L-1 Closed Session: 15 



 

 

RECESSED 15 

RECONVENED 15 

ADJOURNMENT 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, January 8, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 16 
Monday, January 22, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 16 
Monday, February 5, 2007 Regular City Council................................................... 16 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing)  Regular City Council.. 16 
Monday, February 19, 2007 Regular City Council................................................. 16 
Wednesday, February 28, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 16 
Monday, March 5, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 16 
Monday, March 19, 2007 Regular City Council ..................................................... 16 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Richard Peacock – 
First United Methodist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Proposed Rezoning (File Number: Z 723) – Proposed Taco Bell Restaurant, West 
Side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – O-1 to B-2 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the O-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the west side of Dequindre, 
north of Long Lake, in Section 12, part of parcels 88-20-12-476-050 and 88-20-12-476-011, 
being 1.06 acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated as Parcel 
“A” on the ATTACHED Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 12 
 

Part of Lots 10, 11, 12 and the North 20 ft. of the East 200 ft. of Lot 16 of Jennings 
Subdivision (Liber 59, page 8, of Oakland County Plats) being more particularly 
described as follows: 

 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 12;  thence N 00°08'52" W, 60.00 
ft. along the East line of said Section 12;  thence N 89°32'26" W, 60.00 ft. to the 
Southeast corner of said Lot 16 of Jennings Subdivision;  thence N 00°08'52 W (N 00°07' 
W record), 293.20 ft. along the East line of said Lot 16 and the West Right-of-Way line of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Dequindre Rd. (60 ft. wide ½ Right-of-Way) to the Place of Beginning;  thence N 
88°11'10" W, 200.12 ft.;  thence N 00°08'52" W, 20.01 ft.;  thence N 88°11'10" W, 37.88 
ft. along the South line of said Lot 12;  thence N 00°08'52" W, 159.98 ft.;  thence N 
75°18'21" E, 70.21 ft.;  thence S 88°10'33" E, 170.00 ft.;  thence S 00°08'52" E (S 00°07' 
E record), 199.91 ft. along said East line of said Lots 10, 11, 12, and 16 and said West 
Right-of-Way of Dequindre Rd. (60 ft. wide ½ Right-of-Way) to the Place of Beginning.  
Containing ±1.06 ac. more or less, and subject to restrictions and easements of record; 
and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the rezoning is recommended by City Management and the 
Planning Commission; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health 

Care Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 
or R-1B to B-1 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (Denial) 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to (O-1 or B-1) rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is described in the 
following legal descriptions and illustrated on the ATTACHED drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of Section 3 
 

Lots 5,6,7,8, and 9 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision (Liber 42, pg. 8 of Oakland County 
Plats).  Containing ±0.895 ac. more or less, and subject to easements of record; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby DENIED for the following 
reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 

1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would 

weaken the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning 
decisions.   

3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 
commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is 
planned for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial 
rezoning applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

 
Or Proposed Resolution B (Approval) 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to (O-1 or B-1) rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is described in the 
following legal descriptions and illustrated on the ATTACHED drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of Section 3 
 

Lots 5,6,7,8, and 9 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision (Liber 42, pg. 8 of Oakland County 
Plats).  Containing ±0.895 ac. more or less, and subject to easements of record; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)"; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

              
         
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Karim Abdal, 5933 Diamond, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a 2006 Chevrolet cutaway van and a 2001 Ford cargo van in a residential district is 
hereby APPROVED for      (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance pursuant to 
Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Karim Abdal, 5933 Diamond, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a 2006 Chevrolet cutaway van and a 2001 Ford cargo van in a residential district is 
hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1  No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of December 4, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Rough Mow Various 

Municipal Sites         
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide three-year requirements of landscape maintenance 
services including mowing for municipal grounds and abandon properties with an option to 
renew for two additional years is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Great Lakes 
Landscaping of Warren, MI, at unit prices as contained in the bid tabulation opened November 
21, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Investment Policy and establishment of Investment Accounts outlined in 
the memorandum from John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration, 
dated December 4, 2006 with annual review and approval is hereby APPROVED, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Review; Board of Zoning Appeals; Election Commission; and Municipal 
Building Authority     

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Board of Review
Appointed by Council (3) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/10  
 
Board of Zoning Appeals
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/09  
 

(Planning Commission Rep) Term Expires 01/31/08  
 

(Planning Commission Alternate Rep) Term Expires 01/31/08  
 
Election Commission
Appointed by Council (2-Regular; 1-Charter) – 1 Year Term 
 

(Republican) Term Expires 01/31/08  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

(Democrat) Term Expires 01/31/08  
(NOTE: Letters of recommendation from the Democrat & Republican Parties of Oakland County are pending) 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Potential Acquisition of 4265 Rochester Road  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council directs staff to PURSUE acquisition of 4265 Rochester Road 
and that funds be used from the Park Development account 440770.7974.130. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Downtown Development Authority and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit 

Elimination Plans  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ADOPTS the Downtown 
Development Authority Deficit Elimination Plan and the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit 
Elimination Plan presented to this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Amendment #2 – Environmental Work Sanctuary Lake Golf Course – NTH 

Consultants  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, NTH Consultants, Ltd. has been providing environmental engineering services for 
the City of Troy (Resolution 2000-377); and 
 
WHEREAS, NTH Consultants, Ltd. Environmental assessment report recommended ongoing 
ground water sampling and testing, and has provided methane detection monitoring (Resolution 
2003-06-316); and 
 
WHEREAS, NTH has provided a proposal to continue this work; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract for methane gas and groundwater 
monitoring, replacement of damaged detectors, a methane detector maintenance plan and gas 
monitoring contingency plan be APPROVED with NTH Consultants, Ltd for an estimated cost of 
$30,000.00, under the terms and conditions outlined in Proposal No. P-20061550-F dated 
November 9, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Approval of Kitchen Lease – Emerald Food Services, LLC  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, Emerald Food Services, LLC is the provider of senior citizen nutritional services in 
contract with the Area Agency on Aging 1-B; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has agreed to allow use of the kitchen at the Community Center 
for the purpose of preparing these meals; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
the kitchen lease and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Future Land Use Plan Amendment – Rochester Road Overlay District – Both Sides 

of Rochester Road North of Long Lake Road and South of South Boulevard, 
Sections 2, 3, 11 and 12  

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master plan is 
outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended;    
 
WHEREAS, The Municipal Planning Act requires that a copy of a plan amendment shall be sent 
to City Council following approval by the Planning Commission and Planning Commission 
approval is the final step in the amendment approval process unless City Council by resolution 
asserts the right to approve or reject the amendment;    
 
WHEREAS, Section 02.10.02 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance grants the Planning 
Commission the authority to adopt amendments to the Future Land Use Plan; and   
 
WHEREAS, On November 14, 2006, the Planning Commission adopted the Rochester Road 
Overlay District amendment;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, City Council HEREBY RECOGNIZES that Planning 
Commission approval is the final step in the plan amendment process. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
F-7 Troy Daze Festival  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
Proposed Resolution A 
 
WHEREAS, Sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival can now obtain adequate insurance 
coverage; and  
 
WHEREAS, Returning sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival will give more volunteer 
ownership to the Festival; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council RETURNS sponsorship of the 
Troy Daze Festival to the Troy Community Foundation with the following stipulations: 
 

If the Festival is to be held on City-owned property, adequate liability insurance coverage 
as determined by the City of Troy has to be obtained by the sponsoring agency, naming 
the City of Troy as an additional insured party for the Festival; 
 
The Troy City Council will set the hours of operation and other measures as indicated in 
Chapter 26.17 et. seq. of the Municipal Code to better ensure safety and security for the 
surrounding houses and businesses to the Festival site; 
 
The Troy Daze Committee will submit a listing of activities and special activities prior to 
the Festival for review and approval by the Troy City Council; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

The newly formed private sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival will pay the actual costs 
of rental of park lands or other sites owned by the City of Troy; all actual security related 
costs charged by the Troy Police and Fire Departments; all actual costs for maintenance 
and clean up of the park facilities at the end of the Festival; and actual costs for any 
required equipment necessary for communications, transportation, sanitation and utilities 
necessary for Festival operations; and 
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Troy City Council, the City of Troy shall supply no 
funding for any portion of the Troy Daze Festival operations. 

 
Or Proposed Resolution B
 
WHEREAS, Sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival can now obtain adequate insurance 
coverage; and  
 
WHEREAS, Returning sponsorship of the Troy Daze Festival will give more community 
ownership to the Festival; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council RETURNS sponsorship of the 
Troy Daze Festival to the Troy Community Foundation with the following stipulations: 
 

If the Festival will be held on City-owned property, adequate liability insurance coverage 
as determined by the City of Troy be acquired by the sponsoring agency, naming the 
City of Troy as an additional insured party for the Festival; 
 
The Troy City Council will set the hours of operation and other measures as indicated in 
Chapter 26.17 et. seq. of the Municipal Code to better ensure safety and security for the 
surrounding houses and businesses to the Festival site; 
 
The Troy Daze Committee will submit a listing of activities and special activities prior to 
the festival for review and approval by the Troy City Council; 

 
Unless otherwise determined by the Troy City Council, the City of Troy shall supply no 
funding for any portion of the Troy Daze Festival operations; and 

 
The Troy Community Foundation will pay the City of Troy a percentage of the actual 
revenues generated by the Festival, equal to the actual costs of all park ground and 
equipment rental fees; all security time spent by the Troy Police and Fire Departments; 
and all maintenance costs incurred by the various City departments as agreed to by the 
City of Troy and the Troy Daze Committee, and said percentage of revenues shall be 
determined by an audit conducted by an independent auditing firm as selected by the 
Assistant City Manager for Finance and Administration and the Troy Daze Committee.  

 
Or Proposed Resolution C
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has determined that operation of the Troy Daze Festival has run 
smoothly since the City of Troy was asked to assume sponsorship; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council has determined that operation of the Festival should stay with the 
City of Troy for various safety, security and financial reasons; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy shall MAINTAIN sponsorship of the 
Troy Daze Festival until such time as determined by the Troy City Council. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 TCF Bank Reimbursement Agreement – Brownfield Plan #4  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
WHEREAS, On December 15, 2005, the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority recommended 
approval of Brownfield Plan #4 (Brownfield Plan to Conduct Eligible Response Activities, dated 
December 8, 2006), TCF Bank; 
 
WHEREAS, On February 27, 2006, City Council approved Brownfield Plan #4 (Brownfield Plan 
to Conduct Eligible Response Activities, dated December 8, 2006), TCF Bank; and 
 
WHEREAS, On December 12, 2006, the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority recommended 
approval of a Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Reimbursement Agreement, as executed by 
BRA Chair and TCF Bank;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the Brownfield Tax 
Increment Financing Reimbursement Agreement for TCF Bank and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Proposed Contract for T-Mobile Cell Tower at Fire Station #6  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the Lease Agreement between T-Mobile and the City of Troy is HEREBY 
APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00 

Planned United Developments (PUD’s) 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 A Proposed Resolution Proclaiming and Celebrating that the Tree Adorning Troy 
City Hall Lawn be Known as “The Troy Christmas Tree” – Referred by Mayor Pro 
Tem Cristina Broomfield and Council Member Wade Fleming  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, Christmas trees can be found in the homes of Troy families citywide; 
 
WHEREAS, In early December of every year the Mayor, City Council, and people of Troy 
assemble in a festive gathering to light the Christmas Tree outside in front of City Hall; 
 
WHEREAS, Also the national Christmas tree is found each year on the White House grounds in 
Washington D.C. to proclaim the Christmas season; 
 
WHEREAS, Also the state legislature and governor have pronounced that the adorned tree 
placed in front of the state capital building be named “The State of Michigan Christmas Tree”; 
 
WHEREAS, The holiday of Christmas, which is celebrated late in the year, has special 
importance to the lives of many citizens of Troy and Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, In observance of this holiday, a prominent display is erected on the City Hall 
grounds;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the tree prominently displayed outside the Troy City 
Hall late each year be officially DESIGNATED as “The Troy Christmas Tree” to properly 
symbolize the cherished event being observed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a sign with the words, “The Troy Christmas Tree” BE 
POSTED near the base of the designated tree; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That from this day forward, the tree and its graceful branches, 
which adorn the City Hall lawn each year, will BE KNOWN as “The Troy Christmas Tree”. 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

No: 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 6, 2006 
b) Traffic Committee/Final – September 20, 2006  
c) Troy Youth Council/Final – September 27, 2006 
d) Historic District Commission/Final – October 17, 2006 
e) Traffic Committee/Final – October 18, 2006  
f) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 1, 2006  
g) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – November 1, 2006 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 1, 2006  
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 2, 2006  
j) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 7, 2006 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 7, 2006  
l) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 8, 2006  
m) Planning Commission/Draft – November 14, 2006  
n) 

Library Advisory Board/Draft – November 16, 2006 
Planning Commission/Final – November 14, 2006 

o) 
p) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 21, 2006  

  q) Planning Commission Special /Study/Draft – November 28, 2006 
ember 28, 2006  r) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – Nov

 s) Troy Youth Council/Draft – November 29, 2006 
t) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 6, 2006   

) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 7, 2006 u
 
J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of No

) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2006  
vember, 2006  

b
 

-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted  J
 

-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   J
 

-5  Calendar J
 
J-6  Letter from the Michigan Association of Public Employee Retirement Systems 

(MAPERS) to John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration, 
Advising of his Successful Completion of the Advanced Fiduciary Examination 

 
J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding City of Troy v. George 

Roberts 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Hooters v. Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 18, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, January 8, 2007 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 22, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 5, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 7, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ........ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 19, 2007.......................................................Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 28, 2007 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ....... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 5, 2007............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 19, 2007........................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 1

 
 
 
December 6, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Proposed Rezoning (File Number: Z 723) – Proposed Taco Bell 

Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – O-1 to B-2 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The applicant proposes rezoning a 1.06-acre parcel from O-1 Low Rise Office to B-2 Community 

Business.   
 
• The applicant proposes a Taco Bell restaurant with a drive-thru.  Note that an office 

development is proposed for the west portion of the parent parcel, which will remain O-1. 
 
• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Community Service Area.  The 

Community Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-2 zoning district 
and a secondary correlation with the B-1, B-3 and O-1 zoning districts.  The application 
therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  The parcel has been 
planned as such since 1982. 

 
• The subject property was rezoned from R-1C One Family Residential to O-1 Low Rise Office in 

2005.  A 40-foot wide strip of property to the north was also rezoned to E-P Environmental 
Protection as part of the rezoning.  This strip of E-P defines the northern limits of the 
Community Service Area.  Furthermore, it assists in establishing an appropriate transition 
between the O-1 and B-2 zoning districts and the single-family residential neighborhood to the 
north.   
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on November 14, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed rezoning.   

 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the December 18, 2006 City Council meeting. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this application. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning District Map. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal II, Retain and 

attract investment while encouraging development, and Goal VI, Protect life and property. 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may approve the rezoning, deny the rezoning or postpone the rezoning. 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the proposed rezoning, as recommended by 

Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant. 
3. Letters of objection (2). 

 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-723 Proposed Taco Bell Sec 12\CC Public Hearing Z 723 12 18 06.doc 
 
 







R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



FE
D

O
R

A

D
AY

TO
N

E LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
E

N
S

H
AW

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED TACO BELL RESTAURANT
FROM O-1 TO B-2 
W SIDE DEQUINDRE, N OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 12 (Z-723)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³



FE
D

O
R

A

D
AY

TO
N

E LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

R
E

N
S

H
AW

(E-P)

(O-1)

(R-1C)

(B-2)

(B-1) (H-S)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED TACO BELL RESTAURANT
FROM O-1 TO B-2 
W SIDE DEQUINDRE, N OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 12 (Z-723)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³













 1

 
 
December 7, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application (File Number Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s 

Home Health Care Center, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – 
R-1B to O-1 or R-1B to B-1 

 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to B-1 at 

the June 14, 2005 Regular meeting.  On August 1, 2005, City Council postponed the item to 
the first Regular City Council meeting in March 2006.  On March 6, 2006, City Council 
postponed the item to the first Regular City Council meeting in August 2006.  On August 14, 
2006, City Council postponed the item to the first Regular City Council meeting in October 
2006. 

 
• At the October 16, 2006 Regular meeting, City Council approved a Zoning Ordinance text 

amendment (File Number ZOTA 226) which permits medical equipment sales and service by 
right in the O-1 Low Rise Office District.  Additionally, City Council remanded the item to the 
Planning Commission for consideration of O-1 zoning. 

 
• At the November 14, 2006 Regular meeting, the Planning Commission recommended denial of 

the O-1 rezoning application. 
 
• The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as Medium 

Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates with the R-1T 
Zoning District in the Plan.   

 
• On November 14, 2006, the Planning Commission adopted an amendment to the Future Land 

Use Plan that created a Rochester Road Overlay District that calls for a range of uses along 
this portion of Rochester Road.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The application is not consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
• The Rochester Road Overlay District calls for a range of uses along this portion of Rochester 

Road.  These uses, when developed with sufficient depth, would serve as a transition between 
Rochester Road and the abutting single-family residential neighborhood.  The Zoning 
Ordinance will need to be amended to implement this concept. 

 
• Denial of the rezoning request would be consistent with City Council Goal VI (Protect life and 

property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve a rezoning to B-1. 
 
• City Council can approve a rezoning to O-1. 
 
• City Council can deny the rezoning application. 
 
• City Management recommends denial of the rezoning application.   
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Letter from David E. Plunkett, dated November 1, 2006. 
3. Letter of support. 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 180-B 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-180 B BINSONS\CC PH Z-180 B 12 18 06.doc 





R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



VILLA PARK

P
E

A
C

O
C

K

MARENGO

DEETTA

QUILL CREEK
R

O
C

H
E

S
TE

R

WOODSIDE

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & MARENGO
SEC. 3  (Z-180 B)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



VILLA PARK

P
E

A
C

O
C

K

MARENGO

DEETTA

QUILL CREEK
R

O
C

H
E

S
TE

R

WOODSIDE

P.U.D. 
# 1

CJ-32

(R-1B)

(PUD)

(B-1)

(CR-1)

(E-P)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & MARENGO
SEC. 3  (Z-180 B)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³









 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
December 12, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing 
    Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Commercial Vehicles, other than a single pick-up truck or van are prohibited from being parked outside on 

residential property per Section 40.66.00 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 Mr. Karim Abdal, the owner of the property at 5933 Diamond, parks a 2006 Chevrolet cutaway van and a 

2001 Ford cargo van, used for the commercial purpose of a heating and cooling business in the driveway 
of the home. 

 Mr. Abdal was notified of the violation on September 13, 2006, and was given the option of removing the 
vehicle or seeking an appeal of the parking restrictions. 

 On November 17, 2006, Mr. Abdal submitted an application seeking appeal. 
 A public hearing, as required by Section 44.02.01 of the Zoning Ordinance, is scheduled for December 18, 

2006. 
 Public Hearing notices were mailed to all property owners and occupants of structures within 300 feet of 

this site. 
 The property in question is a 70’ wide platted lot within the Stoneridge Subdivision located in the R-1C 

Zoning District. 
 The property contains an existing two-story home totaling 1,755 square feet with 1,030 square feet of that 

on the first floor.  There is also a 399 square foot attached garage on the site. 
 Section 40.56.01 of the Zoning Ordinance would allow up to 772 square feet of attached garage, and 

Section 40.56.02 would allow up to 623 square feet of detached garage at this location. 
 

inancial ConsiderationsF : 
 
 There are no financial considerations for this item. 

 
egal ConsiderationsL : 

 
 City Council has the authority to grant appeals of the restrictions for outdoor parking of commercial vehicles 

on residential property after a public hearing per Section 44.02.00 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Policy Considerations: 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 
 Holding public hearings on matters considered for appeals allows the public to offer their comments and 

concerns to promote effective decision making. (Goal 3) 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council may approve the request as submitted for up to two years per Section 44.02.03. 
 City Council may approve a modified request for a lesser variance for up to two years per Section 

44.02.03. 
 City Council may deny the request. 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 













 



 



 



 



 



 



 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, December 4, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Pastor Steve Husava gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Mayor Schilling presented a Service Commendation to Charles Palmer on behalf of the 

City of Troy recognizing his many contributions to the betterment of the City 
b) The 2006 Audited Financial Report was presented by Tom Darling, CPA of Rehmann 

Robson and John M. Lamerato presented the City of Troy’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the Year Ending June 30, 2006 

c) John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration presented the 
GFOA Awards for Financial Reports 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1  Mayoral Appointments to the Planning Commission 
 
Resolution #2006-12-365 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission
Appointed by Mayor (9 Members) – 3 Year Terms 
 

holmesba
Text Box

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Michael W. Hutson Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
Kathleen Troshynski Term Expires 12/31/09 
 
John J. Tagle Term Expires 12/31/09  

 
Yes: All-7  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-12-366 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-02 and E-07, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services     
 
Resolution #2006-12-366-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On February 6, 2006, a contract for seasonal requirements of lawn and yard 
services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year was awarded to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Redburn’s Snow 
Plowing and Lawn Maintenance, Inc. of Rochester Hills, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened January 11, 2006 (Resolution #2006-02-038); and 
 
WHEREAS, Redburn’s Snow Plowing and Lawn Maintenance, Inc. has agreed to exercise the 
one-year option to renew the contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby  
EXERCISED with Redburn’s Snow Plowing and Lawn Maintenance, Inc. to provide seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program at an 
estimated cost of $47,780.00, under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring December 
31, 2007.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 
Funds for City Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – National 
League of Cities (NLC) Leadership Meeting     

 
Resolution #2006-12-366-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Robin Beltramini is AUTHORIZED to attend the National 
League of Cities (NLC) Leadership Meeting in San Diego, CA from January 11 - 13, 2007 in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) 2007 Annual Congressional City Conference     

 
Resolution #2006-12-366-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That council members are AUTHORIZED to attend the National League of Cities 
(NLC) 2007 Annual Congressional City Conference in Washington, DC on March 10 -14, 2007 
in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Pre-Tax Benefit Plan 
 
Resolution #2006-12-366-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the form of Pre-Tax Benefit Plan 
effective January 1, 2007, presented to this meeting and that the duly authorized agents of the 
Employer are hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER to the 
Administrator of the Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management 
to take such actions that are deemed necessary and proper in order to implement the Plan, and 
to set up adequate accounting and administrative procedures to provide benefits under the 
Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the duly authorized agents of the Employer SHALL ACT 
as soon as possible to notify the employees of the Employer of the adoption of the Pre-Tax 
Benefit Plan by delivering to each employee a copy of the summary description of the Plan in 
the form of the Summary Plan Description presented to this meeting, which form is hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Suma Medical Center – Project No. 06.905.3 
 
Resolution #2006-12-366-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Dr. Kheir Al-Zouhayli, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, concrete approach, aggregate base, concrete curb and gutter and 
concrete walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-12-367  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of November 27, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-7 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Kona Grill 
 
(a) New License
 
Resolution #2006-12-368a 
Moved by Stine    
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Kona Macadmamia, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2006 
Class C licensed business, located in escrow at 819 E. Auburn Rochester Hills, MI 48307, 
Oakland County, from Whirly-Ball-Rochester L.L.C.; transfer location to 30 E. Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County; requests a new SDM license to be held in conjunction; and 
requests a new official permit (food) and a new outdoor service area, be CONSIDERED for 
APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
(b) Agreement
 
Resolution #2006-12-368b 
Moved by Stine    
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Kona Macadmamia, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C licensed 
business, located in escrow at 819 E. Auburn Rochester Hills, MI 48307, Oakland County, from 
Whirly-Ball-Rochester L.L.C.; transfer location to 30 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County; requests a new SDM license to be held in conjunction; and requests a new official 
permit (food) and a new outdoor service area; and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments b) City Council Appointments: Liquor Committee  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments 

 
(b)  City Council Appointments

 
Resolution #2006-12-369 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Liquor Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Clark Yuan (Student) Term Expires 07/01/07  

 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Re-Write of City Code, Chapter 65 – Taxicabs, Limousines and Drivers 
  
Resolution #2006-12-370 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by  Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Code, Chapter 65 – Taxicab, Limousines and Drivers, be 
AMENDED by replacement in its entirety, as presented. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond – December 18, 2006  
b) Proposed Rezoning (File Number: Z 723) – Proposed Taco Bell Restaurant, West side of 

Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – O-1 to B-2 – December 18, 2006  
c) Rezoning Application (File Number Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 

Center, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 or R-1B to 
B-1 – December 18, 2006    

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – September 21, 2006  
b) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 12, 2006  
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 17, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – October 31, 2006  
b) Council Member Lambert’s Report from the NLC Annual Leadership Summit  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Officer Harrison from L. Wayne Creasman, Senior Connection, in 

Appreciation of the Informative and Professional Presentation  
b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Kaptur from Lee Gillett, ITT Technical Institute, Regarding the 

Outstanding Substance Abuse Presentation  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Jon Howington, Macomb Community 

College, Regarding the Volunteer Efforts of Chief Craft and Officers of the Police 
Department  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 4, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Mary Huyck, Oakland County Jail Clinic, in 
Appreciation of the Professional, Informative and Entertaining Presentation by Officer 
Kaptur   

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted  
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from Information Technology Director Gert Paraskevin Regarding 
GIS Case Study 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Action 
Plan for New Routing Schedule for Refuse, Recyclables and Yard Waste 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-8  Standard & Poor’s Report on AAA-Rated Credits in U.S. State & Local Government 
Finance – Available for Viewing at the City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public 
Library 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Annual Audit Report – Available for Viewing at the City Clerk’s Office and the Troy 
Public Library 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  Council Responses to City Manager’s Questionnaire 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:11 P.M. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
 
  December 6, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Rough Mow – Various Municipal 

Sites 
  

Background 
• On November 21, 2006, sixteen (16) bids were received and opened for ITB-COT 06-41, to provide all 

labor, tools, equipment, and landscape maintenance services including mowing for municipal grounds 
and abandon properties for three years with an option to renew for two additional years. 

• 193 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with 4 vendor walk-ins.   
• Sixteen bidders responded, five statements of no bid received, and one vendor did not meet 

specifications for failure to provide the $500.00 bid surety check. 
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the various contractual service accounts: 

780.7802.070  Street Island Maintenance - Major 
782.7802.070  Street Island Maintenance - Northfield Hills 
344.7802.050  Fire Halls 
276.7802.050  Cemetery Maintenance 
807.7802.070  Museum Grounds 

  
Legal Considerations  

• ITB-COT 06-41 was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their 
level of interest in supplying landscape maintenance services including mowing for the City of Troy 
municipal grounds.  

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 

Policy Considerations 
• Bidding services of this type help minimize cost and increase efficiently of City government. (Goal #1) 
• Property maintenance helps retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal #2) 
• Maintenance of these properties reduces visual barriers blockages and reduces the incident of 

mosquitoes in the neighborhoods. (Goal #6) 
 

Options 
• City management and the Park and Recreation department recommend awarding the three-year 

contract for landscape maintenance services including mowing with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years to low total bidder, Great Lakes Landscaping of Warren, for an estimated total cost of 
$57,010.00 for 2007, 2008, and 2009, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 11/21/06.  

 
Rwh  S:\John’s Review/Agenda 12.18.06 – SR1 – MowingRough Memo.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

$500.00 Check # - 477165190 314172145
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres - 28 times per year 

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 22.00$            25,915.1$       33.00$            38,872.7$           
2008 42.07 22.00$            25,915.1$       33.00$            38,872.7$           
2009 42.07 22.00$            25,915.1$       33.00$            38,872.7$           

77,745.36$    116,618.04$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES - 24 times per year

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 20.00$            19,896.00$     28.00$            27,854.40$         
2008 41.45 20.00$            19,896.00$     28.00$            27,854.40$         
2009 41.45 20.00$            19,896.00$     28.00$            27,854.40$         

59,688.00$    83,563.20$         
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES - 14 times per year

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 20.00$            10,953.60$     22.95$            12,569.26$         
2008 39.12 20.00$            10,953.60$     22.95$            12,569.26$         
2009 39.12 20.00$            10,953.60$     22.95$            12,569.26$         

32,860.80$    37,707.77$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 5.00$              245.00$         0.70$              34.30$                
2008 49,000 SF 5.00$              245.00$         0.70$              34.30$                
2009 49,000 SF 5.00$              245.00$         0.70$              34.30$                

735.00$         102.90$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 57,009.72$     79,330.64$     
2008 57,009.72$     79,330.64$     
2009 57,009.72$     79,330.64$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 171,029.16$  237,991.91$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/15 &11/17 11/19 &11/20

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 6am-5pm 8am-6pm
Contact Phone # 810-523-8066 248.830.9288
Pager

LICENSE #: 174747 179375

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: 30 Days Net 30

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41

Rasins Landscape & Assoc IncGreat Lakes Landscaping



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes
DMS:
  Trybuski's Landscaping & Lawn Service - Reason:  No $500.00 bid deposit check as specified

NO BIDS:
  J.Q. Inc
  Kingspointe Services ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER
  Lazoen Hay & Feed
  Troy Clogg Landscape
  Williams Weed Mowing

ATTEST:
  Cheryl Stewart
  Ron Hynd
  Linda Bockstanz ____________________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Great Lakes Landscaping Rasins Landscape & Assoc Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 002592 681957299-8

PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 33.50$            39,461.7$       34.92$           41,134.4$           
2008 42.07 33.50$            39,461.7$       34.92$           41,134.4$           
2009 42.07 33.50$            39,461.7$       34.92$           41,134.4$           

118,384.98$   123,403.09$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 29.50$            29,346.60$     30.07$           29,913.64$         
2008 41.45 29.50$            29,346.60$     30.07$           29,913.64$         
2009 41.45 29.50$            29,346.60$     30.07$           29,913.64$         

88,039.80$     89,740.91$         
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 25.50$            13,965.84$     24.25$           13,281.24$         
2008 39.12 25.50$            13,965.84$     24.25$           13,281.24$         
2009 39.12 25.50$            13,965.84$     24.25$           13,281.24$         

41,897.52$     39,843.72$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 0.90$              44.10$            5.00$             245.00$              
2008 49,000 SF 0.90$              44.10$            5.00$             245.00$              
2009 49,000 SF 0.90$              44.10$            5.00$             245.00$              

132.30$          735.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 82,818.20$     84,574.24$     
2008 82,818.20$     84,574.24$     
2009 82,818.20$    84,574.24$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 248,454.60$  253,722.72$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/3 &11/20 11/11/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-5pm 24/7
Contact Phone # 810.265.5610 248.765.7844
Pager

LICENSE #: 179713 Available Upon Request

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30 Days

Parks Landscaping &
Snow Service

Steel's Services LLC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Steele's Services LLC Parks Landscaping &
Snow Service



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 4974468592 324103

PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 34.99$            41,216.8$       33.15$           39,049.4$           
2008 42.07 34.99$            41,216.8$       33.15$           39,049.4$           
2009 42.07 34.99$            41,216.8$       33.15$           39,049.4$           

123,650.46$   117,148.12$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 30.49$            30,331.45$     33.15$           32,977.62$         
2008 41.45 30.49$            30,331.45$     33.15$           32,977.62$         
2009 41.45 30.49$            30,331.45$     33.15$           32,977.62$         

90,994.36$     98,932.86$         
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 25.00$            13,692.00$     26.00$           14,239.68$         
2008 39.12 25.00$            13,692.00$     26.00$           14,239.68$         
2009 39.12 25.00$            13,692.00$     26.00$           14,239.68$         

41,076.00$     42,719.04$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 11.43$            560.07$          0.77$             37.73$                
2008 49,000 SF 11.43$            560.07$          0.77$             37.73$                
2009 49,000 SF 11.43$            560.07$          0.77$             37.73$                

1,680.21$       113.19$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 85,800.34$     86,304.40$     
2008 85,800.34$     86,304.40$     
2009 85,800.34$    86,304.40$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 257,401.03$  258,913.21$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/8/2006 11/14,15,16,20

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-4pm 24/7
Contact Phone # 810.343.3884 586.531.1927
Pager

LICENSE #: Blank C007950381

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 30 Days

Precision Landscaping
Services Inc

B&B Lawn Service Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Does not include mulching
Does not include tree & shrub
  pruning.

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

B&B Lawn Service Inc Precision Landscaping
Services Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 7 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Tree Service Inc

$500.00 Check # - 424450457 477742834

PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 38.00$            44,762.5$       35.95$           42,347.7$           
2008 42.07 37.24$            43,867.2$       35.95$           42,347.7$           
2009 42.07 36.50$            42,995.5$       35.95$           42,347.7$           

131,625.25$   127,042.99$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 32.00$            31,833.60$     33.95$           33,773.46$         
2008 41.45 31.36$            31,196.93$     33.95$           33,773.46$         
2009 41.45 30.74$            30,580.15$     33.95$           33,773.46$         

93,610.68$     101,320.38$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 27.00$            14,787.36$     29.50$           16,156.56$         
2008 39.12 26.46$            14,491.61$     29.50$           16,156.56$         
2009 39.12 24.94$            13,659.14$     29.50$           16,156.56$         

42,938.11$     48,469.68$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.25$             61.25$                
2008 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.25$             61.25$                
2009 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.25$             61.25$                

1,323.00$       183.75$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 91,824.44$     92,338.93$     
2008 89,996.77$     92,338.93$     
2009 87,675.83$    92,338.93$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 269,497.04$  277,016.80$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 1/16/2006 11/15 &11/16

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-5pm 6am-8pm
Contact Phone # 586.823.5971 248.379.9630
Pager

LICENSE #: 179384 C002890001

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

Quality LandscapeCal Fleming Landscaping &



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Tree Service Inc

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Cal Fleming Landscaping & Quality Landscape



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 9 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 624112731 808846500-3

PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 38.50$            45,351.5$       39.00$           45,940.4$           
2008 42.07 38.50$            45,351.5$       40.00$           47,118.4$           
2009 42.07 38.50$            45,351.5$       41.00$           48,296.4$           

136,054.38$   141,355.20$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 33.50$            33,325.80$     40.00$           39,792.00$         
2008 41.45 33.50$            33,325.80$     41.00$           40,786.80$         
2009 41.45 33.50$            33,325.80$     42.00$           41,781.60$         

99,977.40$     122,360.40$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 27.50$            15,061.20$     42.00$           23,002.56$         
2008 39.12 27.50$            15,061.20$     43.00$           23,550.24$         
2009 39.12 27.50$            15,061.20$     44.00$           24,097.92$         

45,183.60$     70,650.72$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          0.98$             48.02$                
2008 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.00$             49.00$                
2009 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.02$             49.98$                

1,323.00$       147.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 94,179.46$     108,783.02$   
2008 94,179.46$     111,504.44$   
2009 94,179.46$    114,225.86$   

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 282,538.38$  334,513.32$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/15/2006 11/18/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 6am-7pm 7am-6pm
Contact Phone # 313.549.5500 586.876.1665
Pager 248.610.5078

LICENSE #: NDS013511 Blank

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 15  2% discount Net 30 

Naturalistic LandscapesTiede Landscaping



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 10 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Tiede Landscaping Naturalistic Landscapes LLC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 11 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 2116187 083461853-7

PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 54.60$            64,316.6$       94.40$           111,199.4$         
2008 42.07 54.60$            64,316.6$       94.40$           111,199.4$         
2009 42.07 56.65$            66,731.4$       94.40$           111,199.4$         

195,364.67$   333,598.27$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 48.84$            48,586.03$     79.40$           78,987.12$         
2008 41.45 48.84$            48,586.03$     79.40$           78,987.12$         
2009 41.45 50.67$            50,406.52$     79.40$           78,987.12$         

147,578.58$   236,961.36$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 41.41$            22,679.43$     34.40$           18,840.19$         
2008 39.12 41.41$            22,679.43$     34.40$           18,840.19$         
2009 39.12 42.96$            23,528.33$     34.40$           18,840.19$         

68,887.19$     56,520.58$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 12.57$            615.93$          2.00$             98.00$                
2008 49,000 SF 12.57$            615.93$          2.00$             98.00$                
2009 49,000 SF 13.04$            638.96$          2.00$             98.00$                

1,870.82$       294.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 136,198.01$   209,124.74$   
2008 136,198.01$   209,124.74$   
2009 141,305.24$  209,124.74$   

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 413,701.26$  627,374.21$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/20/2006 11/15/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7am-7pm 9am-5pm
Contact Phone # 248.240.0447 586.615.7566
Pager 586.615.3376

LICENSE #: 179226 179716

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: 30 Net Net 30 Days

United Lawnscape IncCommercial Mowing Services Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 12 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: None N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Commercial Mowing Services Inc United Lawnscape Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 13 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 163299 473350145

PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 86.34$            101,705.1$     95.00$           111,906.2$         
2008 42.07 88.07$            103,742.9$     95.00$           111,906.2$         
2009 42.07 89.83$            105,816.1$     95.00$           111,906.2$         

311,264.15$   335,718.60$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 93.66$            93,172.97$     90.00$           89,532.00$         
2008 41.45 95.53$            95,033.24$     90.00$           89,532.00$         
2009 41.45 97.44$            96,933.31$     90.00$           89,532.00$         

285,139.52$   268,596.00$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 76.65$            41,979.67$     95.00$           52,029.60$         
2008 39.12 78.18$            42,817.62$     95.00$           52,029.60$         
2009 39.12 79.74$            43,672.00$     100.00$          54,768.00$         

128,469.30$   158,827.20$       
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 6.00$              294.00$          2.00$             98.00$                
2008 49,000 SF 6.12$              299.88$          2.00$             98.00$                
2009 49,000 SF 6.24$              305.76$          2.00$             98.00$                

899.64$          294.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 237,151.71$   253,565.80$   
2008 241,893.68$   253,565.80$   
2009 246,727.22$  256,304.20$   

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 725,772.61$  763,435.80$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE week of 11/12/06 11/19/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-6pm 8am-6pm
Contact Phone # 248.866.8444 313.363.7293
Pager 313.291.5502

LICENSE #: 179803 C007000171  3A 3B

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days

Michigan Turf IncLawncrafters LLC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 14 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: Bid prices are contingent Blank
upon being awarded all 4 groups

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Lawncrafters LLC United Lawnscape Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 15 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Services LLC

$500.00 Check # - 375098631 20723486
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 118.00$           138,999.3$     3,750.00$         4,417,350.0$      
2008 42.07 118.00$           138,999.3$     3,750.00$         4,417,350.0$      
2009 42.07 118.00$           138,999.3$     3,750.00$         4,417,350.0$      

416,997.84$   13,252,050.00$  
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 118.00$           117,386.40$   2,022.00$         2,011,485.60$    
2008 41.45 118.00$           117,386.40$   2,022.00$         2,011,485.60$    
2009 41.45 118.00$           117,386.40$   2,022.00$         2,011,485.60$    

352,159.20$   6,034,456.80$    
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 118.00$           64,626.24$     1,099.18$         601,998.90$       
2008 39.12 118.00$           64,626.24$     1,099.18$         601,998.90$       
2009 39.12 118.00$           64,626.24$     1,099.18$         601,998.90$       

193,878.72$   1,805,996.71$    
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 21.42$             1,049.58$       0.16$                7.84$                  
2008 49,000 SF 21.42$             1,049.58$       0.16$                7.84$                  
2009 49,000 SF 21.42$             1,049.58$       0.16$                7.84$                  

3,148.74$       23.52$                

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 322,061.50$    7,030,842.34$  
2008 322,061.50$    7,030,842.34$  
2009 322,061.50$   7,030,842.34$  

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 966,184.50$  21,092,527.03$ 

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/13/2006 11/13/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7am-7pm 7am-7pm
Contact Phone # 586.436.0206 248.672.8634
Pager N/A

LICENSE #: None 180024

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30

Torre & Bruglio IncDo-It-All Lawnscaping



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 16 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Services LLC

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Do-It-All Lawnscaping Torre & Bruglio Inc



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

December 4, 2006 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  
SUBJECT:   City of Troy Investment Policy & Establishment of Investment Accounts 
 
Background: 
 
 The current investment policy was initially approved in November 1999 and each year thereafter 

with the stipulation that it be reviewed and approved annually by City Council.  The current policy 
has served us well during the past year and is in compliance with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended, 
therefore I’m not requesting any changes at this time. 
 
I would also like to update our resolution authorizing the establishment of investment accounts at 
the following institutions: Charter One, Citizens Bank, Comerica Bank, Fifth Third Bank, Flagstar 
Bank, Huntington National Bank, Independent Bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank, LaSalle Bank, 
Merrill Lynch, Michigan Class-MBIA, Michigan Heritage Bank, National City Bank, Republic Bank, 
Salomon Smith Barney, TCF Bank, and The Private Bank. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 This policy is established in order to provide for the safety and diversification of investment 

accounts. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The investment policy is in compliance with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The annual review of the investment policy is intended to give City Council an update on the 

financial institutions in which the City invests its money, and also supports City Council’s goals to 
minimize the cost and increase efficiency of City government and for effective, professional 
communication. 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that City Council approve the attached investment policy and listing of 

approved investment account locations. 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



CITY OF TROY INVESTMENT POLICY 
To Comply with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended 

 
 
Purpose:  It is the policy of the City of Troy to invest its funds in a manner which will 
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily 
cash flow needs of the City and comply with all State statutes governing the investment of 
public funds. 
 
Scope:  This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City.  These assets are 
accounted for in the various funds of the City and include the general fund, special 
revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds (unless bond ordinances and 
resolutions are more restrictive), enterprise funds, internal service funds, trust and agency 
funds, and any new fund established by the City. 
 
Objectives:  The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities 
shall be: 
 
 Safety – Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  

Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation 
of capital in the overall portfolio. 

 
 Diversification – The investments will be diversified by security type and institution 

in order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income 
generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 

 
 Liquidity – The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 

operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 
 
 Return on Investment – The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 

objective of obtaining a rate of return throughout the budgetary and economic 
cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow 
characteristics of the portfolio. 

 
Delegation of Authority to Make Investments:  Authority to manage the investment 
program is derived from the following:  City of Troy City Council’s most current resolution 
establishing investment accounts (2005-11- 522- E-5).  Management responsibility for the 
investment program is hereby delegated to the City of Troy Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration who shall establish written procedures and internal 
controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy.  
Procedures should include references to safekeeping, cash purchase or delivery vs. 
payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, 
collateral/depository agreements and banking service contracts.  No person may engage 
in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the 
procedures established by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration.  The 
Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration shall be responsible for all transactions 



undertaken and shall establish a system of controls.  The Investment Policy shall be 
reviewed and approved by the City Council annually. 
 
List of Authorized Investments:  The Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
is limited to investments authorized by Act 20 of 1943, as amended, and may invest in the 
following: 
 

(a) Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or 
instrumentality of the United States. 

(b) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository of a 
financial institution.  Authorized depositories shall be designated by the City of 
Troy City Council. 

(c) Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest 
classifications established by not less than two standard rating services and 
that matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase. 

(d) Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in (a). 
(e) Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks. 
(f) Obligations of this state or any of its political subdivisions that at the time of 

purchase are rated investment grade by not less than one standard rating 
service. 

(g) Investment pools through an interlocal agreement under the urban cooperation 
act of 1967, 1987 (Ex Sess) PA 7, MCL 124.501 to 124.512 

(h) Investment pools organized under the surplus funds investment pool act, 1982 
PA 367, 129.111 to 129.118. 

(i) The investment pools organized under the local government investment pool 
act, 1986 PA 121, MCL 129.141 to 129.150. 

 
Safekeeping and Custody:  All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase 
agreements and financial institution deposits, entered into by the Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration may be on a cash basis or a delivery vs. payment 
basis as determined by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration.  Securities 
may be held by a third party custodian designated by the Assistant City Manager/Finance 
and Administration and evidenced by safekeeping receipts as determined by the Assistant 
City Manager/Finance and Administration. 
 
Prudence:  Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then 
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the 
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAMERATO\2006\Investment Policy 



 

 
 
December 7, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Potential Acquisition of 4265 Rochester Road 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In August, 2006 the owner of 4265 Rochester Road approached staff regarding the acquisition of 

said property by the City for the purpose of developing it as parkland. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The cost of this property has not yet been appraised but it is estimated at approximately $1.6 

million 
 There is no current budget allocation for park acquisition however, the park development fund 

could be used for this purpose.   
 The owner has indicated the possibility of a land contract for the property.   

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Appraisal must be completed prior to a purchase agreement.   
 Sale of the property to the City is contingent on City Council.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This property and its use is consistent with the Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  (Goals 2,4) 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council can direct staff to pursue acquisition. 
 City Council can direct staff to terminate pursuit of this property.   

 
 
 
CA/  S:/John’s Review/Agenda 12.18.06/Potential Acquisition of 4265 Rochester Rd 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



























 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
December 8, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Downtown Development Authority and Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plans  
 
 
Background: 
 
 It is a requirement of the State of Michigan that any fund or component unit of a municipality 

reporting negative net assets shall file a Deficit Elimination Plan (DEP) with the Department 
of Treasury after approval by the local legislative body. 

 For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 the Downtown Development Authority (Component 
Unit) and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course fund meet this criteria.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The attached DEP(s) recognize the causes of these negative net assets and identify future 

remedies. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The governing body of the employer must certify by resolution that any DEP is approved and 

adopted. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Adoption will satisfy State of Michigan reporting requirements (Goal III). 

 
Options: 
 
 Staff recommends that City Council approve the DEP(s). 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



CITY OF TROY DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLANS 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
 
This fund was recognized as a component unit for the first time this year. As a result its 
outstanding long-term debt created a reported deficit net asset position of $19,289,971. This 
deficit will be lowered each year when tax increments are collected and debt payments are 
made. 
 
 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course  
 
A number of factors contributed to this deficit, the most significant being the delay in opening 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course (SLGC). The debt service payment schedule was based upon the 
course being in full operation prior to July 1, 2004. That not being the case, first year revenue 
was well below projections while fixed costs remained in place. As a new entity with no net 
asset reserve available, the revenue shortfall immediately created the deficit situation. 
 
In its second year of operations SLGC experienced a negative charge in net assets of $557,510 
compared to $787,998 last fiscal year. Tee times have been shortened, additional leagues and 
outings are reserving for 2007 and increased marketing efforts are underway. With the current 
industry wide softness in golf sales it is anticipated that the deficit elimination will be a multi-year 
effort, as indicated in the following plan: 
 
 
SLGC Net Assets, June 30, 2006    $ (1,357,159) 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 06-07     (2,059,880) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 06-07         1,864,070 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2007   $ (1,552,969) 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 07-08    (1,716,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 07-08         2,180,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2008   $ (1,088,969) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 08-09     (1,767,480) 
Estimated revenue, FY 08-09         2,400,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2009   $    (456,449) 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 09-10    (1,900,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 09-10         2,400,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2010   $           43,551 
 
Under this plan the deficit will be eliminated by June 30, 2010. Please advise if further 
information is requested. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
December 11, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment #2 - Environmental Work Sanctuary Lake Golf Course – NTH 

Consultants  
 
Background 
 
 Prior to construction of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, the City entered into a contract with NTH to 

assess environmental conditions. {Resolution #2000-377}   
 NTH Consultant’s final report included a recommendation that groundwater sampling and testing 

be done to assess possible changes in groundwater quality or flow patterns after the golf course 
construction. 

 Through an amendment to the contract, NTH has been monitoring the groundwater and methane 
gas on the property.  {Resolution #2003-06-316}  

 Two methane monitors have been damaged necessitating repair. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds for this work are available in 885.7802.050 Sanctuary Lake Greens.   

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 There are no legal considerations. 

 
Policy Consideration 
 
 Monitoring of methane and groundwater is imperative to ensure no environmental problems on 

this site.  (Goal #6) 
 This amendment includes staff training, which will enable City personnel to monitor methane gas.  

(Goal #1) 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
December 11, 2006 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Amendment #2 – NTH Consultants 
 
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends approval of this amendment at an estimated cost of $30,000. 

The scope of services included in this proposed amendment includes repairing the damaged 
methane detectors in the golf cart shed, implementing a maintenance program for the methane 
detectors, developing a gas monitoring contingency plan, and continuing to conduct landfill gas and 
groundwater monitoring at the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Development.  At the completion of this 
scope of work, staff will be trained to monitor the gas detection devices and landfill gas monitoring. 
 
 

 
CA/  S:/John’s Review/Agenda 12.18.06 Amendment #2 – NTH - Letter 
 
 













 

 
 
December 11, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Kitchen Lease – Emerald Food Service LLC 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In contract with the Area Agency on Aging 1-B, Emerald Food Services, Inc. is the food service 

provider for senior citizens.  To provide these services the City has agreed to allow Emerald Food 
Service, Inc. use of the Community Center kitchen for the purpose of preparing food for this 
purpose.  As part of this use, Emerald Food Service, Inc. will be allocated office space to conduct 
business associated with this service.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The City will generate $9,000 annually for this use through payment by Emerald Food Service, 

Inc. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 All legal considerations have been addressed in the agreement.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations.   

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends approval of the agreement. (Goal #1) 

 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 1

KITCHEN LEASE 
 

THIS KITCHEN LEASE (the “Lease”) is made as of the __________________ day of 
_________________, 2006, by and between the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, as 
Lessor (“City”), and Emerald Food Services LLC, a Michigan Corporation, whose 
address is 1980 Greenfield, Berkley, Michigan 48072, as Lessee (“Corporation”). 
 
 
SECTION I – Duration of the Lease 
 
The Lease shall be in full force during the period commencing on January 1, 2007, 
and ending the 31st day of December 2010, and during such additional periods as the 
City and the Corporation shall agree upon. 
 
 
SECTION II – Purpose of the Lease 
 
The purpose of the Lease is the use of the Community Center kitchen for on site 
scratch cooking by the Corporation for the Senior Citizen Nutrition program in Troy 
and other Oakland County communities.  
 
SECTION III – The City’s Responsibilities 
 

A. The City shall lease to the Corporation the Community Center kitchen and 
office space designated on the attached Exhibit 1 for the sum of 
$750.00/month  

 
B. The City shall provide the use of the kitchen for the sole purpose of 

conducting a scratch cooking site from Monday through Friday, from 5:00 
am to 2:00 pm, (on normal Corporation work days), except holidays 
observed by the City.  The City reserves the right to occupy and use the 
premises at any time except as provided herein. 

 
B. City shall maintain the trash receptacles in the kitchen and office area.   

 
C. The City shall provide for the use of the following equipment currently on 

site:  refrigeration units, ovens, stoves, steam table, sinks, garbage 
disposals and ice machine. 

 
D. The City shall pay all utility costs of the program. 

 
E. The City shall provide for the general maintenance of the facility except as 

otherwise provided in this Lease 
 

F. The City shall permit access to the kitchen to the Oakland County  



 2

     Health Department personnel, and Office of Services to the Aging and Area   
     Agency on Aging personnel. 
 
 

SECTION IV – The Corporation’s Responsibilities 
 

A. The Corporation shall pay the rent on or before the 1st day of each month. 
     Checks should be made payable to: City of Troy and delivered or mailed to  
     Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director, 3179 Livernois, Troy, 
     Michigan 48083. 

 
B.  The Corporation shall use the kitchen for the sole purpose of conducting a  
     scratch cooking site from Monday through Friday, from 5:00 am to 2:00 pm,  
     (on normal Corporation work days), except holidays observed by the City. 

 
C. The Corporation shall provide all the food and other necessary materials 

for cooking and preparing the meals to be served. 
 

D. The Corporation shall provide all the kitchen utensils and equipment 
necessary for food preparation and cooking which are not currently on the 
site. 

 
E. The Corporation shall provide all the paper products, plastic silverware, 

condiments and other containers and utensils. 
 

F. The Corporation shall provide for the cleaning of the tables on a daily 
basis. 

 
G. The Corporation shall provide for all daily cleaning of the premises. 

 
H. The Corporation shall provide for the maintenance and cleaning of all 

kitchen equipment it uses as listed and provided in Section III, Paragraph 
C, whether owned by the City or the Corporation. 

 
I. The Corporation shall reimburse the City for a 25% portion of the trash 

disposal service, any cleaning of the stove and oven hoods, grease trap, 
ceiling tiles and wall washes in the kitchen within 30 days after 
presentation of the notice of the cost of those services. 

 
J. The Corporation shall reimburse the City for 50% of the cost of dumpster 

pick-up within 30 days after presentation of the notice of the cost of that 
service. 

 
K. The Corporation shall not make any building modifications and/or 

additions, including but not limited to fixtures, door, carpeting, electrical 
outlets and voice/data connections unless they are approved by the City in 



 3

advance of installation.  Those building modifications and/or additions shall 
become the property of the City at the expiration or termination of this 
Lease.  The costs associated with building modifications and/or additions 
that are necessary to make the space a viable office shall be the 
responsibility of the Corporation.  Equipment brought into the space by the 
Corporation must also be approved in advance by the City. 

 
L. The Corporation shall supply the City with copies of all claims, damage or 

accident reports received by the Corporation, its employees and/or its 
agents, whether submitted to an insurance company or not, relating to any 
damage or accident that occurred or is alleged to have occurred on City 
owned property within 24 hours of the claim. 

 
M. The Corporation shall allow the City the right to enter and/or inspect the 

kitchen area at any reasonable time and make repairs and/or 
improvements as it deems necessary.  The expense of periodic 
maintenance caused by normal wear and tear of the kitchen equipment will 
be paid by the Corporation.  Other repairs will be done at the City’s 
expense unless it is determined that the repair was necessary due to the 
misuse or negligence of the Corporation, its employees and/or agents in 
which event the Corporation shall be responsible for the costs of said 
repair.  The City will make every effort to notify the Corporation in advance 
if non-City employees will be entering onto the premises at the City’s 
request.  Any additions, repairs and/or improvements made on the 
premises shall become property of the City. 
 

N. The Corporation shall be liable for any personal property taxes assessed 
     against its equipment or inventory. 

 
O. The Corporation shall secure all necessary insurance and hold the City 

harmless as set out in Section V, Paragraphs A. and B.                                                        
 

P. The Corporation shall meet all rules and regulations of the Oakland County 
Public Health Department for the establishment and maintenance of a 
scratch cooking site and shall secure the approval of the Oakland County 
Public Health Department for the operation of the kitchen as a scratch 
cooking site. 

 
Q. The President of the Corporation or his/her designee shall meet with the 

Director of Parks and Recreation or his/her designee for the City on an 
annual basis starting in January, 2008 for the purpose of reviewing the 
adequacy of the service being provided, and as required at any other time. 

 
 

 
 



 4

SECTION V – Insurance and Indemnification 
 

A. The Corporation shall maintain liability insurance in the amount of 
two million ($2,000,000.00) dollars for any actions, claims, liability or 
damages caused to persons and/or property arising out of the 
operation and/or maintenance of the food service and use of the 
kitchen and office area in the Troy Community Center, in addition to 
product liability insurance and worker’s compensation.  All insurance 
coverage shall be approved by the City.  Certificates of Insurance 
shall comply with the sample for attached as Exhibit 2.  The City 
shall be named as an additional insured under all policies except 
worker’s compensation.  All insurance companies must be licensed 
and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  All insurance 
set out herein shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement.  
Failure to maintain coverage or to continue to maintain coverage 
shall be considered a breach of contract with immediate termination 
of the Agreement at the will of the City.  The Corporation is 
responsible for any deductibles under its policies of insurance. 

 
B. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporation agrees to 

defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of 
Troy, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers 
and others working on behalf of the City of Troy against any and all 
claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs connected 
therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or 
recovered against or from the City of Troy, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the 
City of Troy, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which 
arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with this 
contract for and for the preparation and service of meals. 

 
C. The City shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Corporation 

from any and all claims against the Corporation resulting from the 
gross negligence of the City. 

 
SECTION VI – Compliance 
 
The City and the Corporation shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and 
regulations of the Federal, State and local governments. 
 
 
SECTION VII – Discrimination Prohibited 
 
Neither the City nor the Corporation shall discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges 



 5

of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status 
pursuant to 1976 P.A. 453, Section 209.  The parties shall also comply with the 
provisions of the Michigan Handicappers Civil Rights Act, 1976 P.A. 220, and the 
Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112, which states that no employee or 
client or otherwise qualified handicapped individual shall, solely by reason of 
handicap, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 
to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 
The parties shall comply with all other Federal, State or local laws, regulations, and 
standards, and any amendments thereto, as they may apply to the performance of 
this Lease. 
 
No person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, 
height, weight, handicap, or marital status be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the proceeds of, or be subject to discrimination in the performance of this 
Lease.  The Corporation shall comply with all applicable regulations promulgated 
pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
 
SECTION VIII – General Provisions 
 

A. Merger or Integration 
 

This lease constitutes the entire contract between the parties with respect 
to the subject matter and there are no other further written or oral 
agreements with respect to this Lease. 

 
B. Termination 
 

Either party may at any time during the life of this Lease, or any extension 
thereof, terminate this Lease by giving sixty (60) days notice in writing to 
the other party of its intention to do so. 

 
C. Modification 

 
No variation or modification of the Lease, and no waiver of its provisions 
shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the duly authorized officers of 
both parties. 

 
D. Assignment or Delegation 

 
No assignment or delegation of this Lease shall be made in whole or in 
part, without the written consent of the City being first obtained. 
 

 



 6

E. Independent Contractor Provision 
 

The relationship of the Corporation to the City shall be that of an 
independent contractor.  No partnership, association or joint enterprise 
shall arise between the Corporation and the City as a result of any 
provision of this Lease, nor shall any provision be construed as making an 
employee of the Corporation an employee of the City or an employee of 
the City an employee of the Corporation. 
 

 
F. Designation of Representatives 

 
The Corporation designates its president, Kim Haveraneck or designee, as 
its representative to convey complaints and grievances pertaining to the 
execution of this Lease.  The City designates Carol Anderson, Director of 
Parks and Recreation or designee, as its representative for same. The 
Corporation representative may be reached by phone at 248-546-2700.  
The City’s representative may be reached by phone at 248-524-3484. 
 

 
G. Material Breach 

 
Any breach of promise or covenant contained herein shall be construed as 
a material breach and shall be the basis for immediate termination of this 
Lease by the non-breaching party. 

 
 
 
SECTION IX – Disputes 
 
The City shall notify the Corporation in writing of its intent to pursue a claim against 
the Corporation for breach of any terms of this Lease.  No suit may be commenced 
by the City for breach of this Lease prior to the expiration of ninety (90) days from the 
date of mailing of the notification.  Within the ninety (90) day period, the City, at the 
request of the Corporation, shall meet with an appointed representative of the 
Corporation for the purpose of attempting to resolve the dispute. 
 
 
SECTION X – Notice 

All written notices to be given under this Lease shall be mailed by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the other party at its address set forth herein or at such 
address as the party may provide in writing from time to time. Any such notice shall 
be deemed to have been received five days subsequent to mailing. 
 
 



 7

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The City and the Corporation have executed this Lease as 
of the date set forth above. 
 
 
LESSEE:      LESSOR: 
 
EMERALD FOOD SERVICES, INC.  CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 
BY:_____________________________  BY:___________________________ 
 Kim Haveraneck     Louise Schilling 
 
Position:_______President___________ Position:_____Mayor_____________ 
 
Date:____________________________  Date:_________________________ 
 
Attest:___________________________  By:___________________________ 
              Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Date:____________________________  Date:_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Troy Community Center 
Rentable Space 

Senior 
Computer 

Room 

402 
Dining 

Kitchen 

403 
404 

305 
Banquet 

Room 

304 
Banquet 

Room 

Stage 

303 
Meeting 
Room 

302 
Meeting 
Room 

301 
Meeting 
Room 

202 
Pre School 
Classroom 

201 
Pre School 
Classroom 

Administration 

Game Room 

Teen Room 

503  
Activity  
Room 

504 
Activity  
Room 

Recreation 
Storage 

EFS* 
Office 

R
estroom

s 

Loading Dock 

Prefunction Space 

Outdoor 
Play 
Area 

North Parking 

South Parking 

E
ast Parking 

North  
Entrance 

Main 
Entrance 

East 
Entrance 

Rest- 
rooms 

Restrooms 

*Emerald Food Service 

Exhibit 1 

































 1

 
 
 
December 6, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Future Land Use Plan Amendment – Rochester Road Overlay District – Both sides 

of Rochester Road, north of Long Lake Road and south of South Boulevard, 
Sections 2, 3, 11 and 12 

 
 
Background: 
 
• The approval process for a Future Land Use Plan amendment is mandated by the Michigan 

Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended. 
 
• On July 24, 2006 City Council approved distribution of the draft amendment as per the 

Michigan Planning Act.  No modifications were made to the plan amendment since this date. 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on November 14, 2006 and 

adopted the Rochester Road Overlay District amendment. 
 
• The Rochester Road Overlay District plan amendment calls for a range of uses along a portion 

of Rochester Road.  These uses, when developed with sufficient depth, would serve as a 
transition between Rochester Road and the abutting single-family residential neighborhood.   

 
• The Municipal Planning Act requires that a copy of a plan amendment shall be sent to City 

Council following approval by the Planning Commission.  Planning Commission approval is the 
final step in the amendment approval process unless City Council by resolution asserts the 
right to approve or reject the amendment.  Section 02.10.02 of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance grants the Planning Commission the authority to adopt amendments to the Future 
Land Use Plan.  Therefore, the Zoning Ordinance must be amended to alter the current Future 
Land Use Plan approval process. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• The Zoning Ordinance will need to be amended to implement the Rochester Road Overlay 

District. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• Approval of the Future Land Use Plan amendment would be consistent with City Council Goal 

II (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life 
and property). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council may continue to have the Planning Commission serve as the final authority in the 

plan amendment process.  If so, the Future Land Use Plan amendment is final. 
 
• City Council may adopt a resolution initiating a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment where City 

Council reserves the final authority to approve or reject a plan or plan amendment to City 
Council. 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Draft Rochester Road Overlay District Future Land Use Plan Amendment. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\Future Land Use Plan\ROCHESTER RD AMENDMENT\CC Memo FLUP Approval 12 18 06.doc 
 



 1

CITY OF TROY 
ROCHESTER ROAD STUDY AREA 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
ADOPTED BY PLANNING COMMISSION 11 14 06 

 
1. Study Area 

 
The study area is defined as both sides of Rochester Road, north of Square Lake 
and south of South Boulevard, approximately 2 miles in length.  The 
Rochester/South intersection is located approximately ¼ mile south of the M-59 
interchange in Rochester Hills. 

 
2. Findings/Trends 

• The study area is characterized by a mix of land uses and zoning districts 
on separate parcels (see attached existing land use maps and zoning 
maps).   

• The shallow depth of many properties fronting on Rochester Road limits 
their development potential and potentially impacts abutting residential 
property. 

• According to data prepared by Oakland County in 2003, the average daily 
traffic volumes on Rochester Road was 48,044 vehicles per day.  This 
figure has likely increased since 2003 as more development has occurred 
within the study area. 

• There are a significant number of curb cuts but few signalized 
intersections between South Boulevard and Long Lake Road. 

• The Rochester Road frontage is facing commercial and office 
development pressure. 

 
 
3. Goals 

• Reduce the number of curb cuts along Rochester Road. 
• Reduce land use conflicts between non-residential uses fronting 

Rochester Road and abutting residential property. 
• Establish Non-Center Commercial nodes in areas with an existing 

concentration of Non-Center Commercial development.  
• Encourage a mix of uses on individual parcels. 
• Discourage strip commercial or office development on narrow lots. 
 
 

4. Establishment of Rochester Road Overlay District  

The Rochester Road Overlay Zoning District should be created to further these 
goals.  An overlay designation is a zoning tool that uses as a base the specific 
zoning district attached to a parcel of land while adding optional regulations to 
those of the underlying zone.  The Rochester Road Overlay District should 
consist of the area shown on the Rochester Road Overlay District Map and 



 2

should be added to the Future Land Use Plan.  Overlay designations are useful 
for providing flexibility and encouraging mixed use development.  Within the 
Rochester Road Overlay District special regulations should be established 
relative to the permitted uses and development standards. 

 
5. Recommendations 
 
Development within the Rochester Road Overlay District incorporate the 
following standards and requirements: 
 
(a) Uses include those permitted within the underlying zoning districts.   
 
(b) The overlay provisions provide flexibility in terms of permitted uses as a 

tradeoff for high quality, innovative design. 
 
(c)  Safe pedestrian circulation are provided onsite to facilitate access 

throughout the site and to adjacent uses. 
 
(d)  To ensure a smooth transition between abutting residential property and 

more intense development fronting on Rochester Road, uses should be 
buffered with appropriate landscaping, berms or a combination thereof. 

 
(e)  Landscaping features define and reinforce site entry areas and provide a 

sense of identity for development to provide a distinct and positive image 
for the City. 

 
(f)  All new or expanded uses have access designed so as not to impede 

traffic on Rochester Road. Access via shared entrances and cross-access 
drives are required to reduce curb cuts and improve interconnectivity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Future Land Use Plan\ROCHESTER RD AMENDMENT\Rochester Rd FLUP Amend PC 
Adopted 11 14 06.doc 





 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
December 13, 2006 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Troy Daze Festival 
 
 
Background: 
 
 At the December 3rd meeting, several members of the Troy Daze Advisory Board submitted their 

resignations. 
 
 Mayor Louise Schilling suggested that a solution to challenges addressed by the former members 

of the Troy Daze Advisory Board could be worked out through discussions between the parties. 
 
 Former members of the Troy Daze Board contacted Council Members Wade Fleming and Dave 

Lambert to meet and discuss the future of the Festival.  At that meeting it was suggested that the 
members meet with Mayor Schilling for continued discussions. 

 
 Former members of the Troy Daze Board stated that they can now obtain affordable insurance 

coverage, and suggested that the operation of the Festival be returned to a newly formed private 
organization. 

 
 As history, in 1988 the Troy Daze Committee (a private organization) asked the Troy City Council 

to take over operations of the Troy Daze Festival, as the committee could not get affordable 
insurance coverage to continue the Festival. 

 
 Since 1988, the Festival has been conducted under the auspices of the City of Troy, meaning that 

Troy assumed all fiduciary and liability obligations associated with the Festival. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Return of the operation to a private committee would save the City of Troy an estimated $197,000 

in budgeted expenditures. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



Troy Daze Festival 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  December 13, 2006 

Page Two 
 
 
 
 Conversely, the 2006-2007 budget indicates the Troy Daze Festival would generate approximately 

$180,000 in operating revenues.  Consequently, the City of Troy could eliminate the possibility of 
operating losses from the budget. 

 
 By not having to be in on the planning, marketing, public relations and other ancillary functions 

that are performed by staff, the City of Troy could save hundreds of personnel hours and resultant 
monetary costs. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 If the Festival is to be held on City-owned property, adequate liability insurance coverage as 

determined by the City of Troy has to be obtained by the sponsoring agency, naming the City of 
Troy as an additional insured party for the Festival. 

 
 The Troy City Council will set the hours of operation and other measures as indicated in Chapter 

26.17 et. seq. of the Municipal Code to better ensure safety and security for the surrounding 
houses and businesses to the Festival site. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Returning the Troy Daze Festival to private sponsorship could give more of a volunteer ownership 

feel to the Festival. 
 
 Private ownership does away with City of Troy mandates such as bidding for contracts; financial 

oversight by bonded agents; and, general authority over security operations. 
 
 Due to the fact that the size and scope of the Festival is significantly larger than any other use of 

any park facilities, special processes will have to be implemented to provide for use of park 
facilities and equipment. 

 
Options: 
 
 The Council can return ownership of the Festival to a private sector group. 

 
 The Council can maintain sponsorship of the Festival under the auspices of the City of Troy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\12.18.06 - Troy Daze Festival 



 
 
 
December 13, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: TCF Bank, Reimbursement Agreement, Brownfield Plan #4 
 
 
Background: 
 
• On December 15, 2005, the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) recommended 

approval of the Brownfield Plan to Conduct Eligible Response Activities (Brownfield Plan #4) 
for TCF Bank. 

 
• On February 27, 2006, City Council conducted a public hearing and approved Brownfield Plan 

#4. 
 
• On December 12, 2006, the BRA recommended approval of a Brownfield Tax Increment 

Financing Reimbursement Agreement for TCF Bank.  TCF and the BRA executed this 
Agreement.  

 
• The contamination on the site was remediated and a TCF Bank was constructed. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The Agreement will allow for the capture of incremental tax increases due to changes of 

taxable value above the base year.  The captured taxes are generated from the capture of 
City, County and Community College millage rates.  These captured tax revenues can be used 
only for the reimbursement of eligible expenses identified by the approved Brownfield Plan #4.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to approve the Brownfield Tax Increment Financing 

Reimbursement Agreement and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The Agreement is consistent with the approved Brownfield Plan #4. 
 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal II (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal VI (Protect life and property). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the Brownfield Tax Increment Financing 

Reimbursement Agreement, as recommended by the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Reimbursement Agreement 

 
 

 
 
Prepared by MFM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Brownfield Redevelopment Authority\TCF Bank\TCF City Council 12 18 06.doc 



BROWNFIELD TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 This Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Reimbursement Agreement 
(“Agreement”) is entered into between the City of Troy Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority (“BRA”) and TCF National Bank (“TCF”) on this 
__________ day of December, 2006.   
 
  

1. On December 15, 2005, the BRA reviewed the Brownfield Plan To 
Conduct Eligible Response Activities (“Brownfield Plan #4/Brownfield 
Plan to Conduct Eligible Response Activities, dated December 8, 2005”) 
for the Proposed TCF Bank Branch, located on approximately 2 acres 
on the east side of Coolidge Highway, south of Maple Road, in the City 
of Troy, Michigan (“Property, more particularly described in Exhibit A”).  

 
2. The Property was purchased by TCF National Bank on March 7, 2006. 

 
3. The Property is an “eligible property,” as defined by the Brownfield 

Redevelopment Act, PA 381. 
 

4. On December 15, 2005, the BRA recommended approval of the 
Brownfield Plan to the Troy City Council.  

 
5. On February 27, 2006, the Troy City Council, after a public hearing, 

approved the above referenced Brownfield Plan. 
 

6. According to the Brownfield Plan #4/Brownfield Plan to Conduct 
Eligible Response Activities, dated December 8, 2005, the estimated 
costs of eligible activities for the eligible property is $489,296.00.   

 
7. Under Section 7.0 of the approved Brownfield Plan, “The costs of the 

‘eligible activities’ performed on or for the Subject Property will be 
initially funded by third party advances (commercial loan, equity) and 
reimbursed with Tax Increment Revenues under the Plan as such Tax 
Increment Revenues are generated.”   

 
8. The BRA agrees to use Brownfield tax increment revenues (not 

including school taxes) to reimburse TCF for the costs of eligible 
activities, in accordance with the terms of the approved Brownfield 
Plan.   

 
9. TCF continued the eligible activities under the assumption that upon 

the submission of an accounting of the clean up costs actually incurred 
for the site, that the BRA would reimburse TCF for the eligible costs of 



the eligible activities through the use of the Brownfield tax increment 
revenues for the Property.  

 
10. By execution of this Agreement, the BRA agrees to reimburse TCF for 

the eligible costs of eligible activities, subject to the City of Troy 
Finance Department’s determination that those costs conform with the 
conditions attached to this Agreement and the approved Brownfield 
Plan.    

 
11. To date, TCF has expended approximately $ 489,296 in eligible costs 

for eligible activities.  It is possible that there will be additional eligible 
activity costs.   

 
12. The cumulative eligible costs shall not exceed $ 489,296 in total.   

 
13. It has been agreed that the value of the property for the base year 

(2006) shall be $ 197,940.00, which is the assessed and taxable value, 
determined on 12/31/2005, for the 2006 tax year.  This amount differs 
slightly from the assessed value identified in the Brownfield Plan 
($198,900), since the Brownfield Plan included a portion of the 
property that was not taxable (detention area).     

 
14. The amount of estimated tax increment revenue is attached as Exhibit 

B, which is based on estimated increases in the taxable value of the 
Property (not including school taxes).   

 
15. The total amount of obligated reimbursement will not exceed the total 

amount of non-school tax increment revenue that is generated for the 
Property.  In other words, the Troy BRA and/or the City of Troy is not 
obligated to pay TCF and/or its successors more than the captured 
taxes generated by the amount that the Property’s taxable value 
exceeds the Property’s base taxable value of $197,940.00 (not 
including the school tax portion).   

 
16. Commencing on July 1, 2007, the tax increment revenues generated 

from the Property will begin to be captured under the Brownfield Plan.  
Under the current state statute, the maximum period of capture is 30 
years.  

 
17. In accordance with Section 16 of the Brownfield Redevelopment 

Financing Act (1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2666), the City of Troy 
Treasurer shall submit the tax increment revenues to the Troy BRA 
within 30 days of being collected. 

 











 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
December 13, 2006 
 
TO:   Troy City Council  
 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney    
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Contract for T-Mobile Cell Tower at Fire Station #6 
 
Background: 
 
 T-Mobile has approached the City, and has asked to locate a self- supporting cellular tower on a 

portion of the Property at Fire Station #6 (5901 Coolidge Road, Troy).   
 The Planning Commission granted preliminary site plan approval for the proposed tower on 

November 14, 2006.  This approval was contingent upon the City Council’s approval of an 
agreement for the lease of City owned property.  The documentation given to the Planning 
Commission is attached.   

 If Council were to approve the proposed lease, this would be the first such instance of allowing 
cell towers at City fire stations.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The City would receive rent, in accordance with the attached schedule, from T-Mobile.  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Troy’s current ordinances do not prohibit cell towers on City owned property.  Chapter 39, Section 

10.30.08 prohibits cell towers only for parks and schools.  
 A proposed lease of City owned property has been prepared for your consideration.  

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The additional revenue stream from the lease furthers Goal #1- Minimizing cost and increasing the 

efficiency of City government.   
 
Options: 
 
 Approve the proposed lease agreement.  
 Deny the proposed lease agreement.  

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



LEASE 
 

 This Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) is made this _____ day of 
____________, 2006, between T-Mobile Central LLC (hereinafter “T- Mobile”), a 
Delaware limited liability company, whose business address is 12170 Merriman 
Road, Livonia, MI 48150, and the City of Troy (hereinafter “City”), a Michigan 
municipal corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 
48084.  
 

A. City is the owner of the property located at 5901 Coolidge Highway, in 
the City of Troy, Michigan, which is legally described on the attached 
Exhibit A (“Property”). The City of Troy Fire Station #6 is currently 
located on the Property.   

 
B. T-Mobile has applied to the City to lease a portion of the Property 

(approximately 600 feet) to use in connection with its federally licensed 
communications business.  The intended lease portion of the Property 
is legally described on Exhibit B, and includes the ground space, as 
well as the air space above such ground space, together with 
unrestricted access for T-Mobile’s uses from the nearest public right of 
way along the Property to the Premises (the “Premises”).  The 
Premises will be used for the installation and operation of a 75- foot 
high free- standing tower and equipment shelter.  The Tower shall be 
constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications that are 
attached as Exhibit C, and shall be installed by T-Mobile for use by T-
Mobile in connection with its telecommunications business, and also 
for use by City and others authorized by City and T-Mobile for 
communication purposes and other non-interfering uses.  

 
C. City and T-Mobile desire to enter into this Agreement for the lease of 

the Property, upon the terms and conditions as set forth in this Lease.   
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Lease, 
T-Mobile and City agree as follows:   
 

1. Premises.  The City leases land, consisting of approximately 600 
feet, upon which T-Mobile will construct and place a seventy five 
foot self supporting wireless communications monopole tower 
(“Tower”) within the leased area.  The Tower includes an antennae 
system, communications equipment, cable wiring, and other related 
appurtenances, and also includes the construction or installation of 
an equipment shelter or cabinets, (not exceeding 21’ x 42 1/2 ‘), 
which will be built in accordance with the site plan attached as 
Exhibit C (the “Equipment Shelter”) for use by the City and T-
Mobile. The Equipment Shelter shall be constructed with a separate 
entrance, electrical outlets and utility services. The Premises also 



includes the non-exclusive use of an area extending from the 
nearest public right-of-way to the Site for reasonable access 24 
hours a day, seven days a week, and for the installation and 
maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits, and pipes 
over, under, or along such area as permitted.  Such access and 
utility area  (“Access Area”) is as described on Exhibit C.  The 
Premises will be used by T-Mobile for no other purpose than 
installing, removing, replacing, modifying, maintaining and 
operating, at its expense, a communications facility.  The foregoing 
items are collectively referred to as the “Premises”.   

 
2. No Franchise.  This Lease is not a franchise, pursuant to Article 7, 

Section 29 of the Michigan Constitution, nor is it a permit to use the 
rights-of-way under Article 2A of the Michigan Telecommunications 
Act, Act No. 216 of the Public Acts of 1995 (including any 
amendments).  Any such franchise or Act 216 permit must be 
obtained separately from City.    

 
3. Permit Requirements.  Prior to commencing construction of the 

Tower and installation of the equipment, T-Mobile shall submit 
plans and specifications to the City for City’s written approval 
(which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or 
delayed).  Such approval constitutes City’s approval under this 
Agreement, but does not constitute approval otherwise required by 
the Code of the City of Troy.  T-Mobile shall separately apply for 
any necessary governmental approvals and permits.  Construction 
of the Tower shall not commence until the City has approved plans 
for the work and all necessary permits have been properly issued.  
Following the initial installation of the Tower, T-Mobile may, at any 
time, modify, supplement, replace, remove or relocate any of the 
equipment or other appurtenances during the term of this 
Agreement.  However, any such change must conform to the plans 
approved by the City and undergo an administrative review by the 
City prior to construction, which consent will not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed.  City’s consent shall not be 
required where the modification is non-structural in nature or 
involves the replacement of substantially similar equipment. 

 
4. Term and Renewals.  This Lease shall be effective as of the date 

that it is executed by the last of the parties to sign.  The initial term 
of this Lease is five years from the effective date.  Provided T-
Mobile is not then in default under this Lease, this Lease shall be 
automatically renewed for up to three (3) successive renewal terms 
of five (5) years each at the expiration of each preceding term, 
unless Tenant notifies Landlord in writing at least one hundred 
twenty (120) days prior to expiration of the then current term of the 



Lease.  Each renewal shall be on the same terms and conditions as 
are contained in this Lease, except that the rental rate shall be 
adjusted as provided on Exhibit C of this Lease, and there shall be 
no renewal after the final renewal term.   

 
5. Rent and Other Consideration.  T-Mobile shall pay City an annual 

rent in advance of the year that the Lease is in effect, in 
accordance with the rental specified on Exhibit C.  T-Mobile shall 
pay City the first annual rent obligation on or before the 
commencement date, which is the first date of the month following 
the date T-Mobile is granted a building permit by City.  Thereafter, 
each annual rent, as specified in the schedule, shall be paid on the 
anniversary of the commencement date.  All Rent shall be paid 
without offset.   

 
a. T-Mobile shall pay City a late payment charge equal to five 

(5%) percent of the late payment for any payment not paid 
when due.  Any amounts not paid when due shall also bear 
interest until paid at the lesser of the rate of two (2%) 
percent per month or the highest rate permitted by law.   

 
b. To the extent that City desires to purchase services from T- 

Mobile, T-Mobile shall offer services to City at the most 
favorable rate and terms that T-Mobile offers to any other 
municipality.   

 
c. T-Mobile agrees to use its best efforts to collocate future 

facilities and minimize the number of new towers in City.  
      

6. Use of Premises, Public Safety Concerns. T-Mobile’s use of the 
Premises shall be limited to the installation, construction, operation, 
maintenance, and repair of a telecommunications tower, equipment 
shelter, related facilities, antennae or buildings and for no other 
purposes.  T-Mobile understands that City uses the Property for 
public safety purposes, and T-Mobile’s use of the Premises shall 
not interfere with City’s use of the Property.  Public safety 
considerations shall be afforded paramount importance.  

 
7. Inspections.  Commencing on the Effective Date, City shall permit 

T-Mobile and its employees, agents, and sub-contractors to 
conduct subsurface boring tests, environmental inspections, radio 
frequency tests, and such other tests, investigations, and similar 
activities as T-Mobile may deem necessary, at the sole cost of T-
Mobile.  T-Mobile shall notify City of any such test in advance, 
however, and shall obtain the City’s consent, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. T-Mobile shall restore any property or soil 



disturbed by such activities.  T-Mobile shall indemnify and hold City 
harmless against any loss or damage for personal injury or physical 
damage to the Premises or the Property, or the property of third 
parties resulting from any inspections. Upon written request, T-
Mobile shall furnish to City copies of the environmental findings 
concerning the Property.  Prior to the commencement of the 
inspections, T-Mobile shall furnish City with the insurance required 
by this Lease.  

   
8. Reservation by City.  T-Mobile shall construct the tower, in 

accordance with the attached specifications.  T-Mobile shall be able 
to utilize the Tower for its intended purpose.  However, if City 
requires a change in T-Mobile’s antenna locations on the Tower to 
accommodate the City’s own needs, then City shall provide written 
notice of the required change to T-Mobile.   Upon receipt of said 
notice, T-Mobile shall move such antennae, subject to City’s 
supervision, in accordance with the following provisions:  

 
a. If City requires T-Mobile to move its antenna(e) locations, 

the City shall give T-Mobile at least sixty (60) days notice, 
which notice shall contain the location on the Tower that T-
Mobile can occupy.   

 
b. If City requires T-Mobile to move its antenna(e) locations, 

then the new location on the Tower that will not interfere with 
the City’s use must be in compliance with applicable rules 
and regulations of the Federal Communications Commission 
(“FCC”) and will provide similar coverage. 

 
c. Any movement of Tenant’s antenna(e) shall not serve to 

increase or decrease the Rent to be paid by Tenant.  
 
d. At the request of City, T-Mobile shall at City’s reasonable 

cost and only with City’s prior approval, obtain the written 
opinion of a licensed structural engineer and/or electronics 
engineer in good standing with the State of Michigan.  This 
opinion shall determine that the new location of the 
antenna(e) is structurally appropriate and will not interfere 
with the communication requirements of other Tower users, 
including City. 

 
9. Required Compliance with laws.  T-Mobile shall, at its expense, 

comply with all present and future federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations (including but not limited to laws 
and ordinances relating to health, safety, radio frequency 
emissions, and radiation) in connection with the use, operation, 



maintenance, construction and/or installation of the Premises.  In 
connection with any required approvals or extensions, City agrees 
to cooperate with T-Mobile in obtaining, at T-Mobile’s expense, all 
licenses, permits and authorizations required for T-Mobile’s use of 
the Premises from all applicable governmental and regulatory 
entities (the “Governmental Approvals”).     

 
10. City’s Use of Premises. The Tower, installed by T-Mobile, shall be 

conveyed to the City, who shall have the right to use the Premises 
and the proportion of the Tower allocated to the City for any lawful 
purpose.  In addition, City shall have the right to lease the Tower to 
other users for commercial purposes (except for that part occupied 
or served by Tenant), subject to review by City and T-Mobile to 
determine that the proposed use will not unreasonably interfere 
with either’s operation.  The person seeking to install the additional 
antennae upon the Tower shall provide at its expense sufficient 
information as may be required by City and T-Mobile to determine 
that the new proposed use will not interfere with the use of the 
Tower by the City or T-Mobile or cause any adverse effect on the 
structural integrity of the Tower.  All rental income derived from the 
Tower and Premises shall be payable to City, and the terms and 
conditions of any such agreement must be approved by City and 
Tenant shall not unreasonably withhold its approval of any such 
use.   

 
11. T-Mobile’s Improvements; T-Mobile’s Use of Tower.  After the 

Commencement Date, and after obtaining site plan approval for the 
Tower and having it delivered to the Premises, T-Mobile shall 
construct the Tower and the Equipment Shelter as shown on the 
attached Exhibits within ninety (90) days thereafter.  The Tower and 
related facilities shall be so constructed to be able to accommodate 
the antennae of T-Mobile and an additional antenna for the City.  
The Equipment Shelter shall be for use by T-Mobile and City.  The 
Equipment Shelter shall be constructed of brick materials to match 
the existing building on the Property or of other suitable materials 
approved by the Troy City Manager or his/her designee.  T-Mobile 
shall also construct all ancillary support facilities as set forth in the 
Specifications as set forth in Exhibit E, within the time period 
specified above.  Prior to commencing construction, T-Mobile shall 
submit plans and specifications for all improvements to City for 
City’s written approval, such approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld.  Prior to commencing construction, T-Mobile shall also 
provide City with the name of the contractor that will be constructing 
the improvements.  The contractor is subject to the prior written 
approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  All improvements shall be constructed in a workmanlike 



manner without the attachment of any liens to the Premises and 
shall be completed in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, 
ordinances and regulations.  The Tower shall remain the property 
of the City.   

 
12. Net Lease.  City shall not be required to make any expenditures of 

any kind in connection with this Lease or to make any maintenance, 
repairs or improvements to the Premises.  In addition to the Rent 
reserved above, T-Mobile shall pay all taxes (personal and real 
property taxes, if any), assessments, insurance premiums, 
maintenance charges, and any other charges, costs and expenses 
against the Premises that may be contemplated under any 
provisions of this Lease.  All such payments shall be made, and 
evidence of all such payments shall be provided to City at least ten 
(10) days prior to the delinquency date of the payment.  If the 
number of commercial users shall change during the term of this 
Lease, the proportionate share of the expense shall be adjusted 
accordingly between any commercial users (except City).  

 
13. Signs.  T-Mobile shall not place any signs on the Premises without 

City’s written approval.  City, in its sole discretion, shall have the 
right to withhold approval of any sign that is not compatible with 
City’s use and development of the Property.  

 
14. Maintenance.   T-Mobile shall, at its own expense, maintain the 

Premises and all improvements, equipment and other personal 
property installed upon the Premises by T-Mobile in good working 
order, condition and repair.  If the number of commercial users 
(except City) shall change during the term of this Lease, the 
proportionate share of the expense shall be adjusted accordingly 
between any commercial users.  T-Mobile shall provide itemized 
statements for the maintenance work if requested by City or any 
user of the Tower.  T-Mobile shall submit to Landlord and other 
users of the Tower an annual inspection report prepared by a 
competent tower inspection company regarding the integrity and 
maintenance of the Tower.  Costs of the annual inspection report 
shall be prorated among the commercial users (except City) of the 
Tower.  

 
15. Access.  City and its agents shall have the right to enter the 

Premises at reasonable times to examine and inspect the 
Premises.  T-Mobile shall have access to the Premises 24 hours a 
day, 7 days per week, provided it does not interfere with City’s 
operations on the Premises.  

 



16. Utilities.  T-Mobile shall at its sole expense provide any utility 
service to the Premises that it desires.  If there are additional users 
of the Tower, each user’s utility usage shall be separately metered.  
T-Mobile shall timely pay all charges for its usage of utilities to the 
Premises during the term of the Lease.  

 
17. License Fees.  T-Mobile shall pay, as they become due and 

payable, all fees, charges, taxes and expenses required for 
licenses and/or permits required for or occasioned by T-Mobile’s 
use of the Premises.   

 
18. Broadcast Interference.  

 
a. Definition.  As used in this Lease, “interference” with a 

broadcasting activity means:   
 

i. Interference within the meaning of the provisions of 
recommended practices of the Electronics Industries 
Associations (EIA) and the rules and regulations of 
the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) then 
in effect, or 

  
ii. A material impairment of the quality of either sound or 

picture signals on a broadcasting activity as may be 
defined by the FCC at any hour during the period of 
operation of activity, as compared with that which 
would be obtained if no other broadcaster were 
broadcasting with the Property or had any equipment 
on the Property.  

 
b. T-Mobile shall take reasonable actions to prevent and 

properly remove any interference with broadcast activities of 
City or other tenants of City caused by T-Mobile’s use of the 
Premises.  City shall take reasonable actions to prevent and 
promptly remove or cause to be removed any interference 
with T-Mobile’s broadcast activities caused by City or City’s 
lessees, licensees, invitees, or agents.  

 
19. Default and City’s Remedies.  

 
a. It shall be a default if: 

 
i. T-Mobile defaults in the payment of any sums to City 

when due, and does not cure such default within ten 
(10) days.  



ii. T-Mobile defaults in the performance of any other 
covenant or condition of this Lease and does not cure 
such other default within thirty (30) days after written 
notice from City specifying the default complained of.  

iii. T-Mobile abandons or vacates the Premises.  
iv. T-Mobile is adjudicated a bankrupt or makes any 

assignment for the benefit of creditors.  
v. T-Mobile becomes insolvent or City reasonably 

believes itself to be insecure.    
 

b. In the event of a default under this Lease by T-Mobile, City 
shall be entitled to any remedies provided under this Lease 
and as shall then be provided by law; except that City shall 
not be entitled to any personal property (including fixtures) 
on the property except those to which City is entitled at the 
end of the term of the Lease; provided that prior to and as a 
condition precedent to the exercise of any remedy, City shall 
give to T-Mobile written notice of default and the nature of 
the default and T-Mobile shall have thirty (30) days (or if the 
default cannot be cured within thirty (30) days a longer 
period as shall be necessary to cure the default acting with 
due diligence) after receipt of the notice within which to cure 
the default during which period no remedy shall be pursued.  

 
c. For a breach of any provision of this Lease requiring that the 

use be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, or standards, including but not limited to FCC 
rules and regulations, interference standards, environmental 
laws, or health protection laws, rules or regulations, City 
may, in addition to any other remedy it may have under this 
Lease or at law, obtain a temporary restraining order and 
preliminary injunction compelling it to cease and desist all 
operations on the Leased Premises until further order of the 
Court, since City does not have an adequate remedy at law.  
Prior to invoking such remedy, T-Mobile shall be given a 
thirty (30) day notice of the alleged default so that it may 
cure such default.  

 
d. Re-entry and taking of possession of the Premises by City 

shall not be construed as an election on City’s part to 
terminate this Lease, regardless of the extent of renovations 
and alterations by City, unless a written notice of such 
intention is given to T-Mobile by City.  Notwithstanding any 
re-letting without termination, City may at any time thereafter 
elect to terminate this Lease for such previous breach.  



e. If suit shall be brought by City to recover possession of the 
Premises, or to recover of any rent or any other amount due 
under the provisions of this Lease, or because of the breach 
of any other covenant, T-Mobile shall pay to the Landlord all 
expenses incurred therefore, including reasonable attorney 
fees. 

  
20. Cure by City. In the event of any default of this Lease by T-Mobile, 

the City may at any time, after notice, cure the default for the 
account of and at the expense of the T-Mobile.  If City is compelled 
to pay or elects to pay any sum of money or to do any act which will 
require the payment of any sum of money or is compelled to incur 
any expense, including reasonable attorney fee, in instituting, 
prosecuting, or defending any action to enforce the City’s rights 
under this Lease, the sums so paid by City, with all interest, costs, 
and damages shall be deemed to be Additional Rental and shall be 
due from T-Mobile to City on the first day of the month following the 
incurring of the respective expenses.  

 
21. Damage or Destruction. If the Tower or any portion of the Tower 

is destroyed or damaged so as to materially hinder effective use of 
the Tower due to an “act of God” or other cause which is not the 
fault of the City, City may elect to terminate this Lease if T-Mobile  
does not repair or restore the Premises within one hundred twenty 
(120) days of written notice to T-Mobile of the damage or 
destruction.  City agrees to reasonably extend this period of time if 
T-Mobile has diligently pursued such repair or restoration, but has 
been unable to complete such work for reasons beyond its control.  
In such event, all rights and obligations of the parties shall cease as 
of the date of the damage or destruction.   

 
22. Indemnity and Insurance.  

 
a. Disclaimer of Liability. City shall not at any time be liable 

for injury or damage occurring to any person or property 
from any cause whatsoever arising out of T-Mobile’s 
construction, maintenance, repair, use, operation, condition, 
or dismantling of the Premises.  

 
b. Indemnification.  T-Mobile shall, at its sole cost and 

expense, indemnify and hold City (and its officers, boards, 
commissions, employees, agents, and contractors) harmless 
from and against:  

 
i. Any and all liability, obligation, damages, penalties, 

claims, liens, costs, charges, losses and expenses 



(including, without limitation, reasonable fees and 
expenses of attorneys, expert witnesses and 
consultants), which may be imposed upon, incurred 
by or be asserted against the Indemnitees by reason 
of any act or omission of T-Mobile, its personnel, 
employees, agents, contractors or subcontractors, 
resulting in personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, 
disease or death to any person or damage to, loss of 
or destruction of tangible or intangible property, libel, 
slander, invasion of privacy, and unauthorized use of 
any trademark, trade name, copyright, patent, service 
mark or any other right of any person, firm or 
corporation, which may arise out of or be in any way 
connected with the construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance, use or condition of the 
Premises or the T-Mobile’s failure to comply with any 
federal, state or local statute, ordinance or regulation.  

 
ii. Any and all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, 

claims, liens, costs, charges, losses and expenses, 
(including, without limitation, reasonable fees and 
expenses of attorneys, expert witnesses and other 
consultants), which are imposed upon, incurred by or 
asserted against the Indemnitees reason of any claim 
or lien arising out of work, labor, materials or supplies 
provided or supplied to T-Mobile, its contractors or 
sub-contractors, for the installation, construction, 
operation, maintenance or use of the Premises.  Upon 
written request of the City, T-Mobile shall cause such 
claim or lien on City’s property to be discharged or 
bonded within thirty (30) days following such request.   

   
c. Notice, Cooperation and Expenses.  City shall give T-

Mobile prompt notice of the making of any claim or the 
commencement of any action, suit or other proceeding 
covered by the provisions of this paragraph.  Nothing shall 
be deemed to prevent City from cooperating with T-Mobile 
and participating in the defense of any litigation by City’s 
own counsel.  T-Mobile shall pay all expenses incurred by 
City in response to any such actions, suits or proceedings.  
These expenses shall include all out-of-pocket expenses 
such as attorney fees and shall also include the reasonable 
value of any services rendered by the City’s attorney, and 
the actual expenses of City’s agents, employees, or expert 
witnesses, and disbursements and liabilities assumed by 
City in connection with such suits, actions, or proceedings, 



but shall not include attorneys fees for services that are 
unnecessarily duplicative of services provided by T-Mobile.    

  
d. Insurance.  During the term of the Lease, T-Mobile shall 

maintain, or cause to be maintained, in full force and effect 
and at its sole cost and expense, the following types and 
limits of insurance:   

 
i. Worker’s compensation insurance meeting Michigan 

statutory requirements.  
 

ii. Comprehensive commercial general liability insurance 
with minimum limits of Three Million ($3,000,000) 
Dollars as the combined single limit for each 
occurrence of bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage.  The policy shall provide blanket 
contractual liability insurance for all written contracts, 
and shall include coverage for completed operations 
liability, independent contractor’s liability; coverage for 
property damage from perils of explosion, collapse or 
damage to underground utilities, commonly known as 
XCU coverage.  

 
iii. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, 

hired, and non-owned vehicles in use by T-Mobile, its 
employees and agents, with personal protection 
insurance and property protection insurance to 
comply with the provisions of the Michigan No-Fault 
Insurance Law, including residual liability, insurance 
with minimum limits of One Million ($1,000,000) 
Dollars as the combined single limit for each 
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  

 
iv. Property insurance in the full insurable replacement 

value of the Tower, Equipment Shelter and related 
facilities.   

 
v. At the start of and during the period of any 

construction, builders all-risk insurance, together with 
an installation floater or equivalent property coverage 
covering cables, materials, machinery and supplies of 
any nature whatsoever which are to be used in or 
incidental to the installation of the Tower.   Upon 
completion of the installation of the Tower, T-Mobile 
shall substitute for the foregoing insurance policies of 
fire, extended coverage and vandalism and malicious 



mischief insurance on the Premises.  The amount of 
insurance at all times shall be representative of the 
insurable values installed or constructed.   

 
vi. Business interruption insurance coverage in an 

amount sufficient to cover such loss of revenues, for 
the period of time which it would take, under normal 
circumstances, to repair and replace that part(s) of 
the Premises which is damaged and causes the loss 
of revenue.   

 
vii. All policies other than those for Worker’s 

Compensation shall be written on an occurrence and 
not on a claims made basis. 

 
viii. The coverage amounts set forth above may be met by 

a combination of underlying and umbrella policies, so 
long as in combination the limits equal or exceed 
those stated.    

  
e. Named Insured.   All policies, except for business 

interruption and worker’s compensation policies, shall name 
City and its agents, employees, officers and subcontractors 
(herein referred to as the “Additional Insured”).  Each policy 
which is to be endorsed to add Additional Insured hereunder 
shall contain cross-liability wording, as follows:  

 
 In the event of a claim being made hereunder by one insured 

for which another insured is or may be liable, then this policy 
shall cover such insured against whom a claim is or may be 
made in the same manner as if separate policies had been 
issued to each insured hereunder.  

  
f. Evidence of Insurance.  Certificates of insurance for the 

insurance coverage required by this Lease, along with 
written evidence of payment of required premiums, shall be 
submitted to the City annually for the term of the Lease.  
Alternatively, T-Mobile shall provide City with evidence of 
participation in a satisfactory self-insurance program. T-
Mobile shall immediately advise City of any claim or litigation 
that may result in liability to City.  

 
g. Cancellation of Policies of Insurance.  All insurance 

policies maintained pursuant to this Lease shall contain the 
following endorsement:   

 



 At least thirty (30) days prior written notice shall be given to 
City by the insurer of any intention not to renew such policy 
or to cancel, replace or materially alter same, such notice to 
be given by registered mail to the parties named in this 
paragraph of the Lease.  

 
h. Insurance Companies.  All insurance shall be provided by 

insurers licensed to do business by the State of Michigan, 
which are satisfactory to City.  

  
i. Deductibles.  All insurance policies may be written with 

deductibles, not to exceed $50,000 unless approved in 
advance by City.  T-Mobile agrees to indemnify and hold City 
harmless from and against the payment of any deductible 
and from the payment of any premium on any insurance 
policy required by this Lease.  

   
j. Contractors.  T-Mobile shall require that each and every 

one of its contractors and their subcontractors carry 
appropriate limits of insurance, and maintain said insurance 
in full force and effect.   This includes workers’ 
compensation, comprehensive public liability and automotive 
liability insurance coverage of the type that T-Mobile is 
required to obtain under the terms of this Lease.    

  
k. Review of Limits.  Once during each calendar year during 

the term of this Lease, City may review the insurance 
coverage to be carried by T-Mobile.  If City determines that 
higher limits of coverage are necessary to protect the 
interests of City, T-Mobile shall be so notified and shall 
obtain the additional limits of insurance, at its sole cost and 
expense.   

 
23. Hazardous Substance Indemnification.  City and T-Mobile 

represent and warrant that their respective use of the Premises will 
not generate any hazardous substance, and they will not store or 
dispose on the Premises nor transport to or over the Premises any 
hazardous substance.  Each party further agrees to hold the other 
harmless from and indemnify such party against any release of any 
such hazardous substance and any damage, loss, or expense or 
liability resulting from such release, including all attorney fees, 
costs and penalties incurred as a result thereof except any release 
caused by the negligence of the releasing party, its employees or 
agents.  “Hazardous substance” shall be interpreted broadly to 
mean any substance or material defined or designated as 
hazardous or toxic waste, hazardous or toxic material, hazardous 



or toxic or radioactive substance, or other similar term by any 
federal, state or local environmental law, regulation or rule 
presently in effect or promulgated in the future, as such laws, 
regulations or rules may be amended from time to time; and it shall 
be interpreted to include, but not be limited to, any substance which 
after release into the environment will or may reasonably be 
anticipated to cause sickness, death or disease.   

 
24. Holding Over.  Any holding over after the expiration of the term 

hereof, with the consent of the City, shall be construed to be a 
tenancy from month to month, and T-Mobile shall pay a pro-rated 
monthly rate that is equal to two times the annual rental amount 
required in the previous year of the Lease.  All other Lease terms 
and conditions are applicable.    

 
25. Removal of Equipment; Restoration.  Except as otherwise 

provided herein, upon the expiration of this Lease, or the earlier 
termination and cancellation of this Lease by T-Mobile for any 
reason, T-Mobile may remove all of its antennae, equipment and 
other personal property located within the Equipment Shelter, and 
fixtures, including but not limited to its transmitting and receiving 
equipment, transmitting and receiving antennae and transmission 
lines.  The Tower and the Equipment Shelter will remain at the 
Leased Premises and, if requested by City, T-Mobile shall convey 
the Equipment Shelter to the Landlord for One ($1.00) dollar at 
City’s option upon the termination of the Agreement.  If requested 
by the City, T-Mobile shall remove the Equipment Shelter and 
Tower within ninety (90) days of the termination of this Lease, at its 
sole cost.  Conveyance of the Equipment Shelter shall be by an 
instrument approved by the City Attorney.  T-Mobile shall not 
remove any improvements which are required to be or which have 
been conveyed to the City, pursuant to this Lease.  All removals 
that T-Mobile is required to make shall be completed within ninety 
(90) days after the effective date of expiration or other termination.  
T-Mobile shall restore the Property to substantially the same 
condition as existed as of the commencement of the term of this 
Lease, reasonable wear and tear excepted, provided, however, that 
T-Mobile will remove any driveways, sidewalks and foundation if 
requested by City, in accordance with City’s codes ordinances and 
regulations.  Underground piping or wiring or any other fixtures or 
improvements shall be reduced to a depth of not less than one foot 
below ground level, unless City imposes other requirements under 
its applicable codes.  T-Mobile shall not remove any security fence 
unless otherwise requested by City, and any such fence shall 
become the property of the City.  In the event that the T-Mobile fails 
to remove any improvements it installed on the Property that it is 



required or entitled to remove within ninety (90) days of the 
termination of the Lease, City may do so, and charge the 
reasonable costs of the removal to T-Mobile.  

 
26. Removal Bond. Upon termination of the Lease, T-Mobile shall 

provide a letter of credit, cash deposit or other security satisfactory 
to the City Attorney, in an amount determined by a licensed 
structural engineer, to cover the cost of removing the Tower, 
Equipment Shelter and related facilities, as required under Section 
25.   

 
27. Acceptance of Premises. By taking possession of the Premises, 

T-Mobile accepts the Premises in the condition existing as of the 
Commencement Date.  City makes no representation or warranty 
with respect to the condition of the Premises and City shall not be 
liable for any latent or patent defect in the Premises.  

 
28. Notices.   All notices, requests, demands, and other 

communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
given if personally delivered or mailed, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the following addresses:  

 
If to Landlord, to:  
 
City Manager, City of Troy  
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  
Troy, MI 48084 
 
With a copy to:  
 
City Attorney, City of Troy  
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  
Troy, MI 48084 
 
If to T- Mobile, to:   
 
 
 
 
With a copy to:   
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 

 



29. Assignment and Subletting.  T-Mobile shall not assign this Lease 
in whole or in part, or sublet all or any part of the Premises without 
City’s prior written consent, except that it is permissible to assign 
such Lease to a parent or subsidiary of T-Mobile or to any entity 
with purchases substantially all of the assets of the T-Mobile.  
Consent by City to any assignment or subletting shall not constitute 
a waiver of the necessity of such consent to any subsequent 
assignment or subletting.  This prohibition against any assignment 
or subletting shall not be construed to include a prohibition against 
any subletting or assignment by operation of law.  If this Lease is 
assigned, or if the Premises or any part thereof is sublet or 
occupied by anyone other than T-Mobile, City may collect rent from 
the assignee, subtenant or occupant and apply the net amount 
collected to the rent and other obligations of T-Mobile, but no 
assignment, subletting, occupancy or collection shall be deemed a 
waiver or release of T-Mobile from further performance of the 
covenants on the part of T-Mobile.  Notwithstanding any 
assignment or sublease, T-Mobile shall remain fully liable on this 
Lease and shall not be released from performing any of the terms, 
covenants, and conditions of this Lease.  Any person or entity to 
which this Lease is assigned pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, 11 
USC Section 101 et. seq., shall be deemed without further act to 
have assumed all of the obligations of T-Mobile arising under this 
Lease on and after the date of such assignment.  Any such 
assignee shall upon demand execute and deliver to City an 
instrument confirming such assumption.  Any monies or other 
considerations payable or otherwise to be delivered in connection 
with such assignment shall be paid to City, shall be the exclusive 
property of City, and shall not constitute property of T-Mobile or of 
the estate of T-Mobile within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code.  
Any monies or other considerations constituting City’s property 
under the preceding sentence not paid or delivered to City shall be 
held in trust for the benefit of City and be promptly paid to City. 

 
30. Successors and Assigns.  This Lease shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns.  

 
31. Co-Location.   T-Mobile agrees to allow the Landlord to use space 

upon the Tower, provided the use does not unreasonably interfere 
with T-Mobile’s use.  It is also possible that other commercial 
carriers could co-locate on the Tower, provided such use does not 
unreasonably interfere with T-Mobile’s use.  Any rent received from 
these additional carriers would be payable to the City.  Such 
collocation and terms by additional users shall be subject to review 
and approval by City, as required by this Lease.  



 
32. Contact Person; Notice of Change.   In order to have City be able 

to contact T-Mobile at any time with respect to the construction or 
operation of the Tower or its ancillary facilities, it is imperative that 
the City have a current contact person and current phone number 
of such contact person at all times. T-Mobile has designated the 
following person with the following phone number as the contact 
person in charge of the oversight of construction and operation of 
the Tower:   

 
 

T-Mobile shall advise Tenant with 24 hours of any change in either 
the contact person or the phone number of the contact person.  

 
33. Lease Memorandum.  The parties may also execute a 

Memorandum of Lease for recording. 
 

34. Termination.  
 
a. By T-Mobile.  T-Mobile may terminate this Lease by notice to 

City, without further liability, if T-Mobile does not obtain 
within sixty (60) days all permit or other approvals 
(collectively, “approved”) required from any governmental 
authority or any easements required from any third party to 
operate the PCS system (provided T-Mobile has diligently 
pursued obtaining such approval or easements in good faith, 
or if City does not have proper ownership of the Premises, or 
authority to enter into this Lease).  

 
b. By City. City may terminate this Lease for any default by T-

Mobile in its obligations under this Lease.   
 

35. Miscellaneous.  
 

a. City and T-Mobile represent that each, respectively, has full 
right, power and authority to execute this Lease.  

 
b. This Lease constitutes the entire agreement and 

understanding of the parties and supersedes all offers, 
negotiations, and other agreements of any kind.  There are 
no representations or understandings of any kind not set 
forth.  Any modification of or amendment to this Lease must 
be in writing and executed by both parties. 

 
c. This Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Michigan.  



d. If any term of this Lease is found to be void or invalid, such 
invalidity shall not effect the remaining terms of this Lease, 
which shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
e. T-Mobile agrees to look solely to the interest of City in the 

Premises for the satisfaction of any judgment against City, 
as a result of any breach by City of its obligations under this 
Lease.  No other City property shall be subject to levy or 
execution as a result of any claim by T-Mobile against City, 
arising out of the relationship created by this Lease.   

 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease on the 
date set forth below.  
 
 
WITNESS:      .  
 
_______________________  _________________________ 
 
      By:     

Its:    
   

_______________________  
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
____________, 2006 by ____________________________________________.  
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 
       ___________ County, ________ 
       My Commission Expires _______  
 



 
 
 
WITNESS:       CITY OF TROY 
 
   _________________________  By:  _______________________ 

       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
        
  _________________________  By:  _______________________ 

     Tonni L. Bartholomew 
     City Clerk  
 
 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ______ day of 
____________, 2006 by the Mayor of the City of Troy, and Tonni L. 
Bartholomew, Troy City Clerk.     
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 
       ___________ County, Michigan 
       My Commission Expires _______  
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

RENT 
 

Years 1-3        Annual Rent 
 
 

1. July 1, 2006- June 30, 2007    $16,800 
2. July 1, 2007- June 30, 2008    $16,800 
3. July 1, 2008- June 30, 2009    $16,800 
 
Years 5-9 
 
4. July 1, 2009- June 30, 2010    $19,200 
5. July 1, 2010- June 30, 2011    $19,200 
6. July 1, 2011- June 30, 2012     $19,200 
7. July 1, 2012- June 30, 2013    $19,200 
8. July 1, 2013- June 30, 2014    $19,200 

 
Years 9-13 

 
9. July 1, 2014- June 30, 2015    $21,600 
10. July 1, 2015- June 30, 2016    $21,600 
11. July 1, 2016- June 30, 2017    $21,600 
12. July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018    $21,600 
13. July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019    $21,600 
 
Years 14-16 

 
14. July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020    $24,000 
15. July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021    $24,000 
16. July 1, 2021-June 30, 2022    $24,000 

 
 



DATE: November 8, 2006 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 340) – 

Proposed T-Mobile Cellular Tower at Troy Fire Station No. 6, 5901 
Coolidge Road, Located west of Coolidge, south of I-75, Section 7 – R-1B  

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of owner / applicant: 
The owner is the City of Troy.  The applicant is T-Mobile.  
  
Location of subject property: 
The property is located at 5901 Coolidge Road, west of Coolidge, south of I-75, in 
section 7. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 5.9 acres in area.  
 
Current and proposed use of subject parcel: 
Troy Fire Station No. 6 presently sits on the property.  The applicant is proposing a 75-
foot high tower with antennae.  Note that City Council will need to approve the contract 
with T-Mobile to permit the establishment of the cellular tower on City property, following 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Interstate I-75. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
R-1B One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North:  R-1A (north of Interstate I-75). 
South: R-1B One Family Residential. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1B One Family Residential. 

 1



Future Land Use Plan designation: 
 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Public & Quasi-Public – Fire 
Station. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1B District: 
Lot Area:  15,000 square feet required.  5.9 acres provided. 
 
Lot Width: 100 feet required.  421.77 feet provided.  
 
Height: The proposed structure height is 75 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Freestanding tower structures must be set back at least 5 times the height 

of the structure from residentially zoned or used property feet, or 375 feet.  
The distances to residential property lines are as follows: 
 North: 451.77 feet. 

  South: 390 feet. 
 East: 375 feet. 
 West: 375 feet. 

  
The application meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1B District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
There is no parking space standard for freestanding tower structures.  The applicant 
has provided two spaces for maintenance vehicles.   
 
Vehicular and non-motorized access: 
Access to the tower structure is provided by a 24-foot wide access easement between 
Coolidge and the tower entry drive. 
 
Storm water detention: 
The tower and related structures and hard surfaces will not generate a significant 
amount of storm water runoff.   
 
Environmental provisions: 
The tower will be surrounded by a 6-foot high wooden fence. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates that there are no significant natural features located 
on the property.  
 
Special Use Approval Standards (Section 03.31.05): 
The application meets the following Special Use Approval Standards: 

 2



 
(A) The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size and 

character as to be compatible with the orderly development or use of 
adjacent land and/or Districts. 

 
(B) The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity 

limitations of the existing or proposed public services and facilities, which 
serve its location. 

 
Special Use Approval Standards for freestanding tower structures (Section 10.30.08): 
The application meets the Special Use Standards for 10.30.08.   
 
Compatibility with adjacent land uses: 
The tower structure is a minimum of 375 feet from residential property and 
approximately 475 feet from the nearest home.  Existing trees on the property will assist 
in shielding the tower from the southwest. 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM INTERNAL REVIEW 
 
Engineering Department: 
“No objections”. 
 
Transportation Engineer:   
“Please ask petitioner if it would be OK to place a camera on their pole for freeway 
surveillance”. 
 
Department of Public Works:  
“OK”. 
 
Building Department:   
“Is the equipment enclosure large enough for co-location?  Special use approval 
required”. 
 
Environmental Specialist:   

“1. Must apply for a soil erosion permit from the City of Troy Engineering 
Department (Part 91, PA 451). 

1. No wetland issues. 
2. No floodplain issues”. 

 
Fire Department:   
“OK”. 
 
Parks and Recreation: 
“Tree preservation plan approved. 
No landscaping required”. 

 3



Police Department 
No comments provided. 
 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the Special Use Request and Site Plan with 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall provide financial assurances, in a form acceptable to the City 

Manager, that the communication tower shall be removed from the site within one 
(1) year of the date that its use ceases, as per Section 10.30.08.I.2 of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. To minimize the impact of communication towers on the City of Troy, the 

applicant shall provide for future collocation of wireless communication 
equipment on the tower per 10.30.08.J of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File\SU 340 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU-340 T-Mobile Cellular Tower Sec 7\SU-340 T-Mobile PC Report 11 14 06.doc 

 4



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



FA
IR

C
A

STLE

S
P

R
IN

G
BR

O
O

K FA
RM

BRO
OK

N I75

S I75

FLEETWOOD

FORDHAMHIDDEN FOREST

W SQUARE LAKE

BELM
O

N
T

HEARTHSIDE

G
R

E
E

N
H

ILL

C
LE

A
R

V
IE

W

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E
 H

W
Y

HAVERFORD

SPECIAL USE REQUEST
T MOBILE CELL TOWER
SW CORNER OF COOLDIGE & I-75
5901 COOLIDGE (FIRE STATION #6)
SEC. 7  (SU-340)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



FA
IR

C
A

STLE

S
P

R
IN

G
BR

O
O

K FA
RM

BRO
OK

N I75

S I75

FLEETWOOD

FORDHAMHIDDEN FOREST

W SQUARE LAKE

BELM
O

N
T

HEARTHSIDE

G
R

E
E

N
H

ILL

C
LE

A
R

V
IE

W

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E
 H

W
Y

HAVERFORD

(R-1A)

(R-1B) (R-1C)

SPECIAL USE REQUEST
T MOBILE CELL TOWER
SW CORNER OF COOLDIGE & I-75
5901 COOLIDGE (FIRE STATION #6)
SEC. 7  (SU-340)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³









































































































































































 1 
 

 
 

 
 
 
December 11, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Article 

35.00.00 Planned Unit Developments (PUD’s) 
 
 
Background: 
 
• City Management and the City Attorney’s Office, based upon Planning 

Commission input, is developing language that modifies the review and approval 
process for Planned Unit Developments (PUD’s).  

 
• Under the new PUD provisions, the applicant receives Final Approval of a project 

(or each phase of a project) following a three-step process.  In Step One, the 
applicant receives rezoning to PUD and also gets approval of the development 
agreement, including land use concept, design concept and phasing.  The 
Planning Commission holds a public hearing and makes a recommendation to 
City Council, which also holds a public hearing prior to approval.  Step Two is 
essentially site plan approval for each phase, following a Planning Commission 
public hearing.  The site plan must comply with all conditions approved in Step 
One.  Step Three would be Final PUD Approval, including all design drawings, 
which would be administrative.    

 
• The attached flow chart reflects the suggested modifications to the draft 

language. 
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on November 14, 
2006.  The public hearing was continued to December 12, 2006.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



 2 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• The City Attorney’s Office is in the process of reviewing the draft text 

amendment. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• Approval of the proposed text amendment would be consistent with City Council 

Goal II (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment) and 
Goal IV (Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• This is an informational item; no City Council action is required at this time. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Proposed PUD Process Chart. 
 
cc: File 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
  
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 225 Amendment to PUD Provisions\CC Memo 12 18 06.doc 
 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT. 
12/07/2006 

CITY OF TROY 
PROPOSED P.U.D. APPROVAL PROCESS 

  
  
  
  
  
 IF NOT APPROVED 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 IF NOT APPROVED 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR STEP I 
▪ CONCEPT INCLUDING PHASING 
▪ DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
▪ DESIGN CONCEPTS AND PHASING OF 
  PROPERTY 

APPROVALS RECEIVED IN STEP I 
▪ CONCEPTUAL PLAN, INCLUDING PHASING 
▪ DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
▪ DESIGN CONCEPTS AND PHASING OF 
  PROPERTY 
▪ REZONING TO P.U.D. 

BUILDING DEPT. 
ENGINEERING DEPT. 
LANDSCAPE ANALYST 
FIRE DEPT. 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYST 
PLANNING CONSULTANT 
LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR STEP II 
▪ PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN     
APPLICATION INCLUDING SITE PLAN 
▪ INFORMATION TO ENSURE SITE PLAN IS 
  COMPATIBLE WITH DEVELOPMENT  
  AGREEMENT AND DESIGN CONCEPTS 
▪ PHASING OF PROJECT IS PERMITTED 

APPROVALS RECEIVED IN STEP II 
▪ PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
APPROVAL 
▪ PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

BUILDING DEPT. 
ENGINEERING DEPT. 
LANDSCAPE ANALYST 
FIRE DEPT. 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYST 
PLANNING CONSULTANT 
LEGAL DEPARTMENT 
(REVIEW OF CONCEPTUAL 
DESIGN) 

 

PETITIONER SUBMITS 
STEP I APPLICATION 

PLANNING DEPT.

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STUDY MEETING(S) 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING(S) 
TO REVIEW PHASE I 

 

NEIGHBOORHOOD 
MEETING 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING

 

CITY COUNCIL 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL

CITY COUNCIL APPROVES OR 
RETURNS TO PLANNING COMMISSION 

FOR REVISIONS 

PETITIONER SUBMITS 
STEP II APPLICATION 

(PHASING PERMITTED) 

 

PLANNING DEPT. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STUDY MEETING(S) 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING  

FOR PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
APPROVAL OR DENIAL 

PETITIONER RECEIVES 
FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

(ADMINISTRATIVE) 

BUILDING PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR STEP III 
▪ FINAL SITE PLAN APPLICATION  
  REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING ENGINEERING,
  BUILDING, FIRE, AND OTHER REQUIRED 
  DRAWINGS AND REQUIRED EASEMENTS 
▪ CONTRACT FOR MUNICIPAL  
   IMPROVEMENTS 

APPROVALS RECEIVED IN STEP III 
▪ FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL 
▪ BUILDING PERMITS 

NOTE: 
AS AN OPTION, THE PETITIONER COULD 
COMBINE STEP 1 AND STEP 2. 
THE CHART SHOWS REQUIRED MEETING, 
ADDITIONAL MEETINGS MAY BE 
NECESSARY  



campbellld
Text Box
H-01



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 
 
This rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held 
Wednesday, September 6, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting 
was called to order at 7:33 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Linda Rivetto 
   Bob Miller 
    
             STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
            GUEST: Carl Freeman 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-09-001 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Miller 
 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 8, 2006 be approved as amended 
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Lin, Rivetto, and Miller  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2955 Quail Run Dr. 
The Commission reviewed the draft preliminary report presented by Kevin 
Lindsey and offered suggestions to improve content and clarity. These 
suggestions were incorporated into the document.  The committee also reviewed 
the procedures and timeline or submitting the preliminary report to state and local 
boards for their review.  
 

Resolution #HDSC-2006-09-002 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Hupman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Historic District Study Committee accept and file with the 
appropriate agencies the preliminary report to de-list the historic resource at 2955 
Quail Run Dr.  
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, Rivetto, and Miller  
No: 0 
Abstain: 2 Harris-Freeman 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



2 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Kinda Hupman volunteered to assist in assembling the packets for mailing. A 
completed packet will be provided to Charlene Harris-Freeman before any 
packets are mailed. 
 

B. New Above Ground Survey Assignments 
No additional Above Ground Surveys were submitted. 
 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:23 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, October 3, 2006 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01b









TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 27, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on September 27, 2006 at 7:00 PM 
at the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Katie Thoenes and Rishi Joshi called the 
meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Ales Gabriel 
Rishi Joshi (Co-chair) 
Jessica Kraft  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert (Secretary) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Nicole Vitale 
VISITORS: Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
STAFF PRESENT:  Barb Rupas, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-09-12 
  Moved by   Prasad 
  Seconded by  Kraft 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 23, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1  - Vitale 
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through September 2006.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Futures Process: 

 No update at this time.  Final report has not been completed. 
 
5. Visitor:  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director.   

Presentation covered the topic of undeveloped parkland.  Anderson reviewed 
the parcels, what the community requested in each parcel, funding and 
timeline for development.    

  
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 27, 2006 
 
 

 2

6. Troy Daze Festival: 
-Youth Council reviewed 2006 event and expressed the following concerns: 

  -Viewed inappropriate images on prizes and on rides. 
-Image of Troy Daze as a family friendly event with pornographic 
images on rides. 
-Violence will happen any time and suggested having tightened 
security. 
-Disappointed in hours, friends get off of work at 9:30pm and are unable 
to attend due to 10:00pm closing time. 
-Parking system needs to be evaluated. Lots are too small to 
accommodate traffic and better communication is needed regarding 
parking procedures. 
-Surveys from age 30+ attendees preferred the 10:00pm closing time 
and every teen survey preferred the 11:00pm closing time. 
-D’Amico to draft a letter to present to Troy Daze Committee regarding 
concerns with rides, parking and hours. 

 
7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2006-09-13 

  Moved by  Wullaert 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

  
 RESOLVED that Anupama Prasad, Katie Thoenes (late) are excused. 

  Yes:  12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Vitale  
 
8.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
9. Public Comments –  

-None. 
 
10. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:46 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Katie Thoenes, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: November 29 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL OCTOBER 17, 2006 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, October 
17, 2006 at City Hall. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 7:50 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Sabah Jihad 
   Paul Lin  
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager  
 
    ABSENT Robert Hudson 
   Marjorie Biglin 
   Ann Partlan 
 
      GUESTS Wil Bedford (correct spelling) 
   Gene Moore, Caldwell Banker, Realtor  
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Carl Freeman  
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-10-001 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Biglin, Partlan and Hudson be excused. 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, and Lin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-10-002 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the September 19, 2006 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5 Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, and Lin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request by Wil Bedford, 4820 Livernois 
Mr. Bedford told the commission that he has had his historic home for sale for 
two years and has been unable to sell it. He feels potential buyers are not 
inclined to purchase the property because of the designation.  The commission 
discussed options with him including: 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



2 

1. Petitioning the Historic District Study Committee to amend the boundaries 
of the district to eliminate the vacant land he owns from the district so that 
property can be sold. 

2. Renting his historic home until the regional economy improves. 
3. Consulting with the Planning Department regarding zoning options for his 

property. 
 

B. Historic District Study Committee Preliminary Report: 2955 Quail Run 
The committee accepted for review the preliminary report provided by the 
Historic District Study Committee. Because of extensive attachments, Barbara 
Chambers asked that the commission take time to read the report thoroughly 
during the next four weeks. The commission will discuss the report at their 
November meeting. This information was conveyed to the owners of the 
resource, Carl and Charlene Harris-Freeman. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Updates on 36551 Dequindre  
No report. 
 

B. Update CLG 
Allan Motzny sent the commission his review of the City of Birmingham’s Historic 
Preservation Ordinance.  The commission will review his memo and compare 
Troy and Birmingham’s ordinances at their next meeting.  
 

The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 8:53 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, November 21, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall in 
Conference Room C. 

 
 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



































ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, November 1, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Present:  M. Apte, alternate  C. Geier, alternate 
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member  
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member 
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
Absent: C. Buchanan, member EA 
   S. Burt, member UA 
   A. Done, member EA 
     
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of October 4, 2006 be approved.  All voted 
in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager, was in attendance to share information 
regarding the proposed Transit Center which consists of three acres of property  located 
near Coolidge and Maple.  As part of the consent judgment for Midtown Square, the 
City has until 2010 to develop a transit center on this property.  MDOT has committed 
$350,000 for the development of the full service Amtrak station facility.  Hertz Rental as 
well as Smart Bus have shown considerable interest.  Brian will keep this Committee 
informed as progress continues.  
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. The finalized copy of the ACPD brochure is currently at the printer and should be 
completed by December.   

B. House wished to change her vote on the motion passed last month to 
discontinue collections for goodwill gestures to show she is not in favor.  The 
vote cannot be changed but House’s stand on this will be recorded in these 
minutes. 

C. Werpetinski presented a list of City services that are available for community 
members with disabilities.  Werpetinski moved that this list be turned over to the 
Community Affairs Department to edit and include in a specified section of Troy 
Today that would be designated as a resource section for persons with 
disabilities.  All were in favor. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 2

D. Brian Murphy and Cindy Stewart are compiling a resource guide for seniors and 
low income residents with special needs.  He suggested contacting Cindy 
Stewart to include services for persons with disabilities.  Manetta has compiled a 
collection of outside resources that service people with disabilities.  Those 
materials will be turned over to Cindy Stewart for inclusion in the pending 
resource guide. 

E. Grusnick verified that the handicap parking at 1301 W. Long Lake is within code. 
 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
Werpetinski requested that a commendation letter be drafted to be sent to people that 
do extraordinary efforts for recognition by this Committee. 
 
Stewart asked Hyun and Weideman to poll local grocery and drug stores inquiring as to 
whether they offer delivery for prescription drugs and/or groceries. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. Weideman reported on a woman that organized a baseball team for special 
needs children.  She was featured on Extreme Home Makeover. 

B. Hyun reported that festivals in Montrose, Alpena, Chesaning, etc. are all 
handicap accessible.  She also informed us that there is an organization at her 
high school called Troy Colts Connect which is an inclusive club for all Troy 
students.  It meets once a week and they plan social activities as well as eat 
lunch together biweekly.    

C. Hammond reported that Done gave the house bound trailer park resident a 
reference for a contractor that will do several repairs at a minimal cost. 

D. Werpetinski reported that Geier was appointed a member of this Committee at  
the Council Meeting and that Manetta’s appointment was extended. 

     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
Sean Murphy attended our meeting as a guest.  Sean works for Disability Made Easy, a 
company that constructs barrier free, handicap accessible products in homes.  Sean will 
be returning to a meeting to give a presentation at a later date. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 

A. Apte is relocating outside Troy and will be leaving this Committee.  She has 
submitted a resignation letter. 

B. Geier mentioned an acquaintance that refrained from using Medi-Go Plus 
because she claimed that the service did not drop her off at the door of her 
destination. 

C. House announced her resignation as a member to this Committee. 
D. Stewart commends Fuhrman for stepping down from this Committee due to 

obligations and allowing this opportunity to be given to another. 
E. Stewart reported that the special needs adults could use assistance at their 

crafting event on 11/30/06 at 12:30 at the Community Center.  This is a prelude 
to their Holiday Frolic held 12/8/06 from 7:00 to 9:30. 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 3

ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Geier made a motion to adjourn at 9:10 p.m. which was seconded by Manetta. 
 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, November 1, 2006, at the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Chairman Stewart called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Present:  M. Apte, alternate  C. Geier, alternate 
   P. Hammond, member T. House, member  
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  J. Stewart, member 
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
Absent: C. Buchanan, member EA 
   S. Burt, member UA 
   A. Done, member EA 
     
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of October 4, 2006 be approved.  All voted 
in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager, was in attendance to share information 
regarding the proposed Transit Center which consists of three acres of property  located 
near Coolidge and Maple.  As part of the consent judgment for Midtown Square, the 
City has until 2010 to develop a transit center on this property.  MDOT has committed 
$350,000 for the development of the full service Amtrak station facility.  Hertz Rental as 
well as Smart Bus have shown considerable interest.  Brian will keep this Committee 
informed as progress continues.  
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. The finalized copy of the ACPD brochure is currently at the printer and should be 
completed by December.   

B. House wished to change her vote on the motion passed last month to 
discontinue collections for goodwill gestures to show she is not in favor.  The 
vote cannot be changed but House’s stand on this will be recorded in these 
minutes. 

C. Werpetinski presented a list of City services that are available for community 
members with disabilities.  Werpetinski moved that this list be turned over to the 
Community Affairs Department to edit and include in a specified section of Troy 
Today that would be designated as a resource section for persons with 
disabilities.  All were in favor. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 2

D. Brian Murphy and Cindy Stewart are compiling a resource guide for seniors and 
low income residents with special needs.  He suggested contacting Cindy 
Stewart to include services for persons with disabilities.  Manetta has compiled a 
collection of outside resources that service people with disabilities.  Those 
materials will be turned over to Cindy Stewart for inclusion in the pending 
resource guide. 

E. Grusnick verified that the handicap parking at 1301 W. Long Lake is within code. 
 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
Werpetinski requested that a commendation letter be drafted to be sent to people that 
do extraordinary efforts for recognition by this Committee. 
 
Stewart asked Hyun and Weideman to poll local grocery and drug stores inquiring as to 
whether they offer delivery for prescription drugs and/or groceries. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 

A. Weideman reported on a woman that organized a baseball team for special 
needs children.  She was featured on Extreme Home Makeover. 

B. Hyun reported that festivals in Montrose, Alpena, Chesaning, etc. are all 
handicap accessible.  She also informed us that there is an organization at her 
high school called Troy Colts Connect which is an inclusive club for all Troy 
students.  It meets once a week and they plan social activities as well as eat 
lunch together biweekly.    

C. Hammond reported that Done gave the house bound trailer park resident a 
reference for a contractor that will do several repairs at a minimal cost. 

D. Werpetinski reported that Geier was appointed a member of this Committee at  
the Council Meeting and that Manetta’s appointment was extended. 

     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
Sean Murphy attended our meeting as a guest.  Sean works for Disability Made Easy, a 
company that constructs barrier free, handicap accessible products in homes.  Sean will 
be returning to a meeting to give a presentation at a later date. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 

A. Apte is relocating outside Troy and will be leaving this Committee.  She has 
submitted a resignation letter. 

B. Geier mentioned an acquaintance that refrained from using Medi-Go Plus 
because she claimed that the service did not drop her off at the door of her 
destination. 

C. House announced her resignation as a member to this Committee. 
D. Stewart commends Fuhrman for stepping down from this Committee due to 

obligations and allowing this opportunity to be given to another. 
E. Stewart reported that the special needs adults could use assistance at their 

crafting event on 11/30/06 at 12:30 at the Community Center.  This is a prelude 
to their Holiday Frolic held 12/8/06 from 7:00 to 9:30. 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 3

ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Geier made a motion to adjourn at 9:10 p.m. which was seconded by Manetta. 
 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                       Jeff Stewart, Chairperson 
 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order on Wednesday, November 1, 2006 at 8:30 A.M. in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tom Rosewarne 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – SPECIAL MEETING OF OCTOBER 18, 2006 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of October 18, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  STUDIO DESIGN, 1814 MAPLELAWN, for relief of 
the Sign Ordinance to erect a ground sign that is 30’ in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85, the Sign 
Ordinance to erect a ground sign that is 30’ in height.  Table 85.02.05 permits a 25’ 
maximum height for a ground sign. 
 
Stanley Tkarz of Studio Design was present and stated that this is actually a request 
from the Hyundai Marketing Department.  This dealership is brand new and is a new 
prototype building.  Hyundai Corporation believes that a larger sign will create more of a 
marketable element.  Mr. Tkarz stated that he could not provide a specific hardship 
running with the land in putting in a 25’ foot sign. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were other 30’ signs in the area.  Mr. Stimac stated that he 
thought the GM brand signs were more than 30’ feet high. 
 
Mr. Tkarz said that he has provided architectural services to the Suburban Collection 
and that the GM sign is 35’ high, the Nissan sign sits back about 200’ and is 30’ high, 
and he believes the Toyota pylon sign across the street is between 27’ and 28’ high. 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he is concerned because if this variance is granted without a 
justifiable hardship a precedent would be set for other signs to be 30’ high, or higher. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that one of the requirements of this Board was to find a hardship 
running with the land that would justify granting a variance.  There is nothing unique to 
give the Board the authority to grant this request. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Studio Design, 1814 Maplelawn, relief Chapter 85 to 
erect a ground sign that is 30’ in height, where Table 85.02.05 permits a 25’ maximum 
height for a ground sign. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship justifying a variance. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  THOMAS A DUKE, 1700 W. BIG BEAVER, for 
relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a ground sign that is 320 square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85, the Sign 
Ordinance to erect a ground sign 320 square feet in area.  The proposed signage 
consists of letters that are proposed to be added to an existing “L” shaped brick wall that 
screens existing ground mounted mechanical equipment at the southeast corner of the 
building.  Using this existing brick wall as a sign results in a calculated sign area of 320 
square feet.  Section 85.02.05 permits a ground sign a maximum of 200 square feet in 
area. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how large the south elevation of the wall was and Mr. Stimac said 
that it is 24’ long and 8’ high, which is a total of 192 square feet. 
 
Mr. Thomas Duke was present and stated that he had purchased this building about 
eight (8) years ago and at that time there was some type of signage on this wall.  There 
have been considerable vacancies and he has found a tenant that wants to use the 
screening wall for their sign.  This sign would blend in with the building and give a nice 
appearance to the area. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked why Mr. Duke couldn’t stay within the 200 square feet.  Mr. Duke said 
that the existing south face of the wall is 192 square feet and in his opinion he does fall 
within the requirements of the Ordinance.  The wall is “L”-shaped and it is because of 
this design that a variance is required.  Mr. Duke stated that he would be able to build a 
separate ground sign 200 square feet in area and a variance would not be required.  He 
would rather put the signage on this wall than add an additional sign. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if a variance would be required if there was any type of gap in this 
wall.  Mr. Stimac explained that this wall is being looked at as though it were in the 
middle of the property.  Because the wall is “L”-shaped in plan, both sides have to be 
calculated in the sign area even though there is no lettering proposed for the east face 
of the wall.  Mr. Stimac also explained that in the Board members packets were copies 
of the original sign, which indicate that it was used as an address sign; and therefore is 
not regulated by the Sign Ordinance. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Cathie Walton, Office Manager, 1740 W. Big Beaver, Suite 100, was present and 
stated that they are delighted with this proposal.  Ms. Walton said that they approve of 
this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Duke stated that he had to tried to give a drawing depicting the proposed sign, and 
stated that if he took the return part of the wall down a variance would not be required.  
This wall is used to screen mechanical equipment.  Mr. Duke further stated that he 
would be willing to give the City a letter stated that he would not use the north – south 
portion of the wall for signage. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Thomas A. Duke, 1700 W. Big Beaver, relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a ground sign that is 320 square feet in area. 
 

• The east face of screening wall not to be used for signage. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:47 A.M. 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 

 4



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Nov. 2, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Nov. 2 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:05 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member David Ogg, Member   
 Jo Rhoads, Member Pauline Noce, Member  
 James Berar, Member  JoAnn Thompson, Member    
 Merrill Dixon, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Carla Vaughan reported that Mary Sarossy has resigned due to health problems. 
     
Absent: Frank Shier, Member    
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-11-001 
Moved by James Berar  
Seconded by Jo Rhoads  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 5, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that construction is under way and the courts 
will be completed this fall.  Committee members will be notified if and when there is a ribbon 
cutting ceremony.  JoAnn Thompson asked that it be clarified in the newsletter that there 
would be drop-in play in addition to leagues and tournaments.   
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that a memo has been prepared 
for the next council meeting (Nov 13) that asks for permission to negotiate a contract. 
 
Street Signs:  The discussion about street sign color, size, placement and visibility continued.  
Carla will ask someone from the DPW Department to attend the next meeting to discuss the 
issue. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Nov. 2, 2006 

2 

Home Repair Program:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she has used the service.  It went 
very well, and they refused to take any money.  Carla reported that the Community Foundation 
wants to support the program and that more volunteers are needed.  Jo Rhoads asked Carla 
to sign her up to volunteer.  
 
New Business 
 
Terrace Café at Athens High School:  Jo Rhoads reported that the service and food are 
great.  She circulated a copy of the menu that was provided by Paula Fleming. 
 
Lunch Visits:  The Committee discussed visiting other centers to have lunch.  Carla 
suggested that they eat here in Troy first in order to be able to make a comparison.  
Committee members planned to have lunch in Troy twice in November.      
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that there was no meeting in October.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that the clientele is expanding.  It is disturbing when people 
neglect to cancel their appointments when they no longer need a ride.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that this fall’s Mental Aerobics class was full with 28 
students.  Retired teacher Karen Matthews provides techniques for improving memory and 
games and activities that “exercise” the brain.   Fifty-five seniors are signed up for leaf raking. 
The flu shot clinic is today until 3 p.m.   The Fine Art Show is tomorrow and will be held in the 
lobby of the Community Center this year for greater exposure.  Over 30 artists have registered 
to exhibit their works.   
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that an ophthalmologist spoke and it was very interesting. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that Brooks Patterson 
attended the meeting and committee members discussed their areas of concern.  Jo is 
concerned that the county commissioners may not be aware of all the issues in their districts.  
 
Suggestion Box:  No report 
 
Comments:   
 
David Ogg reported that the temporary speed limit signs should be taken down on Livernois 
near Long Lake.  Carla will pass this on to the DPW department.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:45 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair              Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES—FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
November 7, 2006 at the Troy Museum due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, December 5, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 7, 2006 in Classroom “B” of the Police and Fire 
Training Center, 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Fazal Khan  Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mary Kerwin  Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz  Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat  Wayne Wright 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-185 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-186 
Moved by: Khan  
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented.  
 
Yes: All (5) 
No: None 
Absent:  Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES – October 24, 2006 Special/Study Meeting 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-187 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 24, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented.  
 
Yes: All (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION BY VALDIS LAZDINS OF LSL PLANNING, INC. – Design 
Matters:  Using Natural and Durable Materials to Promote Good Design – 
Presented by LSL on behalf of the Brick Industry Association 
 
Valdis Lazdins of LSL Planning, Inc., made a presentation on community design 
standards.   
 
A question and answer period with general discussion followed. 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:10 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:15 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Amendments to Article 
XXXV, Planned Unit Development Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the draft amendment.  He reminded the Planning 
Commission of the public hearing scheduled for the item on November 14, 2006.  
He stated that the amendment would not be ready for a positive recommendation by 
November 14, but that it was the intent of the Planning Department to have a Public 
Hearing draft prepared for consideration by December 12, 2006.  Mr. Miller 
suggested the Planning Commission could postpone the item to December 12, 
2006 and have the public hearing remain open until this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Schultz expressed concern about phasing of Planned Unit Developments; 
specifically with developers who might construct the more profitable first phase of 
the PUD and then walk away from the project, leaving an incomplete project behind. 
 
Mr. Khan suggested that public benefit should be linked to each phase. 
 
Hunter Richardson of Richardson Development Group, Reston, Virginia, 
commented on the draft amendment.  He stated that he had some issues with the 
draft and would share those issues with staff.  He suggested that the first phase 
should be able to stand alone but additional phases should be additive.   
 
General discussion followed. 
 
 

7. SUB-COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 
A. Tracking of Planning and Zoning Projects - Schultz 

Mr. Savidant stated the updated tracking document could be distributed 
electronically after it was updated. 

 
B. By-Laws - Kerwin / Waller 

Ms. Kerwin anticipated that draft By-Laws would be ready for Planning 
Commission consideration in January 2007. 

 
C. Complete Update of Ordinance - Time Line and Milestones - Mark Miller 

Mr. Miller stated the Zoning Ordinance update would begin following 
completion of the Master Plan. 

 
D. Sustainable Development Standards - Khan / Waller 

Mr. Khan asked that his name be removed from all sub-committee 
assignments. 

 
E. Design Standards and Examples - Khan / Waller 
 
F. Promotion of Ingenuity - Mark Miller 

Mr. Miller indicated that ingenuity was sought on a case-by-case basis through 
development applications, particularly PUD’s.  Mr. Waller suggested there was 
a disconnect from the Planning Commission’s perspective regarding what staff 
suggested and what was provided by the applicant on the site plan. 

 
G. Educational - Speakers and Presentations to Planning Commission - Strat 

The Planning Commission agreed that because there were no Planning 
Commission meetings scheduled for the fourth week of November or December, 
there would not be an internal study meeting in December. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

H. Site Plan Approval Requirements 
 Mr. Strat suggested that a lighting plan should be required for all site plan 

applications. 
 
I. Conditional Rezoning Requirements 
 Mr. Miller reminded members that this item was adopted by City Council. 
 
J. PUD Restructure 
 Mr. Miller reminded members that this item was already discussed during 

tonight’s meeting. 
 
K. Comprehensive Plan Procedure Update 
 
L. Maple Road Study Update 
 
M. Big Beaver Corridor Study Update 
 
N. Reasons for Denial of Site Plan 
 
O. Improve Relationships with Other Commissions, City Departments and City 

Council 
 Mr. Nelson stated that with many significant projects upcoming, it was imperative 

that all staff, City Council and other boards need to be on the same page and 
joint meetings assist with this. 

 
P. Joint Meeting with City Council 
 
Q. Other New Items 
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill, Troy, was present.  Mr. Komasara commented 
on the presentation, including his experiences on design standards within 
condominium by-laws.  He also suggested that the Planning Commission prioritize 
their work items, with the Master Plan being number one. 
 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\11-07-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 08, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, November 8, 2006, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:18 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice   
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 Martin F. Howrylak 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
 Phillip L. Nelson 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 11 - 041 
Moved by Pallotta   
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 11, 2006 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RECOVERY OF EDRO COST 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 11 - 042 
Moved by Lamerato  
Seconded by Nelson 
 
Recovery of Costs of Processing Domestic Relations Orders  
   
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Employee Retirement System is subject to the provisions of 
the Eligible Domestic Relations Order Act, 1991 PA 46, which provides that the Retirement 
System shall determine if domestic relations orders received by it are eligible domestic 
relations orders and, if so, must administer same; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Retirement System has adopted policies and procedures to implement 
the requirements of the Eligible Domestic Relations Order Act which include the 
involvement of professional advisors due to the legal and actuarial issues inherently 
involved; and 
 
WHEREAS, Such professional advisors charge fees for such services and, therefore, the 
Retirement System incurs costs it would not have incurred but for the enactment of the 
Eligible Domestic Relations Order Act and the divorce or separation of participants 
submitting domestic relations orders to the Retirement System; and 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 08, 2006 
 
 

 2

WHEREAS, The Eligible Domestic Relations Order Act contemplates payment of the costs 
associated therewith by the parties to such orders and provides that such orders may not 
require the Retirement System to provide an increased benefit determined on the basis of 
actuarial value, which includes the cost of administration; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Retirement System has previously determined that the increased costs 
incurred by the Retirement System due to the administration of the Eligible Domestic 
Relations Order Act should be borne by the parties to the domestic relations orders 
submitted to the Retirement System, and the Retirement System desires to clarify and 
formalize its policy in this regard; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the parties to any domestic relations order 
submitted to the City of Troy Employee Retirement System shall be required to reimburse 
the Retirement System for all additional actuarial fees and costs associated therewith on 
an equal basis; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That if such costs have not been reimbursed 
to the Retirement System by the parties prior to the commencement of benefits, such 
costs shall be deducted from the first and any necessary subsequent benefit payment to 
each party until that party’s share of the costs has been fully recovered. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – JUNE 30, 2006 QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
 
The Board received and filed the June 30, 2006 Quarterly Investment Report. 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 11 - 043 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board buy and sell the following securities:   
 
 
Buy:  5,000 shares Kohl’s 
  $725,000 John Hancock International Core Fund 
 
Sell: Startek; Lucent Technologies; Compuware; Aim Constellation Mutual Fund 

and use Proceeds to buy Aim Global Value Fund and Aim European Growth 
Fund. 

 
Yeas:  All  7 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 08, 2006 
 
 

 3

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
The next meeting is December 13, 2006 at 1:30 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:28 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2006\11-08-06 Minutes_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 14, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-188 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Wright are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
To accommodate public hearing participation, it was agreed to move Agenda item #10 
forward under Agenda item #4, and identify it as Agenda item #4(a).  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-189 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as amended.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 719) – Proposed Troy Medical 

Office, West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City Management to postpone the 
item at the request of the petitioner who is pursuing a conditional rezoning on the 
subject property.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-190 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits a complete conditional rezoning application and a 
public hearing has been scheduled. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

4(a). PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor 
Parking of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
There was a brief discussion relating to the administrative approval process for 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
commercial vehicles in residential districts and the results of the commercial 
vehicles visual survey in which the City Council participated.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed a new trend in which smaller vehicles are completely 
wrapped in signage.  She noted wrapped vehicles would be permitted under the 
proposed ordinance text.  Ms. Kerwin also addressed the survey results in relation 
to the proposed text.  She indicated she would not support the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment as presented tonight.   
 
There was discussion on Section 40.66.00 of the proposed text as relates to the list 
of criteria and its intent.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Edgar Hendry of 2446 Tall Oaks Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hendry spoke in 
opposition to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  He said the 
amendment as proposed would permit him to park a commercial crane in his 
driveway provided the boom was down and weight and height restrictions were met.   
 
Nancy McKay of 5069 Prentis Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms McKay posed the 
following questions:  (1) Who would measure and weigh the vehicles? (2) Can the 
vehicles be parked in the street? (3) How many vehicles per residence would be 
allowed?  
 
Mr. Miller replied that one vehicle per residence would be permitted.  At the request 
of Chair Strat, he addressed the definition and regulation of trailers.   
 
Chair Strat said the responsibility of weighing and measuring the vehicles would be 
taken under advisement.   
 
David Reese, associate broker for Real Estate One, 70 W. Long Lake Road, Troy, 
was present.  He introduced a second petition signed by realtors in opposition of the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment and addressed the impact of the 
proposed amendment to the overall value of the community.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed what he feels is discrimination against working-class residents 
who must use commercial vehicles to make a living.  Mr. Vleck said the proposed 
text is not fair, appropriate, or ready to forward to the City Council for approval.  He 
briefly addressed the definition and regulations of commercial vehicles. 
 
Chair Strat reviewed the options available on this item.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-191 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to a future study session to look at it more in 
depth.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would like to review commercial vehicle zoning ordinance 
language from nearby communities.   
 
Mr. Miller replied the departmental file contains volumes of ordinances from nearby 
communities relating to commercial vehicles, and said Ms. Kerwin is welcome to 
review the file.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS (continued) 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 340) – Proposed T-Mobile 
Cellular Tower, West side of Coolidge, South of I-75 (on site of Troy Fire Station No. 
6), Section 7, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the special use request and site plan with the conditions that specifications 
are provided on the removal of the tower and the provision for future collocations on 
the tower.    
 
Mr. Savidant noted topographical drawings of the subject parcel and abutting 
property were provided to the Planning Commission, at their request.  Mr. Savidant 
reported the Planning Department received a significant number of written 
correspondences in opposition to the cellular tower and referenced the regulations 
set forth by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Act of 1996.   
 
Chair Strat brought to the attention of the members that his sister and brother-in-law 
live in the subject subdivision, but indicated he has no financial interest in T-Mobile.   
 
The members agreed there is no conflict of interest on the part of Chair Strat. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Ms. Lancaster reviewed the key provisions stipulated by the FCC Act of 1996 and 
the role of the Planning Commission with respect to the special use request and site 
plan approval.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that the City Assessor reports there is no correlation to 
decreased property values for homes that are located near wireless cellular towers.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts shared her previous work experience with cellular towers and 
stated that property values would not be affected by the placement of a tower.  Ms. 
Drake-Batts offered considerations in the approval process; i.e., require the tower to 
look like a light pole and limit the number of collocations.  
 
Ellen Tencer of 3033 Moon Lake Drive, West Bloomfield, was present on behalf of 
T-Mobile.  Ms. Tencer said the number of collocations would be limited to two, 
possibly three, based on the height of the tower.  She indicated the cellular tower 
would be the image of existing Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) 
towers located on I-75.  Ms. Tencer’s presentation addressed cellular phone 
service, the countywide wireless service and aesthetics.  She circulated propagation 
maps that displayed cellular coverage for T-Mobile service and photographs of a 
superimposed 75-foot tower from the southwest and northwest directions. 
 
Ms. Tencer fielded questions relating to cellular tower locations in Troy and details 
of the proposed tower in terms of aesthetics, collocations and design.  Ms. Tencer 
addressed comments of the City’s Transportation Engineer and Landscape Analyst 
and indicated willingness to place a camera on the pole for freeway surveillance 
and provide landscaping.   
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that conditions such as a camera and landscaping could be 
stipulations of the special use approval.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Cheryl Korth of 2086 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Korth spoke in 
opposition of the special use request as relates to aesthetics and home values.  
She addressed the response of residents in opposition to the request and said she 
is angry because it appears the Planning Commission has already made up its mind 
to approve the request.   
 
Chuck Little of 2478 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Little represented the 
Beach Forest homeowners association and said its members are in opposition of 
the special use request.  Mr. Little addressed the residential zoning, aesthetics, 
potential alternative locations, perception of health concerns and the viability of 
T-Mobile.  
 
Lynn Remenar of 2466 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Remenar spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  She possessed a petition signed by 60 
residents in opposition of the cellular tower and indicated the petition would be 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

provided to the Planning Department for the record.  Ms. Remenar read a letter 
from a resident who lives north of Square Lake and east of Coolidge who is also 
opposed to the tower.      
 
Ning Chen of 5854 Faircastle Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Chen spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  He addressed aesthetics and potential health 
concerns. 
 
William Middlekauff 2449 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Middlekauff 
spoke in opposition to the cellular tower as relates to the residential location, 
screening and home values.  Mr. Middlekauff submitted documentation from the 
U.S. Census Bureau and maps in relation to the proposed location of the tower and 
potential alternate locations.   
 
Chris Dubay of 2465 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dubay spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  He addressed the potential negative impact 
on home resale values, technology used by T-Mobile and sincerity of the residents 
in opposition of the tower.   
 
Dan Bliss of 2070 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bliss spoke in opposition 
of the special use request.  He addressed the logistics of his home in relation to the 
proposed tower, neighborhood aesthetics and residential zoning.   
 
Wendy Wu of 1942 Fleetwood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Wu spoke in opposition of 
the special use request.  She addressed the residential zoning and potential health 
concerns.   
 
Yu Zhang of 1851 New Castle Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Zhang spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  As vice president of Wyngate homeowners 
association, he supports Beach Forest residents in their opposition.  Mr. Zhang 
stated the proposed tower benefits T-Mobile and its users only.   
 
Edgar Hendry of 2446 Tall Oaks Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hendry spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  He addressed the perception of health 
concerns and resale values of the homes.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the FCC regulations and emphasized the Planning 
Commission cannot consider potential health concerns in its decision-making 
process.  He said communications from the residents have been received and read 
by the members, and he personally finds some of the comments to be insulting.  Mr. 
Vleck addressed the role of the Planning Commission as relates to site plan 
approval and the role of the City Council as relates to the approval of the contract 
with T-Mobile.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat addressed the role of the Planning Commission.  He emphasized that 
special consideration is not given to the value of homes, and that equal respect and 
consideration are given to all applications.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that the Zoning Ordinance prohibits the placement of cellular 
tower facilities in City parks and on school sites.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion on the Zoning Ordinance relating to prohibiting cell 
towers in City parks and school sites.   
 
Chair Strat indicated he would not support the proposed request because of the 
perception of health concerns and to protect the home values.  He indicated that 
Firefighters Park would be a better location.     
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the roles of the Planning Commission and City Council, 
respectively.   
 
Members Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck, Kerwin and Schultz addressed their reasons for 
supporting the proposed special use request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-192 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 10.30.08 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed T-Mobile Cellular Tower, located on the west side of Coolidge, south of I-
75, located in Section 7, within the R-1B zoning district, is hereby granted, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall provide financial assurances, in a form acceptable to the City 

Manager, that the communication tower shall be removed from the site within 
one (1) year of the date that its use ceases, as per Section 10.30.08.I.2 of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. To minimize the impact of communication towers in the City of Troy, the 

applicant shall provide for only one future collocation of wireless communication 
equipment on the tower per Section 10.30.08.J of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
3. That the tower is made to look like a light pole rather than the one that was 

submitted to us. 
 
4. To provide a landscaping plan that provides a minimum of six (6) evergreen 

trees to be approved by the Planning Director. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the zoning of fire stations.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that Fire Station No. 6 is located in the R-1B residential zoning 
district and not in the C-F Community Facility zoning district.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat said his no vote is based on the perception of the damage to the values 
of the homes in the surrounding area.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:22 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:34 p.m. 

___________ 
 
[Student Representative Shin exited the meeting.] 
 
 

6. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 117-C) – Proposed Private School, Proposed St. 
Mark Christian Academy at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, West side of 
Livernois, South of Kirk Lane (3603 Livernois) Section 21 – R-1B 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed concerns with traffic safety and indicated she would not 
support the request.   
 
There was discussion on a deceleration lane at this site.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the dumpster location and related notation on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Savidant said access of a trash removal truck to the screened dumpster is 
feasible.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Evans Caruso of Constantine George Pappas Architects, 560 Kirts, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Caruso apologized and indicated the dumpster notation on the site 
plan should have been erased.  He said all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance 
have been met.   
 
Fr. Maximus Habib, 3603 Livernois, Troy, was present to represent St. Mark Coptic 
Orthodox Church.  Fr. Habib estimated a maximum of 50-60 children are in 
attendance at the nursery school at one given time.  He informed the Planning 
Commission that a deceleration lane was waived by the City Engineer on the basis 
that there is no room to put a deceleration lane.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-193 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 10.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Private School, located at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, on the west 
side of Livernois Road, south of Wattles Road, located in Section 21, within the R-
1B zoning district, is hereby granted.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Kerwin 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin indicated her dissenting vote is based on safety concerns relating to 
traffic.  She would hope the City is proactive in addressing those safety concerns.   
Ms. Kerwin addressed the lack of documentation provided by the Planning 
Department on the City’s waiver to provide a deceleration lane at this site.   
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 723) – Proposed Taco Bell 

Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – From O-1 
(Low Rise Office) to B-2 (Community Business) District 

 
Mr. Khan announced the subject rezoning request is next to his home and excused 
himself from discussion and vote on the subject request.  
 
Mr. Miller explained the administrative approval process for rezoning requests.    
 
The petitioner indicated consent to go forward with the request.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.  Mr. Savidant noted the 
relationship between the subject parcel and the abutting O-1 parcel to the west is 
undesirable, but the application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if access to the O-1 parcel would be via the narrow alley along 
the northerly edge. 
 
Mr. Savidant responded in the affirmative.   
 
James Barnwell of Desine Inc., 2183 Pless Drive, Brighton, was present to 
represent the petitioner and owner.  Mr. Barnwell provided a description of the 
subject parcel and indicated the proposed request would provide a better transition 
for the residential to the west.  He noted an Arby’s restaurant is located to the south 
of the subject parcel, and that the applicant operates the current Taco Bell 
restaurant directly south of the subject parcel.  Mr. Barnwell said the proposed new 
location for the Taco Bell restaurant would satisfy the requirements to upgrade the 
facility per corporate standards.  Mr. Barnwell displayed drawings of the parcel 
layout and shared driveway with the office parcel.  Mr. Barnwell said the request 
would be before the Planning Commission again for special use and site plan 
approval, should the rezoning be approved.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-194 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the O-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the west side of Dequindre, 
north of Long Lake, within Section 12, being approximately 1.06 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan  
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Khan 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home 
Health Care, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – From R-1B 
(One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request that was initiated by the City Council.  He noted 
correspondence has been received from the attorney who represents the petitioner.  
The correspondence states that the public hearing notification improperly refers that 
the rezoning request to O-1 is that of the petitioner and not City Council.  Mr. 
Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City Management to deny the 
rezoning application.  City Management believes it would be more appropriate to 
consider the rezoning application or development proposal following approval of the 
Future Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance amendments.   
 
David Plunkett of 380 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Plunkett stated the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 
is not the request of the petitioner.  He said the petitioner’s request to rezone the 
parcel to B-1 was originally submitted in March 2005, and has been considered and 
postponed by City Council many times.  Mr. Plunkett considers the public hearing 
notification to be defective, and stated it is not proper to have this item for 
consideration by the Planning Commission this evening.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Lancaster stated the notification of public hearing is not substantially defective, 
and that the Planning Commission should consider that the applicant is City Council.  
She indicated City Council is asking the members to review the O-1 rezoning request 
so that City Council can make a decision on the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Plunkett replied the notification of public hearing states that it is the application of 
James Gerback to rezone the property to O-1, and that is not true.  He said his letter 
dated November 1, 2006, asked the City to publish a corrected notification of public 
hearing.  He said the City’s reply that the point would be made at tonight’s meeting is 
not sufficient.  Mr. Plunkett asked that it be noted on record that the petitioner’s actual 
request to B-1 has been to City Council many times and continually postponed, and 
that it is not understood how the request to O-1 is back before the Planning 
Commission tonight.   
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that the State statute does not require the notification of public 
hearing to specify the applicant.  She said the only requirement of notice provision is 
that anybody who gets a postcard is informed about what is happening regarding the 
subject parcel, and that the notice to consider the O-1 rezoning is sufficient for 
consideration by the Planning Commission at tonight’s meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

A discussion followed with respect to taking no action on this item.   
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested that no action would place the item in abeyance at the 
Planning Commission level, and would not assist the petitioner in going forward with 
the application.   
 
Mr. Plunkett requested that action be taken by the Planning Commission and asked 
that a recommendation of denial be forwarded to City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller recommended also, as a professional community planner, that the members 
take action tonight.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-195 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 39,000 square feet 
in size, be denied, for the following reasons:   
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. This rezoning application would result in the enlargement of a non-residential 

zone along the Rochester Road corridor.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she sees no issue with rezoning the parcel to O-1 and going 
forward with a special use request.  She indicated that she originally voted to approve 
the B-1 rezoning request.   
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 345) – Proposed Pet Biz 
Commercial Kennel, West side of Austin, North of Maple (1705 Austin), Section 26, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the special use request and site plan.  Mr. Miller requested the members to 
use its discretion in determining whether there is enough shade and greenscape 
elements for the dog run area, as noted by the City’s Environmental Specialist.  Mr. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Miller confirmed that the site provides sufficient parking for both the Pet Biz 
Commercial Kennel and the industrial operation located on the same property.   
 
Mr. Schultz voiced a concern with the size of the loading/unloading area near the 
overhead door on the east side.  He also indicated that the dog runs should not be 
all concrete and gravel, and that some shade should be provided for the dog runs.   
 
The petitioners, Dan Limer of 3909 Edgeland, Royal Oak, and Jodie Ellison of 1309 
Mohawk, Royal Oak, were present.   
 
Mr. Limer said the second small building on the site is a vacant warehouse/office 
building of which they have the first right of refusal.  He indicated there is no use for 
the building at this point in time.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the height and screening of the existing chain link fence.  He 
voiced concern with the traffic and parking from the adjacent office building backing 
up to the dog runs.  Mr. Vleck said he would like to see additional landscape and 
shade, and would prefer a permanent screened fence that would provide no 
visibility and no line of sight for the dogs.     
 
Mr. Limer said the existing fence is 6 feet high and is not screened.   
 
Ms. Ellison addressed the time that dogs would be outside for exercise and inside 
for play and the screening process of clients.   
 
Mr. Limer said they would not be opposed to putting up more screening and 
replacing the cement/gravel runs with rubber, artificial turf or real grass.   
 
Ms. Kerwin asked if the petitioners would be willing to put in real grass and trees.   
 
Mr. Limer replied they would, and indicated there are a number of ways to create 
shade.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Khan noted that the Planning Department received one letter of opposition of 
which a copy was provided to the members at the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-196 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.08 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the Pet Biz 
Commercial Kennel, located on the west side of Austin, north of Maple, located in 
Section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide appropriate and/or adequate shade and greenscape elements in the 

dog run area, specifically artificial or real grass 
 
2. Create on the south property line a fence with woven slats or a separate fence to 

block visibility between the properties.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller   
No: Vleck 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would like to see a permanent wood and privacy fence.  He 
indicated that slats in a chain link fence do not hold up well and are displeasing to 
the eye.   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 
Article 35.00.00 Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
modifying the Planned Unit Development review and approval process.  Mr. Miller said 
City Management recommends that the item be postponed for further review.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Hunter Richardson of Great Falls, Virginia, was present.  Mr. Richardson represents 
the owners of the K-Mart facility and indicated they have been following the efforts 
of the Planning Commission and its sub-committee to re-work the PUD ordinance.  
He said they are in support of amending the current Zoning Ordinance based on the 
need for more flexibility within the PUD ordinance to accommodate multi-phased, 
mixed use projects and to make the PUD ordinance more attractive and more 
creative. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

The members briefly discussed the time frame to further review the item.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-197 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to its 
Regular meeting on December 12, 2006. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT – Rochester Road 
Overlay District Amendment 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Future Land Use Plan amendment and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the Rochester Road Overlay 
District.   
 
Mr. Khan asked if depth from the right of way of Rochester Road has been defined. 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the discussion at previous study sessions.  He recalled the 
consensus of the members was to not identify a depth, noting that it might be 
prohibitive to do so.  Mr. Miller informed the members that the issue on depth from 
the right of way of Rochester Road could be revisited at the time the Zoning 
Ordinance is developed.  He said any action this evening would only provide 
justification to prepare the zoning ordinance language to implement these types of 
findings.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-198 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission developed a draft amendment to the Future 
Land Use Plan for that area of Rochester Road between South Boulevard and Long 
Lake Road, the Rochester Road Overlay District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed plan amendment has been distributed for review as per 
the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended. 
 
RESOLVED, the Planning Commission hereby approves the draft amendment of 
the City of Troy Future Land Use Plan, the Rochester Road Overlay District. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the Planning Commission hereby submits a copy of 
the draft amendment to City Council as per the requirements of the Municipal 
Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

13. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 936) – Proposed Medical Office Building, West side of 
Livernois, North of Town Center, Section 21, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the location of the deceleration lane, the potential 
to consolidate parcels at this location, the required 8-foot width of the public 
walkway parallel to Livernois, and the parking as relates to the 2-foot overhang.  
 
Michael Guerra of Livernois Properties Group LLC, 70 W. Long Lake Road, Troy, 
was present.  Mr. Guerra addressed the landscape plan and tree diagram in detail.  
He indicated that a majority of the trees are in poor condition or dead, and it is his 
intent to clear-cut and replant quality trees.  Mr. Guerra confirmed that all storm 
water would be stored underground. 
 
Ms. Kerwin noted the tree diagram identifies some trees as salvageable.  She 
asked the petitioner what favorable items the proposed development would bring to 
the residents who value the existing wooded area.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Guerra said it would be a single story development with a residential flavor and 
soft elements.  He indicated the landscape plan meets all the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance, and noted no residents are present at tonight’s meeting to 
address the landscape plan.  
 
Mr. Khan addressed the survival rate of poor quality trees during development.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-199 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Medical Office Facility, located on the west side of Livernois, north of Town Center, 
Section 21, within the O-1 Zoning District, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

14. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-E) – William Beaumont Hospital Proposed MRI #3 
Addition, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd., Section 1, Zoned C-F 
(Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
MRI addition to Beaumont Hospital, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Lemire said an 8-foot public sidewalk along Dequindre Road would be 
installed in late spring.  He indicated they are waiting for approvals from the Road 
Commission of Oakland County.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-200 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
MRI #3 Addition, located on the west side of Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, 
Section 1, within the C-F Zoning District, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
16. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Mr. Khan announced that he would not be seeking another term with the Planning 
Commission, and that he would not be attending the December Regular meeting.  
He said he was thankful for the opportunity to serve on the board, and enjoyed 
working with all the members and making friendships.  
 
Mr. Khan was wished well by all the members and administrative staff. 
 
Mr. Waller questioned the status of the Starbucks application.   
 
Mr. Miller said it is his understanding that the petitioner is not moving forward with 
the request.     
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the accomplishments of the Troy Library – recognized as the 
13th best in the nation and 2nd best in the state.  She announced an exclusive sale 
by the Friends of the Library on November 28. 
 
Mr. Miller addressed future application submission from Beaumont Hospital.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:14 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\11-14-06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 14, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-188 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Wright are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
To accommodate public hearing participation, it was agreed to move Agenda item #10 
forward under Agenda item #4, and identify it as Agenda item #4(a).  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-189 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as amended.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 719) – Proposed Troy Medical 

Office, West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City Management to postpone the 
item at the request of the petitioner who is pursuing a conditional rezoning on the 
subject property.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-190 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits a complete conditional rezoning application and a 
public hearing has been scheduled. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

4(a). PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor 
Parking of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
There was a brief discussion relating to the administrative approval process for 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
commercial vehicles in residential districts and the results of the commercial 
vehicles visual survey in which the City Council participated.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed a new trend in which smaller vehicles are completely 
wrapped in signage.  She noted wrapped vehicles would be permitted under the 
proposed ordinance text.  Ms. Kerwin also addressed the survey results in relation 
to the proposed text.  She indicated she would not support the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment as presented tonight.   
 
There was discussion on Section 40.66.00 of the proposed text as relates to the list 
of criteria and its intent.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Edgar Hendry of 2446 Tall Oaks Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hendry spoke in 
opposition to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  He said the 
amendment as proposed would permit him to park a commercial crane in his 
driveway provided the boom was down and weight and height restrictions were met.   
 
Nancy McKay of 5069 Prentis Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms McKay posed the 
following questions:  (1) Who would measure and weigh the vehicles? (2) Can the 
vehicles be parked in the street? (3) How many vehicles per residence would be 
allowed?  
 
Mr. Miller replied that one vehicle per residence would be permitted.  At the request 
of Chair Strat, he addressed the definition and regulation of trailers.   
 
Chair Strat said the responsibility of weighing and measuring the vehicles would be 
taken under advisement.   
 
David Reese, associate broker for Real Estate One, 70 W. Long Lake Road, Troy, 
was present.  He introduced a second petition signed by realtors in opposition of the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment and addressed the impact of the 
proposed amendment to the overall value of the community.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed what he feels is discrimination against working-class residents 
who must use commercial vehicles to make a living.  Mr. Vleck said the proposed 
text is not fair, appropriate, or ready to forward to the City Council for approval.  He 
briefly addressed the definition and regulations of commercial vehicles. 
 
Chair Strat reviewed the options available on this item.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-191 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to a future study session to look at it more in 
depth.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would like to review commercial vehicle zoning ordinance 
language from nearby communities.   
 
Mr. Miller replied the departmental file contains volumes of ordinances from nearby 
communities relating to commercial vehicles, and said Ms. Kerwin is welcome to 
review the file.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS (continued) 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 340) – Proposed T-Mobile 
Cellular Tower, West side of Coolidge, South of I-75 (on site of Troy Fire Station No. 
6), Section 7, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the special use request and site plan with the conditions that specifications 
are provided on the removal of the tower and the provision for future collocations on 
the tower.    
 
Mr. Savidant noted topographical drawings of the subject parcel and abutting 
property were provided to the Planning Commission, at their request.  Mr. Savidant 
reported the Planning Department received a significant number of written 
correspondences in opposition to the cellular tower and referenced the regulations 
set forth by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Act of 1996.   
 
Chair Strat brought to the attention of the members that his sister and brother-in-law 
live in the subject subdivision, but indicated he has no financial interest in T-Mobile.   
 
The members agreed there is no conflict of interest on the part of Chair Strat. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Ms. Lancaster reviewed the key provisions stipulated by the FCC Act of 1996 and 
the role of the Planning Commission with respect to the special use request and site 
plan approval.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that the City Assessor reports there is no correlation to 
decreased property values for homes that are located near wireless cellular towers.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts shared her previous work experience with cellular towers and 
stated that property values would not be affected by the placement of a tower.  Ms. 
Drake-Batts offered considerations in the approval process; i.e., require the tower to 
look like a light pole and limit the number of collocations.  
 
Ellen Tencer of 3033 Moon Lake Drive, West Bloomfield, was present on behalf of 
T-Mobile.  Ms. Tencer said the number of collocations would be limited to two, 
possibly three, based on the height of the tower.  She indicated the cellular tower 
would be the image of existing Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) 
towers located on I-75.  Ms. Tencer’s presentation addressed cellular phone 
service, the countywide wireless service and aesthetics.  She circulated propagation 
maps that displayed cellular coverage for T-Mobile service and photographs of a 
superimposed 75-foot tower from the southwest and northwest directions. 
 
Ms. Tencer fielded questions relating to cellular tower locations in Troy and details 
of the proposed tower in terms of aesthetics, collocations and design.  Ms. Tencer 
addressed comments of the City’s Transportation Engineer and Landscape Analyst 
and indicated willingness to place a camera on the pole for freeway surveillance 
and provide landscaping.   
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that conditions such as a camera and landscaping could be 
stipulations of the special use approval.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Cheryl Korth of 2086 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Korth spoke in 
opposition of the special use request as relates to aesthetics and home values.  
She addressed the response of residents in opposition to the request and said she 
is angry because it appears the Planning Commission has already made up its mind 
to approve the request.   
 
Chuck Little of 2478 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Little represented the 
Beach Forest homeowners association and said its members are in opposition of 
the special use request.  Mr. Little addressed the residential zoning, aesthetics, 
potential alternative locations, perception of health concerns and the viability of 
T-Mobile.  
 
Lynn Remenar of 2466 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Remenar spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  She possessed a petition signed by 60 
residents in opposition of the cellular tower and indicated the petition would be 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

provided to the Planning Department for the record.  Ms. Remenar read a letter 
from a resident who lives north of Square Lake and east of Coolidge who is also 
opposed to the tower.      
 
Ning Chen of 5854 Faircastle Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Chen spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  He addressed aesthetics and potential health 
concerns. 
 
William Middlekauff 2449 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Middlekauff 
spoke in opposition to the cellular tower as relates to the residential location, 
screening and home values.  Mr. Middlekauff submitted documentation from the 
U.S. Census Bureau and maps in relation to the proposed location of the tower and 
potential alternate locations.   
 
Chris Dubay of 2465 Oak Ridge Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dubay spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  He addressed the potential negative impact 
on home resale values, technology used by T-Mobile and sincerity of the residents 
in opposition of the tower.   
 
Dan Bliss of 2070 Haverford Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bliss spoke in opposition 
of the special use request.  He addressed the logistics of his home in relation to the 
proposed tower, neighborhood aesthetics and residential zoning.   
 
Wendy Wu of 1942 Fleetwood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Wu spoke in opposition of 
the special use request.  She addressed the residential zoning and potential health 
concerns.   
 
Yu Zhang of 1851 New Castle Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Zhang spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  As vice president of Wyngate homeowners 
association, he supports Beach Forest residents in their opposition.  Mr. Zhang 
stated the proposed tower benefits T-Mobile and its users only.   
 
Edgar Hendry of 2446 Tall Oaks Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hendry spoke in 
opposition of the special use request.  He addressed the perception of health 
concerns and resale values of the homes.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the FCC regulations and emphasized the Planning 
Commission cannot consider potential health concerns in its decision-making 
process.  He said communications from the residents have been received and read 
by the members, and he personally finds some of the comments to be insulting.  Mr. 
Vleck addressed the role of the Planning Commission as relates to site plan 
approval and the role of the City Council as relates to the approval of the contract 
with T-Mobile.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat addressed the role of the Planning Commission.  He emphasized that 
special consideration is not given to the value of homes, and that equal respect and 
consideration are given to all applications.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that the Zoning Ordinance prohibits the placement of cellular 
tower facilities in City parks and on school sites.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion on the Zoning Ordinance relating to prohibiting cell 
towers in City parks and school sites.   
 
Chair Strat indicated he would not support the proposed request because of the 
perception of health concerns and to protect the home values.  He indicated that 
Firefighters Park would be a better location.     
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the roles of the Planning Commission and City Council, 
respectively.   
 
Members Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck, Kerwin and Schultz addressed their reasons for 
supporting the proposed special use request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-192 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 10.30.08 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed T-Mobile Cellular Tower, located on the west side of Coolidge, south of I-
75, located in Section 7, within the R-1B zoning district, is hereby granted, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall provide financial assurances, in a form acceptable to the City 

Manager, that the communication tower shall be removed from the site within 
one (1) year of the date that its use ceases, as per Section 10.30.08.I.2 of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. To minimize the impact of communication towers in the City of Troy, the 

applicant shall provide for only one future collocation of wireless communication 
equipment on the tower per Section 10.30.08.J of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
3. That the tower is made to look like a light pole rather than the one that was 

submitted to us. 
 
4. To provide a landscaping plan that provides a minimum of six (6) evergreen 

trees to be approved by the Planning Director. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the zoning of fire stations.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that Fire Station No. 6 is located in the R-1B residential zoning 
district and not in the C-F Community Facility zoning district.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat said his no vote is based on the perception of the damage to the values 
of the homes in the surrounding area.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:22 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:34 p.m. 

___________ 
 
[Student Representative Shin exited the meeting.] 
 
 

6. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 117-C) – Proposed Private School, Proposed St. 
Mark Christian Academy at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, West side of 
Livernois, South of Kirk Lane (3603 Livernois) Section 21 – R-1B 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed concerns with traffic safety and indicated she would not 
support the request.   
 
There was discussion on a deceleration lane at this site.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the dumpster location and related notation on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Savidant said access of a trash removal truck to the screened dumpster is 
feasible.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Evans Caruso of Constantine George Pappas Architects, 560 Kirts, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Caruso apologized and indicated the dumpster notation on the site 
plan should have been erased.  He said all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance 
have been met.   
 
Fr. Maximus Habib, 3603 Livernois, Troy, was present to represent St. Mark Coptic 
Orthodox Church.  Fr. Habib estimated a maximum of 50-60 children are in 
attendance at the nursery school at one given time.  He informed the Planning 
Commission that a deceleration lane was waived by the City Engineer on the basis 
that there is no room to put a deceleration lane.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-193 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 10.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Private School, located at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, on the west 
side of Livernois Road, south of Wattles Road, located in Section 21, within the R-
1B zoning district, is hereby granted.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Kerwin 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin indicated her dissenting vote is based on safety concerns relating to 
traffic.  She would hope the City is proactive in addressing those safety concerns.   
Ms. Kerwin addressed the lack of documentation provided by the Planning 
Department on the City’s waiver to provide a deceleration lane at this site.   
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 723) – Proposed Taco Bell 

Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – From O-1 
(Low Rise Office) to B-2 (Community Business) District 

 
Mr. Khan announced the subject rezoning request is next to his home and excused 
himself from discussion and vote on the subject request.  
 
Mr. Miller explained the administrative approval process for rezoning requests.    
 
The petitioner indicated consent to go forward with the request.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.  Mr. Savidant noted the 
relationship between the subject parcel and the abutting O-1 parcel to the west is 
undesirable, but the application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if access to the O-1 parcel would be via the narrow alley along 
the northerly edge. 
 
Mr. Savidant responded in the affirmative.   
 
James Barnwell of Desine Inc., 2183 Pless Drive, Brighton, was present to 
represent the petitioner and owner.  Mr. Barnwell provided a description of the 
subject parcel and indicated the proposed request would provide a better transition 
for the residential to the west.  He noted an Arby’s restaurant is located to the south 
of the subject parcel, and that the applicant operates the current Taco Bell 
restaurant directly south of the subject parcel.  Mr. Barnwell said the proposed new 
location for the Taco Bell restaurant would satisfy the requirements to upgrade the 
facility per corporate standards.  Mr. Barnwell displayed drawings of the parcel 
layout and shared driveway with the office parcel.  Mr. Barnwell said the request 
would be before the Planning Commission again for special use and site plan 
approval, should the rezoning be approved.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-194 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the O-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the west side of Dequindre, 
north of Long Lake, within Section 12, being approximately 1.06 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan  
2. The application is compatible with the existing zoning districts and land uses. 

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Khan 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home 
Health Care, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – From R-1B 
(One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request that was initiated by the City Council.  He noted 
correspondence has been received from the attorney who represents the petitioner.  
The correspondence states that the public hearing notification improperly refers that 
the rezoning request to O-1 is that of the petitioner and not City Council.  Mr. 
Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City Management to deny the 
rezoning application.  City Management believes it would be more appropriate to 
consider the rezoning application or development proposal following approval of the 
Future Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance amendments.   
 
David Plunkett of 380 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Plunkett stated the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 
is not the request of the petitioner.  He said the petitioner’s request to rezone the 
parcel to B-1 was originally submitted in March 2005, and has been considered and 
postponed by City Council many times.  Mr. Plunkett considers the public hearing 
notification to be defective, and stated it is not proper to have this item for 
consideration by the Planning Commission this evening.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Lancaster stated the notification of public hearing is not substantially defective, 
and that the Planning Commission should consider that the applicant is City Council.  
She indicated City Council is asking the members to review the O-1 rezoning request 
so that City Council can make a decision on the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Plunkett replied the notification of public hearing states that it is the application of 
James Gerback to rezone the property to O-1, and that is not true.  He said his letter 
dated November 1, 2006, asked the City to publish a corrected notification of public 
hearing.  He said the City’s reply that the point would be made at tonight’s meeting is 
not sufficient.  Mr. Plunkett asked that it be noted on record that the petitioner’s actual 
request to B-1 has been to City Council many times and continually postponed, and 
that it is not understood how the request to O-1 is back before the Planning 
Commission tonight.   
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that the State statute does not require the notification of public 
hearing to specify the applicant.  She said the only requirement of notice provision is 
that anybody who gets a postcard is informed about what is happening regarding the 
subject parcel, and that the notice to consider the O-1 rezoning is sufficient for 
consideration by the Planning Commission at tonight’s meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

A discussion followed with respect to taking no action on this item.   
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested that no action would place the item in abeyance at the 
Planning Commission level, and would not assist the petitioner in going forward with 
the application.   
 
Mr. Plunkett requested that action be taken by the Planning Commission and asked 
that a recommendation of denial be forwarded to City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller recommended also, as a professional community planner, that the members 
take action tonight.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-195 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, within Section 3, being approximately 39,000 square feet 
in size, be denied, for the following reasons:   
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. This rezoning application would result in the enlargement of a non-residential 

zone along the Rochester Road corridor.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she sees no issue with rezoning the parcel to O-1 and going 
forward with a special use request.  She indicated that she originally voted to approve 
the B-1 rezoning request.   
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 345) – Proposed Pet Biz 
Commercial Kennel, West side of Austin, North of Maple (1705 Austin), Section 26, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the special use request and site plan.  Mr. Miller requested the members to 
use its discretion in determining whether there is enough shade and greenscape 
elements for the dog run area, as noted by the City’s Environmental Specialist.  Mr. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Miller confirmed that the site provides sufficient parking for both the Pet Biz 
Commercial Kennel and the industrial operation located on the same property.   
 
Mr. Schultz voiced a concern with the size of the loading/unloading area near the 
overhead door on the east side.  He also indicated that the dog runs should not be 
all concrete and gravel, and that some shade should be provided for the dog runs.   
 
The petitioners, Dan Limer of 3909 Edgeland, Royal Oak, and Jodie Ellison of 1309 
Mohawk, Royal Oak, were present.   
 
Mr. Limer said the second small building on the site is a vacant warehouse/office 
building of which they have the first right of refusal.  He indicated there is no use for 
the building at this point in time.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the height and screening of the existing chain link fence.  He 
voiced concern with the traffic and parking from the adjacent office building backing 
up to the dog runs.  Mr. Vleck said he would like to see additional landscape and 
shade, and would prefer a permanent screened fence that would provide no 
visibility and no line of sight for the dogs.     
 
Mr. Limer said the existing fence is 6 feet high and is not screened.   
 
Ms. Ellison addressed the time that dogs would be outside for exercise and inside 
for play and the screening process of clients.   
 
Mr. Limer said they would not be opposed to putting up more screening and 
replacing the cement/gravel runs with rubber, artificial turf or real grass.   
 
Ms. Kerwin asked if the petitioners would be willing to put in real grass and trees.   
 
Mr. Limer replied they would, and indicated there are a number of ways to create 
shade.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Khan noted that the Planning Department received one letter of opposition of 
which a copy was provided to the members at the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-196 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.08 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the Pet Biz 
Commercial Kennel, located on the west side of Austin, north of Maple, located in 
Section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide appropriate and/or adequate shade and greenscape elements in the 

dog run area, specifically artificial or real grass 
 
2. Create on the south property line a fence with woven slats or a separate fence to 

block visibility between the properties.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller   
No: Vleck 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would like to see a permanent wood and privacy fence.  He 
indicated that slats in a chain link fence do not hold up well and are displeasing to 
the eye.   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 
Article 35.00.00 Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
modifying the Planned Unit Development review and approval process.  Mr. Miller said 
City Management recommends that the item be postponed for further review.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Hunter Richardson of Great Falls, Virginia, was present.  Mr. Richardson represents 
the owners of the K-Mart facility and indicated they have been following the efforts 
of the Planning Commission and its sub-committee to re-work the PUD ordinance.  
He said they are in support of amending the current Zoning Ordinance based on the 
need for more flexibility within the PUD ordinance to accommodate multi-phased, 
mixed use projects and to make the PUD ordinance more attractive and more 
creative. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

The members briefly discussed the time frame to further review the item.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-197 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to its 
Regular meeting on December 12, 2006. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT – Rochester Road 
Overlay District Amendment 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Future Land Use Plan amendment and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the Rochester Road Overlay 
District.   
 
Mr. Khan asked if depth from the right of way of Rochester Road has been defined. 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the discussion at previous study sessions.  He recalled the 
consensus of the members was to not identify a depth, noting that it might be 
prohibitive to do so.  Mr. Miller informed the members that the issue on depth from 
the right of way of Rochester Road could be revisited at the time the Zoning 
Ordinance is developed.  He said any action this evening would only provide 
justification to prepare the zoning ordinance language to implement these types of 
findings.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-11-198 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission developed a draft amendment to the Future 
Land Use Plan for that area of Rochester Road between South Boulevard and Long 
Lake Road, the Rochester Road Overlay District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed plan amendment has been distributed for review as per 
the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended. 
 
RESOLVED, the Planning Commission hereby approves the draft amendment of 
the City of Troy Future Land Use Plan, the Rochester Road Overlay District. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the Planning Commission hereby submits a copy of 
the draft amendment to City Council as per the requirements of the Municipal 
Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

13. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 936) – Proposed Medical Office Building, West side of 
Livernois, North of Town Center, Section 21, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the location of the deceleration lane, the potential 
to consolidate parcels at this location, the required 8-foot width of the public 
walkway parallel to Livernois, and the parking as relates to the 2-foot overhang.  
 
Michael Guerra of Livernois Properties Group LLC, 70 W. Long Lake Road, Troy, 
was present.  Mr. Guerra addressed the landscape plan and tree diagram in detail.  
He indicated that a majority of the trees are in poor condition or dead, and it is his 
intent to clear-cut and replant quality trees.  Mr. Guerra confirmed that all storm 
water would be stored underground. 
 
Ms. Kerwin noted the tree diagram identifies some trees as salvageable.  She 
asked the petitioner what favorable items the proposed development would bring to 
the residents who value the existing wooded area.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Guerra said it would be a single story development with a residential flavor and 
soft elements.  He indicated the landscape plan meets all the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance, and noted no residents are present at tonight’s meeting to 
address the landscape plan.  
 
Mr. Khan addressed the survival rate of poor quality trees during development.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-199 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Medical Office Facility, located on the west side of Livernois, north of Town Center, 
Section 21, within the O-1 Zoning District, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

14. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-E) – William Beaumont Hospital Proposed MRI #3 
Addition, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd., Section 1, Zoned C-F 
(Community Facilities) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
MRI addition to Beaumont Hospital, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
Jim Lemire of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Lemire said an 8-foot public sidewalk along Dequindre Road would be 
installed in late spring.  He indicated they are waiting for approvals from the Road 
Commission of Oakland County.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-200 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
MRI #3 Addition, located on the west side of Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, 
Section 1, within the C-F Zoning District, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 14, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
16. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Mr. Khan announced that he would not be seeking another term with the Planning 
Commission, and that he would not be attending the December Regular meeting.  
He said he was thankful for the opportunity to serve on the board, and enjoyed 
working with all the members and making friendships.  
 
Mr. Khan was wished well by all the members and administrative staff. 
 
Mr. Waller questioned the status of the Starbucks application.   
 
Mr. Miller said it is his understanding that the petitioner is not moving forward with 
the request.     
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed the accomplishments of the Troy Library – recognized as the 
13th best in the nation and 2nd best in the state.  She announced an exclusive sale 
by the Friends of the Library on November 28. 
 
Mr. Miller addressed future application submission from Beaumont Hospital.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:14 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\11-14-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 
 
 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT  NOVEMBER 16, 2006 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday November 16, 2006 
at the Office of the Library Director.  Lynne Gregory, Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Kul B. Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Weeler 
    
   Arthi Krishna, Student Representative 
   Shruthi Subramanian, Student Representative 
        
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-11-01 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Audre Zembrzuski be excused. 
 
Yes:  4—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-11-02 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of October 13, 2006 be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-011-03 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Wheeler 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT  NOVEMBER 16, 2006 
 

 2 

 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
INTRODUCTIONS 
Shruthi Subramanian was introduced as our new Student Representative. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed Items. 
 
NEW BUSINESS. 
There was no New Business. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The cost quote for receipt printers that will work with the Sirsi system has been 
received.  It is the intent of the library to have these in place in the next few months.  
The stability of the Internet connection in the Adult Services Technology Center appears 
to have been resolved.  The Library ranked 2nd in Michigan among all public libraries, 
13th in the nation for libraries serving populations our size and was in the top 1% of all 
9,078 public libraries in the country.  Three HVAC units were replaced over the Adult 
Services department.  The pre-cast on the outside of the building has been power-
washed and painted. 
 
Board Member’s Comments 
Wheeler read an article from the League of Women Voter’s newsletter about the United 
Nation’s display at our library. 
 
Gregory informed the Board that he attended a meeting concerning the possible merger 
of the Suburban Library Cooperative and the Library Network.  The general 
philosophies of the two organizations were discussed. 
 
Gauri presented an article about the Waterford Library installing self-checkout/RFID 
technology and the associated costs.  
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
There were no comments. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
Gregory reported that since the SLC Board is meeting tonight, he will report on that 
meeting in December. 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT  NOVEMBER 16, 2006 
 

 3 

Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
Tammy Duszynski, President of the Friends of the Troy Public Library reported that the 
Friends Board had been working on a method to allow interested artists to be able to 
post the prices of their exhibited items if they wanted to.  Basically, the proposal would 
require the artist to be a “Business Member” of the Friends and donate 15% of any 
sales from the exhibit to the Friends.  This would provide a tangible benefit to the 
Library since the funds raised by the Friends are used to support the Library.  There 
was no formal proposal provided to the Library Advisory Board.  Also discussed was the 
need for better communication between the two Boards.  Eisenbacher stressed the 
importance of a Friend’s Board Member attending the Library Advisory Board meetings 
on a regular basis.  Duszynski invited all Library Board members to attend the Friend’s 
Board meetings.  Duszynski also mentioned that the Friend’s Building Committee will be 
presenting their concept of the library of the future to staff at the December 8th All Staff 
meeting.  This is the same information presented to the Board by Maria Hunciag in the 
Spring and also to those Board members who attended the Book Store meeting this 
Fall. 
 
Gifts. 
No gifts were received. 
 
Informational Items. 
November TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
25 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
Tom Duszynski asked if there was a way that within the Sirsi program a patron could 
change their email address used for notifications.  He also asked if the library 
participated in the Michicard program and MelCat. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
Lynne Gregory 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Hutson, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, November 21, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Christopher Fejes 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from this meeting due to illness. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES FROM THIS MEETING CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2006 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 17, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:   5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 - Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to hear Item #6 on the Agenda out of order. 
 

• Same request has appeared before this Board for a number of years. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

MOTION TO TAKE ITEM #6 OUT OF ORDER CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST (Taken out of Order.)  JOHN BRODERICK, OF 
HONEYBAKED HAM, 1081 E. LONG LAKE, for relief of the Ordinance to place two 
temporary storage containers for the time period December 10th through December 31, 
2006. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under the Zoning 
Ordinance to place two temporary storage containers outside at 1081 E. Long Lake 
from December 10, 2006, through December 31, 2006.  Section 43.80.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance gives the Board of Zoning Appeals the authority to permit temporary 
buildings for permitted uses for a time frame not to exceed two years.  This Board has 
granted similar requests for this site in the past.  The Building Department has no record 
of complaints as a result of previous approvals. 
 
Mr. Broderick was present and asked if this Board could grant this request for this year 
and next year.  Other than this time request, this request is identical to the other 
requests made by this petitioner. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that although this Board had the authority to grant this request for 
a period of two years, in his application, the petitioner had only requested the time 
frame that was published. 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested that the petitioner ask for the additional time needed the next 
time they came before the Board. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant John Broderick, of Honey Baked Ham, 1081 E. Long Lake, relief of 
the Ordinance to place two (2) temporary storage containers outside for the time period 
December 10th through December 31, 2006. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no objections on file. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JAE DUK CHO, OF ADA ARCHITECTS, 1304 E. 
MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result 
with a parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line 
and 21’-8” to the east property line where Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front setback 
and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the front yard remain free of parking 
and maneuvering lanes. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter an 
existing industrial building. 
 
The site plan submitted indicates the removal of the existing office portion of an 
industrial building and the expansion of the parking lot on the north side of the building 
to within 10’ of the north property line along Maple Road and within 21’-8” of the east 
property line along Allen Drive.  Section 30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
50’ front setback in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District and Paragraph L of Section 
31.30.00 requires that this front yard remain free of parking or maneuvering lanes.  The 
parking lot along the east property line farther south on this lot is currently located 21’-8” 
from the front property line along Allen Drive based upon a variance granted in 1992. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 17, 2006 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to look at other options that are 
available; and to allow the petitioner to demonstrate to the Board the reason this much 
parking will be required.  Since that meeting revised plans have been submitted with an 
alternate parking layout that would increase the greenbelt along the Maple Road 
property line to 43’. 
 
Mr. Dan Saleet was present and stated that they had listened to what the Board had to 
say at the last meeting and believe they have come up with a solution that will appeal to 
the Board.  They have reduced the number of parking spaces to ninety-three (93), 
which will be enough for their needs.  They have also increased the amount of 
greenspace along Maple Road that will now result in a 43’ setback. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he appreciated the compromise that the petitioner had made 
and thought this variance request was more reasonable. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that this plan is much better and likes the fact that the petitioner is 
providing more greenspace. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Jae Duk Cho, of ADA Architects, 1304 E. Maple, relief of the 
Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result with a parking lot on the 
north side of the building to within 43’ of the property line along Maple Road, where 
Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front setback and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 
requires that the front yard remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a Zoning 

District. 
• The revised site plan will result in less paving in the front yard than currently 

exists. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  YEN CHEN, 4679 JOHN R., for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition at the rear of his existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates the 
proposed three-season enclosure will result in a 26’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1C Zoning District.  
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 17, 2006 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Joe Foxa, representing Mr. and Mrs. Chen was present.  He distributed drawings of 
other possibilities for this sunroom.  Mr. Foxa indicated that they could convert the 
existing garage to a sunroom and then construct a detached garage at the rear of the 
property.  Mr. Foxa stated that although he understands the neighbors are very much 
against this sunroom, in his opinion it would be better to look at a sunroom rather than a 
detached garage.  The homeowners are amenable to changing the existing garage to a 
three-season room. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if a garage could be constructed without a variance.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that although he was not sure if there were any easements at the rear of this 
property, the alternate plan submitted would comply with the Ordinance regarding the 
square footage of accessory buildings, lot coverage and setbacks. 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Foxa stated that he did not think the people behind this home would like to look at 
the back of a garage.  He said that he had attempted to contact the owners that abut 
this property but was unable to talk to them. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he was against this variance request and the alternate plan does 
not require any type of variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that in his opinion the neighbors were probably more interested in 
what would be happening with the large recreational vehicle parked on the property. 
 
Mr. Foxa said that he offered that vehicle to the neighbors as a bargaining tool to them 
and said if they would be willing to rescind their objection, he could probably convince 
the Chens to move the vehicle to a storage lot, but the neighbors did not accept that.  
The Chens also like to have the recreational vehicle parked in their yard.  Mr. Foxa also 
asked if the neighbors would rather look at a garage, with a ladder hanging on the back, 
possibly painted orange or a sunroom 30’ or 40’ away. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that there are two plans available, one that would require a variance 
and one that does not.  He sympathizes with the needs of the Chens, but this property 
does not warrant a variance.  This is a spec home built to within the 40’ line, and the 
petitioner is allowed to add a detached garage. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of  Yen Chen, 4679 John R., for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear yard setback, 
where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1C Zoning 
District. 
 

• Petitioner failed to demonstrate a hardship running with the land. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Wright, Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO DENY VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson explained that the Ordinance requires a hardship with the land in order to 
grant a variance, and there is not a hardship running with this property. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFFREY AND DONNA ARCE, 3511 BEACH, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a covered front porch and laundry room addition to 
their existing, legal non-conforming home.  These alterations would result in a 31’ front 
setback to the new covered porch and a 37’ front setback to the proposed laundry room 
addition.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ front yard setback and Section 40.50.04  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way that increases the non-
conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a covered front porch and laundry room addition to their existing home.  This home is a 
non-conforming structure.  The original plans for the home from 1961 show that it would 
meet the minimum front setback.  However, recent surveys show that it has an existing 
36’ front yard setback to Beach Road where 40’ is required per Section 30.10.02.  Plans 
submitted indicate a new covered porch with a proposed 31’ front setback and a 
proposed laundry room addition with a 37’ front setback to the front property line along 
Beach Road.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a 
way that increases the non-conformity. 
 
Jeffrey and Donna Arce were present.  Mr. Arce stated that they have been residents of 
Troy for sixteen (16) years and they are in the process of re-doing the roof.  They 
thought this would be a good time to make the necessary changes they wanted to do to 
their home.  There are a lot of renovations going on around the neighborhood and they 
believe this is the time to do it. 
 
Mr. Arce explained that they cannot enter the house from the attached garage, and 
when they add the laundry room, they will change the entrance to the home and have a 
true attached garage.  Even though the addition is going out 7’ it will not go up to the 
edge of the house.  The addition is approximately 17’ x 11’, and it will close off the 
breezeway and give them a true attached garage. 
 
There is an existing 4’ x 12’ open porch and they plan to rebuild it, add the roof and 
some columns.  They have been working on this project for about a year and Mr. Arce 
believes this will fit in very nicely with the other homes in the area.  Mr. Arce said that he 
had spoken to a number of his neighbors and they have all been very supportive of 
these proposed changes.  These changes will not expand the structure more than it 
already is.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeffrey and Donna Arce, 3511 Beach, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a covered front porch and laundry room addition to their existing, legal non-
conforming home.  These alterations would result in a 31’ front setback to the new 
covered porch and a 37’ front setback to the proposed laundry room addition.  Section 
30.10.02 requires a 40’ front yard setback and Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of 
non-conforming structures in a way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Variance will not decrease the existing setback of the home. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TOBY BUECHNER, 1600 W. MAPLE, for relief of 
the Ordinance to eliminate the sidewalk along the northeast portion of the building and 
also to eliminate the sidewalk between the Maple road public sidewalk and the building 
perimeter sidewalk, both of which are required by Section 39.70.03. 
 
Petitioner is also asking for relief of the dumpster enclosure screening required by 
Section 39.70.09.  

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to eliminate 
the sidewalk along the northeast portion of the building between the building and the 
vehicular use area and also to eliminate the sidewalk between the Maple Road public 
sidewalk and the building perimeter sidewalk, both of which are required by Section 
39.70.03. 
 
Petitioner is also asking for relief of the dumpster enclosure screening required by 
Section 39.70.09.  
 
In August, 2006, the petitioner received a variance from this Board to reduce the 
amount of countable landscaping to 4,923 square feet where Section 39.70.04 of the 
Ordinance requires a minimum of 7,062 square feet of landscaping; and, in January 
2006 Mr. Buechner received a variance to eliminate the sidewalk along the northwest 
and a portion of the west side of the building. 
 
Mr. Buechner was present and stated that he is new to this business and he and his 
brother are trying to create a valuable business in the City of Troy.  This is a uniquely 
shaped building.  Mr. Buechner stated that the sidewalk in the back of the property does 
not come or go from anywhere and this is the reason he does not feel it is valuable.  
Regarding the sidewalk from the front of the building to Maple, Mr. Buechner said that  
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
he did not believe anyone has ever walked to the building.  He is trying to be practical 
and does not feel that this sidewalk is needed. 
 
Mr. Buechner said that the dumpster is small, brand new and is actually screened by a 
tree and the building next door.  There are a number of large dumpsters in this area that 
are not screened and he does not feel the dumpster on his property should require any 
additional screening.  This building was vacant for three (3) years and he feels that they 
are moving in the right direction.  Kids are having fun and there are seventeen (17) 
people employed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how people would safely walk to the entrance of the building if the 
sidewalk was removed behind the building.  Mr. Buechner said that he does not believe 
in the nine (9) months that this building has been operational, anyone has ever parked 
at the back of the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the reason there is no sidewalk along the west side of the 
building, is because this Board had previously granted a variance to eliminate that 
sidewalk.  The plan originally seen by the Planning Commission and this Board had the 
parking and the driveway flipped.  The driveway was at the northern edge of the 
property, but there is an existing pole with a guy wire, which makes it almost impossible 
to put a driveway in this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for clarification regarding the variance granted by this Board for the 
sidewalk on this property.  Mr. Stimac explained that previously there was a request to 
eliminate the sidewalk along the northwest portion of the building and this variance was 
granted.  Mr. Buechner said that this was due to the irregular shape of the building and 
constraints to provide adequate parking. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he did not have a problem granting a variance for either 
sidewalk, but did have a problem eliminating the screening around the dumpster.  Mr. 
Buechner passed a picture around to the Board members so that they could see what 
the dumpster looked like. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked what type of screening would be put around this dumpster and Mr. 
Buechner said that he would probably put screening on three (3) sides of the dumpster, 
but does not feel this is very practical, and hopes that if he does have to add screening, 
no one will crash into it. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 21, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that this was a very difficult site.  Mr. Buechner said that the beauty is 
on the inside of the building, and many employees of the City have brought their 
children over to use and enjoy this facility. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Toby Buechner, 1600 W. Maple, relief of the Ordinance to eliminate 
the sidewalk along the northeast portion of the building also to eliminate the sidewalk 
between the Maple road public sidewalk and the building perimeter sidewalk, both of 
which are required by Section 39.70.03. 
 

• There is no practical purpose for the sidewalks. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  6  - Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCES FOR THE ELIMINATION OF TWO SIDEWALKS 
CARRIED 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Toby Buechner, 1600 W. Maple, relief of the Ordinance to eliminate 
the dumpster enclosure screening required by Section 39.70.09.  
 

• Dumpster screening would be unnecessarily burdensome to the petitioner. 
• Screening would make turning in the parking lot very difficult. 

 
Yeas:  3 – Gies, Hutson, Kovacs 
Nays:  3 -  Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FAILS 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:26 P.M. 
 
 
              
       Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 9



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 28, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-201 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-202 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 7, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the November 21, 2006 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting.  
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the November 15, 2006 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting.  He noted that Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy was appointed as 
Executive Director of the DDA. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on Council actions taken at its November 27, 2006 Regular 
meeting. 
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed proposed ZOTA 215-B.   
 
Mr. Savidant addressed handouts distributed to the members prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting:  (1) Examples of vehicles and their correlated gross vehicle 
weight ratings; (2) A chart prepared by the Planning Department that details 
regulations of commercial vehicles in neighboring communities.  
 
After a thorough and lengthy discussion, it was the consensus of the members to 
prepare draft language similar to Lyon Township’s ordinance as groundwork for 
discussion.   
 
Ms. Lancaster will check on right of way authority. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:06 p.m. 

___________ 
 
[Student Representative Shin exited the meeting.] 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – Proposed Article 
22.30.08  Adult Use Businesses 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
adult use businesses.  He gave examples why language should be created to 
restrict adult use businesses and addressed the various ways to regulate the uses.  
Mr. Miller said a determination must be made as a basis to create and adopt an 
ordinance, and communities can regulate these uses based on the secondary 
effects associated with a concentration of these uses.  He indicated a number of 
communities in the United States have completed studies that document negative 
secondary effects of adult use businesses on their communities, and noted the 
reports are available in the Planning Department.  
 
Ms. Lancaster summarized pertinent cases that have established the law regarding 
adult use businesses and basic general principles to create a valid ordinance that 
would not suppress the First Amendment rights of an adult use business.  Ms. 
Lancaster briefly reviewed the proposed draft text amendment.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated that summaries of the studies that document the secondary 
effects of adult use businesses were distributed to each Planning Commissioner in 
their packets.  He encouraged members to read the completed reports of which 
hard copies would be available in the Planning Department and digital copies have 
already been emailed to each member.  Mr. Savidant said the most prevalent 
negative secondary effects are a decrease in property value and an increase in 
crime rate.  Mr. Savidant reviewed the GIS map created by the Planning 
Department as relates to locations into which adult use businesses could be 
established within 1000 feet of another adult use business and within a 500-foot 
distance from a church, school or childcare facility, public park and residential 
zoning districts.   
 
There was consensus to: 
• Verify the proposed 500-foot distance from schools and parks. 
• Verify the component of a required distance in relation to abutting 

communities.  
• Entrust the Legal Department to draft the proposed language.   
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Waller requested a discussion on cellular towers at the December Regular 
meeting to address: 

1. Zoning district of Fire Station No. 6. 
2. Zoning Ordinance text relating to fall zones. 
3. Zoning Ordinance text relating to tower locations at public school sites and 

public parks. 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed Troy Futures.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts announced she would not be able to attend the December 
meetings, so tonight’s meeting would be her last because she is not seeking re-
appointment.  Ms. Drake-Batts thanked everyone for their support and help, and 
wished everyone a happy holiday season and great success for the New Year. 
 
Well wishes were expressed to Ms. Drake-Batts from around the table.   
 
Mr. Miller shared information on the Parks and Recreation Master Plan in which the 
Planning Department devoted a lot of time and effort.   
 
Chair Strat addressed cellular tower locations in public parks and Troy Futures.   
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\11-28-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on November 28, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-201 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-11-202 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the November 7, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the November 21, 2006 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting.  
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the November 15, 2006 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting.  He noted that Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy was appointed as 
Executive Director of the DDA. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on Council actions taken at its November 27, 2006 Regular 
meeting. 
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed proposed ZOTA 215-B.   
 
Mr. Savidant addressed handouts distributed to the members prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting:  (1) Examples of vehicles and their correlated gross vehicle 
weight ratings; (2) A chart prepared by the Planning Department that details 
regulations of commercial vehicles in neighboring communities.  
 
After a thorough and lengthy discussion, it was the consensus of the members to 
prepare draft language similar to Lyon Township’s ordinance as groundwork for 
discussion.   
 
Ms. Lancaster will check on right of way authority. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:06 p.m. 

___________ 
 
[Student Representative Shin exited the meeting.] 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – Proposed Article 
22.30.08  Adult Use Businesses 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
adult use businesses.  He gave examples why language should be created to 
restrict adult use businesses and addressed the various ways to regulate the uses.  
Mr. Miller said a determination must be made as a basis to create and adopt an 
ordinance, and communities can regulate these uses based on the secondary 
effects associated with a concentration of these uses.  He indicated a number of 
communities in the United States have completed studies that document negative 
secondary effects of adult use businesses on their communities, and noted the 
reports are available in the Planning Department.  
 
Ms. Lancaster summarized pertinent cases that have established the law regarding 
adult use businesses and basic general principles to create a valid ordinance that 
would not suppress the First Amendment rights of an adult use business.  Ms. 
Lancaster briefly reviewed the proposed draft text amendment.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated that summaries of the studies that document the secondary 
effects of adult use businesses were distributed to each Planning Commissioner in 
their packets.  He encouraged members to read the completed reports of which 
hard copies would be available in the Planning Department and digital copies have 
already been emailed to each member.  Mr. Savidant said the most prevalent 
negative secondary effects are a decrease in property value and an increase in 
crime rate.  Mr. Savidant reviewed the GIS map created by the Planning 
Department as relates to locations into which adult use businesses could be 
established within 1000 feet of another adult use business and within a 500-foot 
distance from a church, school or childcare facility, public park and residential 
zoning districts.   
 
There was consensus to: 
• Verify the proposed 500-foot distance from schools and parks. 
• Verify the component of a required distance in relation to abutting 

communities.  
• Entrust the Legal Department to draft the proposed language.   
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 28, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Waller requested a discussion on cellular towers at the December Regular 
meeting to address: 

1. Zoning district of Fire Station No. 6. 
2. Zoning Ordinance text relating to fall zones. 
3. Zoning Ordinance text relating to tower locations at public school sites and 

public parks. 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed Troy Futures.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts announced she would not be able to attend the December 
meetings, so tonight’s meeting would be her last because she is not seeking re-
appointment.  Ms. Drake-Batts thanked everyone for their support and help, and 
wished everyone a happy holiday season and great success for the New Year. 
 
Well wishes were expressed to Ms. Drake-Batts from around the table.   
 
Mr. Miller shared information on the Parks and Recreation Master Plan in which the 
Planning Department devoted a lot of time and effort.   
 
Chair Strat addressed cellular tower locations in public parks and Troy Futures.   
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\11-28-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 29, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on November 29, 2006 at 7:00 PM at 
the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Alex Gabriel and Kristin Randall called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Ales Gabriel (Co-chair) 
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall (Co-chair) 
Neil Shaw (Secretary) 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale 
Karen Wullaert  

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
VISITORS: Barbara Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
STAFF PRESENT:  John Hug, Fitness Coordinator 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2006-11-14 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 27, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 13 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  0   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through October 2006.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Futures Process: 

A final meeting was held on Monday, November 27.  Only TYC member 
notified of the meeting was Bozimowski.  Remainder of members were not 
notified. 

 
5. Visitor:  Barbara Holmes, Deputy City Clerk.   

Presented information on: 
1. Functions of the Clerks Office which include processing applications for 

boards and committees, maintaining City ordinances and charter.  The job 
is diverse and very involved with legislation/City Council. 

2. City Clerks office is the record keeper of the City. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 29, 2006 
 
 

 2

3. City Clerks position is appointed, not elected. 
4. Everybody within the department is cross-trained. 
5.  Students will be needed in May to process voters and complete clerical     

work.  Students will get paid $7.50 per hour.  Students must be 16 years of 
age.  Students who are18 and a registered voter may also work as a chair 
person.   

  
 
6. Troy Daze Festival: 

Maxine D’Amico prepared a letter for the Troy Daze Committee and sent it to 
Andrew Corey for revision.  Corey showed Youth Council  the edited letter.  He 
suggested that the TYC send the letter in person.  TYC members plan on 
making final edits to the letter and signing at the December 20 meeting. 

   
 

7.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  No motion - full attendance 
  Resolution # TY-2006-11- 

  Moved by   
  Seconded by   

  
 RESOLVED that  

  Yes:  0 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  0   
 
8.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
9. Public Comments –  

-None. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Alex Gabriel, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: December 20 at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 6, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, December 6, 2006 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson   
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 1, 2006 
 
Motion by Kessler  
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 1, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MICHAEL BOGGIO ASSOCIATES, 3111, 3115, 
3119 CROOKS ROAD, for relief of Chapter 85 to enlarge an existing 50 square foot 
ground sign to a size of 140 square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to enlarge 
the existing 50 square foot ground sign to 140 square feet in area.  The sign as 
proposed to be modified would be 3’ from the public right-of-way.  Section 85.02.05 
limits signs within 10’ of the property line to not more than 50 square feet in area. 
 
Michael Boggio was present and stated that this site and the one to the north are similar 
in nature.  The building to the north has a sign for which this Board granted a variance, 
approximately one year ago.  The proposed sign, on the south site, would be almost 
identical to the sign for the building to the north.  Mr. Boggio said that they are not 
proposing to change anything on the sign; they would just like to put the brick frame 
around it.  This sign would not be as large as the sign to the north, but would be a nicer 
looking structure than what is currently in place. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for clarification regarding the size of signs and the setbacks to the 
right of way. 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01t



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the distance of the sign dictates the size of the sign from the 
right of way.  The existing sign complies with the requirements of the Ordinance.  The 
sign for the north building is located at a 16’ setback from Crooks Road. 
 
Mr. Boggio explained that they plan to use the existing masonry base and will not bring 
the sign any closer to the right of way.  They would be going up rather than out. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he had gone to the site and was very concerned about the site 
line along the sidewalk.  Mr. Richnak feels that adding this brick frame will cause a 
problem for pedestrians to see on-coming traffic and believes the sign should be moved 
back.  The proposed sign would created a very short site distance and this would affect 
the safety of both drivers and pedestrians.   
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he agrees with Mr. Richnak and feels the proposed sign would 
create an obstruction.  Mr. Kessler also stated that in order for the Board to grant a 
variance, a hardship is required with the land, and this parcel does not have a hardship. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if conditions could be placed on a motion regarding this proposed 
sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that basically there were two options: One would be to postpone this 
request until the next meeting to allow the petitioner to explore other options; and the 
second to approve the request as long as certain conditions were imposed on it.  If the 
request is approved with conditions and they choose not to implement them, the 
variance would expire. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how far back a sign of this size would have to go in order to comply 
with the ordinance and Mr. Stimac said at least 20’ from the right of way.   
 
Mr. Boggio said that they could not move it that far back, as the bottom two frames of 
the present sign would be blocked by the cars in the parking lot.  Mr. Boggio felt that the 
sign could be moved back some, but if it was moved that far back they would have to 
put up a new sign. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that as long as they were pouring cement they could move it back 6’ as 
well as 2’. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked the petitioner if they wished to postpone this request.  Mr. Boggio 
said that they would rather have the Board approve the request with conditions 
attached. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Michael Boggio Associates, 3111, 3115, 3119 Crooks Road, relief of 
Chapter 85 to enlarge an existing 50 square foot ground sign to a size of 140 square 
feet in area. 
 

• Leading edge of the new sign cannot be any closer than 5’ to the property line. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH CONDITIONS CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:48 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 3



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Dec. 7, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Dec. 7 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: David Ogg, excused, Frank Shier, excused    
   
Visitors:  Mila Bednarz, Dr. Thomas Biggs 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-12-001 
Moved by Pauline Noce  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 2, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Dr. Biggs gave a presentation on the aging eye. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that the bocce courts are done and the 
shuffleboard courts just need to be stained and have the numbers painted on them.  Benches 
will also be installed.  A ribbon cutting ceremony will be held in the spring. 
 
Street Signs:  Carla reported that Superintendent of Streets Tom Rosewarne and Traffic 
Engineer John Abraham will attend the January meeting to discuss street signs.  Mr. Abraham 
was not available to attend today’s meeting. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract with Emerald 
Food Service will not be renewed.  They have been granted permission to end their contract 
effective February 12.  It is expected that a list of caterers that may be used will be developed 
and that non-profit groups will be allowed to bring their own food.   
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01u



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Dec. 7, 2006 

2 

Lunch Visits:  JoAnn Thompson reported that some committee members ate the Troy lunch 
on November 16 and the food was good.  After the first of the year, the committee will make up 
a list of other centers to visit for lunch. 
 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson reported that seniors should be sure to check their plans 
during the open enrollment period as there are many changes.  
 
New Business 
 
Kaleidoscope:  JoAnn Thompson asked if it would be beneficial for the committee to have a 
table at the Kaleidoscope in January.  Carla reported that the Parks and Recreation 
Department does have a booth at the event with literature about the senior program.  She will 
get more details about the event and the committee will discuss it further at their January 
meeting.   
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they reviewed the master plan at their November 
meeting.  He distributed copies of the 2005 Parks and Recreation survey.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go has a new van and they are very busy.  They are 
still talking about expanding to offer weekend service. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 1360 flu shots were given at the clinic on Nov. 2 with a 
wait of no more than 20 minutes.  Fifteen senior volunteers helped with this program.  Ninety 
seniors attended the Veterans Benefits program on Nov. 9.  Twenty-eight seniors attended the 
two-day AARP Defensive Driving course at the Community Center that concluded yesterday.  
The home repair program, SHaRP, is going great.  A steering committee has been formed and 
the Troy Community Foundation is involved.  Seven people are signed up for the supper club, 
and a meeting will be scheduled for January. 
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported they had a speaker from 
SMART.  Transportation, health and information are some areas they will concentrate on in 
2007.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions this month. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



DATE:            December 1, 2006
TO:                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:           Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:      Permits issued during the Month of November 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Completion (New) 1 $910,000.00 $6,515.00
Add/Alter 3 $716,600.00 $5,454.00

Sub Total 4 $1,626,600.00 $11,969.00

COMMERCIAL
New Less Tenant 1 $465,000.00 $3,400.00
Add/Alter 25 $2,400,993.00 $20,089.00

Sub Total 26 $2,865,993.00 $23,489.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 6 $1,545,700.00 $11,699.00
Add/Alter 21 $548,953.00 $6,072.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 6 $15,688.00 $370.00
Repair 2 $6,150.00 $170.00
Fire Repair 1 $61,068.00 $579.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 38 $2,177,559.00 $18,990.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 8 $20,798.00 $600.00

Sub Total 8 $20,798.00 $600.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $0.00 $285.00

Sub Total 1 $0.00 $285.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 26 $0.00 $2,755.00
Fences 8 $0.00 $130.00

Sub Total 34 $0.00 $2,885.00

TOTAL 111 $6,690,950.00 $58,218.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 105 $1,050.00
Cert. of Occupancy 37 $2,363.35
Plan Review 112 $7,272.22
Microfilm 32 $268.00
Building Permits 111 $58,218.00
Electrical Permits 160 $10,824.00
Heating Permits 128 $6,333.00
Air Cond. Permits 49 $2,313.00
Plumbing Permits 103 $7,758.00
Storm Sewer Permits 13 $450.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 23 $819.00
Sewer Taps 17 $3,454.00

TOTAL 890 $101,122.57

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 50 $250.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 21 $315.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 18 $18.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 12 $120.00

TOTAL 25 $753.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 218 $10,681,352.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 198 $11,269,902.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 150 $14,170,725.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 161 $12,827,192.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 134 $10,733,680.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 111 $6,690,950.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 1699 $102,993,674.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7 9 6 4
11

5 6

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Dec 1, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter RUTHER CONSTRUCTION INC 800 TOWER 5TH FL  415,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COMMERCIAL MILLWORK & INTERIORS 2705 W BIG BEAVER 1ST FL  117,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SCHOOLCRAFT GENERAL CONTRACTOR 5950 ROCHESTER  187,625
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER N-114  156,489
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP INC 755 W BIG BEAVER 700  150,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,026,114

Commercial, Kiosk LOCKWOOD, LEWIS CONST CO 446 W FOURTEEN MILE K  220,000

Commercial, KioskTotal  220,000

Commercial, Shell New AUCH, GEORGE W. CO 3838 LIVERNOIS  6,000,000

Commercial, Shell NewTotal  6,000,000

Industrial, Add/Alter HARTMAN & TYNER 601 STEPHENSON  130,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  130,000

Industrial, Foundation New ARISTEO CONSTRUCTION 1767 MAPLELAWN  190,000

Industrial, Foundation NewTotal  190,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL TROY 44201 DEQUINDRE GRD FL  260,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  260,000

Total Valuation:  7,826,114Records  11



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



























S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007December 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
December 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

6
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  (Confere

7 8 9

10

11
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13 14 15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21 22
City Hall Closed

23

24

25
City Hall Closed

26 27 28 29
City Hall Closed

30

31

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

February 2007January 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
January 1, 07

City Hall Closed
2

7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

3
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Persons with 
Disabilities  (Confere

4
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

5 6

7

8
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

9
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

11 12 13

14

15 16
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

17
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

18
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

19 20

21

22
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

23
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

24 25 26 27

28

29 30 31



S M T W T F S
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28

February 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2007February 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
February 1

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

2 3

4

5
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

6
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Confere
7:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Persons with Dis
7:30pm City Council Liquor 

Hearing (Council C

8 9 10

11

12
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

13
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

15
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

16 17

18

19 20
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

21
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

22 23 24

25

26
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

27
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

28
7:30pm City Council Liquor 

Hearing (Council 
Chambers)



campbellld
Text Box
J-06



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: December 12, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: City of Troy v. George Roberts 
 

 
 

 

After a brief hearing on November 29, 2006, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 
Mark Goldsmith entered an order in the City of Troy v. George Roberts case.  Under the 
terms of the order, Mr. Roberts cannot occupy the residence at 6791 Livernois Rd., Troy, MI, 
until the first floor of the property is in compliance with the City’s property maintenance 
ordinances.   

Prior to this hearing, the home was inspected on November 27th, 2006 by the Housing 
and Zoning Inspectors.  Although some progress had been made, there was still substantial 
work to be done.  A second inspection is scheduled for December 19, 2006, in compliance 
with the Court order.    

The court order allows for the clean up to occur in phases, but requires the entire 
home to be compliant with all local and state laws by January 10th, 2007.  The Court has also 
scheduled a hearing for January 17, 2007, which would only be necessary if additional action 
is required for compliance.  

 
If you have any questions, please let us know.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



 

 
 
December 11, 2006 
 
 
TO:     The Honorable Mayo
 
FROM:   Phillip L. Nelson, City
 
SUBJECT:   Correlation of Counc
 
 
 
As the next step in the Troy Futures process, sta
thoughts with the Council’s goals and objectives
appears that the Futures Committees placed a f
of life issues, and, to a lesser extent, placed emp
significant amount of emphasis placed on region
development standpoint. A listing of “Preferred F
memo. 
 
In 2005, the Council adopted the following goals
 
 Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City
 Retain and attract investment while encoura
 Effectively and professionally communicate 
 Creatively maintain and improve public infra
 Annually improve the strategic plan 
 Protect life and property 

 
Council objectives include: 
 
 Enhance the flow of information 
 Address citizen input and concerns 
 Maintain high level of service 
 Promote culture of professionalism 
 Determine appropriate staffing levels 
 Expand electronic functions 
 Prioritize capital projects 
 Promote economic development and redeve
 Uphold fiscal integrity 
 Recognize diversity and encourage participa
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT 
r and City Council 

 Manager 

il Goals with Futures Report 

ff has tried to correlate the various committee 
.  Staff tried to be very broad in interpretation, but it 
airly heavy emphasis on what could be called quality 
hasis on economic development.  There was also a 
alism, especially from a planning and economic 
utures” is included on the last two pages of this 

 and objectives: 

 government 
ging redevelopment 
internally and externally 
structure 

lopment 

tion 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report 
December 11, 2006 
Page Two 
 
 
 
If the Council chooses to adopt the Futures Report as a part of the City’s planning process, based on 
input from the various committees, staff would suggest that the goals and objectives be revised as 
follows: 
 
 Minimize cost and increase efficiency effectiveness of City Government 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
 Effectively & professionally communicate internally & externally 
 Creatively maintain & improve public infrastructure 
 Expand the scope of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
 Annually improve Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 Protect life and property Enhance the livability and safety of the community  

 
Council objectives revisions include: 
 
 Enhance the a two-way flow of public information 
 Address citizen input and concerns 
 Maintain high level of service 
 Promote culture of professionalism 
 Determine appropriate staffing levels 
 Expand electronic functions 
 Prioritize capital projects 
 Promote economic development and redevelopment 
 Uphold fiscal integrity 
 Recognize diversity and encourage participation 
 Enhance community livability through more integration of business, educational, recreational and 

other (re)development philosophies 
 Revamp regulatory documents to be more flexible to take changing styles of the times into 

account 
 
The primary reasons for amending the goals as suggested are that if the Council chooses to adopt 
some or all of the suggestions offered in the report, budgets and other planning documents will have 
to be geared toward ensuring that the infrastructure, including technology, is ready to accommodate 
change.  Additionally, planning documents will have to be revised to make the necessary changes in 
philosophies in order to bring the “preferred futures” to fruition. 
 
To date, planning documents have been amended to allow for specific changes in development, but 
those documents have not always kept pace with changing styles of the times.  As a whole, planning 
documents are designed to give a basic inventory of what the community has, but do not provide 
guidance in development directions to ensure that the City has the ability to supply all of the required 
infrastructure and resources to meet changing times.  Large-scale redevelopment of various areas 
throughout Troy as suggested in the Futures Report could require the City to complete 
comprehensive studies to determine if City systems, including financial systems, have the capacity to 
accommodate proposed changes. 



CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report 
December 11, 2006 
Page Three 
 
 
 
Based on Council action on the Troy Futures Report, staff will then develop a Strategic Policy Plan 
that uses the Council’s goals and objectives, and the Troy Futures Report as its basis. 
  
Points indicated by the Troy Futures Committee Members - “Preferred Futures”: 
 
 Recognize diversity through better communication 

 Utilize aging population using their experience 

 Create better forum for community discussion 

 Partner with “civic” organizations as a means of shifting public participation 

 Address declining revenues by alternative means to do more with less 

 Modernize the Future Land Use Plan 

 Create a “villaging” development concept to create a connected sense of community 

 Become a model of environmentally friendly community 

 Develop into more of a vibrant, dynamic & prosperous city showcasing a variety of business and 

residential uses 

 Have elected leaders who govern in the best interest of the total community and is supported by a 

responsive and cooperative staff 

 Troy has implemented “villaging” development concepts 

 Develop multiple downtown areas that revolve around a specific culture or ethnic themes 

 Focus on (physical) fitness 

 Develop “My Village” concept 

 Maintain small town feel through big city, small community themes 

 Gotta Have Art 

 Develop a “just hanging out” feel by forming gathering places 

 Develop an outdoor sports complex 

 Troy has a Citywide Lifetime Learning Committee 

 Develop broad variety of life enriching educational methods to better face and deal with global 

lifestyles 

 Troy community facilitates learning opportunities that encompass a variety of experiences, 

lifestyles and cultures using community knowledge and experience 

 World class lifetime learning services and facilities are available to the entire Troy community 



CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report 
December 11, 2006 
Page Four  
 
 
 
 Troy provides opportunity, encouragement and recognition for the highest levels of academic 

achievement including educational curriculum preparing students to handle the latest advances in 

technology in a healthy, accepting learning environment 

 Troy is a safer place for travelers 

 Troy is a walkable/bikeable community with an extensive network of non-automotive pathways 

 Troy will be a city with multiple transit options for all age groups and workforce members 

 Virtual pathways will exist to substitute communication for transportation 

 Troy is a “green-clean” city  

 Southeastern Michigan has developed into a world-class region 

 Troy and the surrounding communities have coordinated their redevelopment efforts focusing on 

the strengths of each community to promote smart growth and retention of the creative class 

 Southeastern Michigan has developed a multi-modal transportation system that is supportive of 

economic development and that provides alternative modes of transportation for citizens of all 

ages 

 Troy is collaborating with southeastern Michigan to establish regional, high quality services in a 

cost efficient manner 

 Troy has a regional spirit to create cultural, recreational, education, family and senior activities 

that improve the quality of life for all segments of the region’s population 

 Create and promote an entrepreneurial area 

 Create Troy promotional activity 

 Upgrade public transportation 

 Encourage Troy’s Asian population to become THE Southeast Michigan business link to Asia 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\12.18.06 - Correlation of Council Goals w Futures Report 


	AGENDA: December 18, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations: No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Proposed Rezoning (File Number: Z 723) – Proposed Taco B
	C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 180-B) – Proposed Bi
	C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5933 Diamond

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1  No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�

	E-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Inve

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Dis
	F-2 Potential Acquisition of 4265 Rochester Road
	F-3 Downtown Development Authority and Sanctuary Lake Golf C
	F-4 Amendment #2 – Environmental Work Sanctuary Lake Golf Co
	F-5 Approval of Kitchen Lease – Emerald Food Services, LLC
	F-6 Future Land Use Plan Amendment – Rochester Road Overlay 
	F-7 Troy Daze Festival
	F-8 TCF Bank Reimbursement Agreement – Brownfield Plan #4
	F-9 Proposed Contract for T-Mobile Cell Tower at Fire Statio

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Ar


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 A Proposed Resolution Proclaiming and Celebrating that t

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 6, 2006
	Traffic Committee/Final – September 20, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Final – September 27, 2006
	Historic District Commission/Final – October 17, 2006
	Traffic Committee/Final – October 18, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Nov
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Nov
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 1, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 2, 2
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 7, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 7, 2006
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – Novem
	Planning Commission/Draft – November 14, 2006
	Planning Commission/Final – November 14, 2006
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – November 16, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 21, 2006
	Planning Commission Special /Study/Draft – November 28, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 28, 2006
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – November 29, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 6, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 7, 2

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Nov
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2006

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Letter from the Michigan Association of Public Employee
	J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  Correlation of Council Goals with Futures Report

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



